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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY

75 North Pace Blvd.
PENSACOLA, FL 32505
PHONE 850/432-6121, FAX B50/469-6370
hitp:/fwww.escambia.k12.fl,us
MALCOLM THOMAS, SUPERINTENDENT

January 12, 2016

To the Honorable Members of the District School Board of Escambia County
and the Citizens of Escembia County, Florida

State law requires that all local governments publish after the close of each fiscal year a complete
set of financial statemenits presented in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP), and audited in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, Pursuant to this requirement, we hereby issue the
comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR} of the District School Board of Escambia County,
Florida (District) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

This report consists of manapement’s representations concerning the finances of the District.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of
the information presented in this report., To provide a reasonable basis for making these
representations, management has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is
designed both to protect the District’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient
reliable information for the preparation of the District’s financial statements in conformity with

" GAAP. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and the evalnation of costs and benefits requires estimates
and judgments by management. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The District’s financial statements have been andited by the independent public accounting firm,
Moore Stephens Lovelace, P.A. The poal of the independent audit is to provide reasonable
assurance that the financial statements of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, are
free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the andit, that there was a
reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the District’s basic financial staternents
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The
independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this
report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the District was part of a broader, federally
mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The
District is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the
Single Audit Act of 1996 and the United States Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular
A-133, Audiis of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. The stardards
governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair
presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal controls and
compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on infernal controls and legal
requirements involving the administration of federal awards. A separate report related to this

i



To the Honorable Members of the Distriet School Board of Escambia County
and the Citizens of Escambia County, Florida
January 12, 2014

single andit, including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, findings, and independent
auditor’s report on the system of internal control and on compliance with applicable requirements
will be issued by the auditors to satisfy the requirements of OMB circular A-133 and the Single
Audit Act of 1996,

This report includes all funds of the District, The Escatribia County Public Schools Foundation for
Excellence, Ine. (the Foundation), and charter schools, which comprise the reporting entity, The
Foundation is a separate not-for-profit corporation organized and operated as a direct-support
organization. The Foundation’s purpose is exclusively educational and charitable for the
constituents of Escambia County. Charter schools are public schools operating under performance
coniracts with the District’s governing board (Board). The Foundation and the applicable charter

schools are incloded as discretely presented component units in the accompanying financial
statements.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative infroduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The District’s MD&A immediately follows the independent auditor’s report.

Profile of the District

The District and its Board were created pursuant to Section 4, Article IX of the Constitution of the
State of Florida. The District is an independent taxing and reporting entity managed, controlled,
operated, administered, and supervised by the District school officials in accordance with
Chapter 1001, Florida Statutes. The Board consists of five elected officials responsible for the
adoption of policies, which govern the operation of District public schools. The elected
Superintendent of Schools (Superintendent) is the executive officer of the Board and is responsible
for the administration and management of the sehools within the applicable parameters of Florida
Statutes, State Board of Education (SBE) Rules, and Board policies. The Superintendent is also
specifically delegated the responsibility of maintaining a uniform system of records and accounts
for the District by SBE Rule 6A-1.001, Florida Administrative Code.

The geographic boundaries of the Disirict are those of Escambia County. During the
2014-15 fiscal year, the District operated 61 schools, special centers, and other programs, including
31 elementary schools, 9 middle schools, 7 high schools, 3 special centers, and 11 other programs.
The District also has 8 charter schools that are component units of the District. The District alsa
provides on-line learning opporiunities through its virtual education offerings,

The Distriet receives the majority of ifs operating funds through a State funding formula that is
intended to equalize funding received from the State and local property tax between districts within
the State, Charter schocls operating through a coniract with the District are provided with their

proportionate share of these funds, based upon the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled
at the charter school.

During the 2014-15 fiscal year, the District provided general, special, vocational, and other
education programs to 40,156 unweighted full-time equivalent students (UFTE), a decrease of 15
UFTE over the prior fiscal year (40,171). Based on forecasting models, the District projects its
2015-16 student menibership to further decrease in number to 40,044 UFTE which represetits a
decline of 112 UFTE.

Affirmative action/equal opportunity employer
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To the Honorable Members of the District School Board of Escambia County
and the Citizens of Escambia County, Florida
January 12, 2016

For budgeting purposes, the Board follows procedures established by Florida Statutes and the State
Board of Education rules in establishing and adopting annual budgets for each of the governmental
fund types.

Econdmic Condition and Outlook

Escambia County, located in the northwestern patt of the state, was established July 21, 1821 as a
non-charter government when the Provisional Governor Andrew Jackson signed an ordinance
making the County one of the first two counties in Florida, the other being St. John’s County.
There are two municipalities within the County, the City of Pensacola, which is the County scat,
and the Town of Century.

Escambia County encompasses approximately 661 square miles, or 420,480 acres, with an
additional 64,000 acres of water area and serves a population of approximately 306,000, The
population has increased by approximately 2.5 percent over the last ten years. The statewide
increase during that period has been close to 18 percent. The Escambia county unemployment rate
has decreased from 6.0 percent a year ago to 5.7 percent in June 2015.

State sales tax revenues have stabilized from the economic downturn of the last several fiscal years
as is reflected in a 6.9 percent increasc in local receipts over the 2013-14 fiscal year. In addition,
school taxable property values in Escarmbia County grew 4.3 percent over the same period.

Total education funding increased $215 per UFTE (3.3 percent) over the prior 2013-14 fiscal year
mainly due to a 7.5 percent increase in the Base Student Allocation (BSA). The BSA is set by the

state legislature and is the starting point for the total formula funds calculation generated through
the Florida Education Finance Program (FEEP),

The District’s General Fund balance decreased in the 2014-15 fiscal year as the District utilized
planned reserves to offset certain expenditures and to compensate for a proration in state FEFP
revenue. The statewide proration of funds was due to unexpected growth in the state’s student
population and effectively reduced the District’s FEIP revenue by $1.5 million. The District’s
General Fund financial condition ratio of 12.8 percent remains well above the 3.5 percent
benchmark required by Board Policy.

Major Initiatives

Section 212.055(6), Floride Statutes authorizes local schoal boards to levy a one-half cent School
Capital Outlay Sales Surtax (sales surtax) and the Escambia County School District is in the eight
year of a ten year referendum. One hundred percent of the District’s sales tax funds are used for
new construction, renovations, and certain retrofit projects for its school facilities.

In the November 2014 genetal cleciion, the District won an early tenewal of its sales fax
referendum for another ten year period. Accordingly, the School Board passed a resolution in the
spring of 2015 to issue Sales Tax Revenue Bonds in the amount not exceeding $75 million for the
purpose of constructing a new middle school on the west side of the county. Debt service petind
on the bonds will include the remaining years on the current ten year referendum ard the full {en
years available on the renewal period.

The new construct is intended to relieve overcrowding at other middle schools and once completed
will set up a seties of facility upgrades at other school locations. Addressing these issues will
prepate for certain schools to swap campuses sccording to a straiegic master plan designed to

Affirmative actonfequal opportunity employer
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To the Honorable Members of the District School Board of Escambia County
and the Citizens of Bscambia County, Florida
January 12, 2016

address the District’s shifting and growing population in addition to improving important but aging
school facilities.

Financial Information Policies

Internal Controls Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal controls designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or
misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of
financial statements in conformity with GAAP, Iniernal control is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable agsurance
recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2)
the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management,

Budgetary Controls The District maintains budgetary controls, the objective of which is to ensure
compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annmal appropriated budget approved by the
Board. Activities of all governmental fund types are included in the annual appropriated budget.
The level of budgetary control (that is the level at which expenditures cannot exceed the
appropriated amount) is established at the object level.

Budgetary information is integrated into the accounting system and to facilitate budgetary control,
budget balances are encumbered when purchase orders are jssued. Appropriations lapse at fiscal
year-end and encumbrances outstanding are honored from the subsequent Ifiscal yeat’s
appropriations. In order to provide budgetary control for salaries, the District utilizes a centralized
position confrol system. On an anmual basis, the Board adopts a District staffing plan that
establishes teacher positions based generally on student populations served. Additionally, support
and administrative positions are created based on established criteria.

Long-Term Finaneial Plaoning

General Operating School Board policy requires General Fund combined assigned and
vnassigned reserves to be maintained at no less than an amout equal to 3.5 percent of General
Fund revenue. For the 2014-15 fiscal year this amount totaled $37,006,970 or 12,75 percent,

The District’s financial objectives for general operating revenue may be summarized as follows;
(1) provide for adequate classroom resoutces and operational support to accomplish curriculum and
instructional goals, (2) provide for competitive salary and benefits program for all employees, and
(2) maintain adequate fund balance consistent with School Board policy.

Facilities The District currently benefits from a ten year, 0.5 percent school capital outlay sales
surtax authorized under Section 212.055(6), Florida Statutes, This ten year levy is in effect until
December 31, 2017 and Is the source of funds for nearly all new construction and major remodel
and renovation projects, In November 2014, the voters of Escambia County approved an early
ronewal refsrendum for another ten year extension beginning January 1, 2018 and ending
December 31, 2027.

The Board has approved a resolufion to issue sales tax-revenue bonds in accordance with the
proceeds collected over the remaining current levy and the projected proceeds collected from the
ten year extension. These bonds will finance a new middle school and the
remodel/renovation/reputpose of several cxisting school facilities.
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To the Honorable Members of the District School Board of Bscambia County
and the Citizens of Bscambia County, Florida
Jamnuary 12, 2016

The preparation of this Report on a timely basis was made possible by the dedicated service of the
entire staff of the Finance department. Each member of the department has our sincere appreciation
for the contributions made in the preparation of this report.

In closing, we would like to thank the members of the Board for their leadership and support in
planning and conducting the financial operations of the District.

s

Respectfully submitted,
m \
i L?}‘
Malcolm Thomas Terry St. Cyr, CPA
Superintendent of Schools Agsistant Superintendent -Finance and
4 Business Services
Debbie Fussell, CPA

Director of Accounting Operations
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M S MOORE STEPHENS
LOVELACE, PA.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Chairman and Members of
The District School Board of Escambia County, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
District School Board of Escambia County, Florida (the “District™) as of and for the year ended June 30,
2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic
financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit
the financial statements of the Charter Schools or Escambia Schools Foundation, Inc., which comprises 100
percent of the assets, net position, and revenues of the discretely presented component units of the District.
Those financial statements were audited by other auditors, whose reports have been furnished to us and, our
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the discretely presented component units, is based
solely on the reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.



Chairman and Members of
The District School Board of Escambia County, Florida

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Continued)
Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to in the
first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the District as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position, and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof, and the budgetary comparison for the general fund and major special
revenue fund for the fiscal year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America,

Emphasis-of-Matter
Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 16 to the financial statements, in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the District
adopted the provisions of Government Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASBS) Number 68,
Aeccounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an Amendment of GASB Statement Number 27, As a
result of the implementation of GASBS 68, the District reported a restatement for the change in
accounting principle. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter,

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis, Schedule of Funding Progress — Other Postemployment Benefits Plan, and
Pension Schedules, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context, We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance,

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements as a whole, The introductory section, combining and
individual major and non-major fund financial statements and schedules, and statistical section, as listed in
the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
financial statements. The combining and individual major and non-major fund financial staiements and
schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the undetlying
accounting and other records used to prepate the financial statements. Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used fo prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the combining and individual major and non-major fund financial statements and



Chairman and Members of
The District School Board of Escambia County, Florida

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Concluded)
Other Information (Continued)

schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. The
introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 12, 2016,
on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

\\(\;mu gjwehmh \AWJN—‘L)?-‘\

MOORE STEPHENS LOVELACE, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants

Orlando, Florida
January 12,2016
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MANAGEMENT"S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The management of the District School Board of Escambia County, Florida has prepared the following
discussion and analysis to provide an overview of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2015. The information contained in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is
intended to highlight significant transactions, events, and conditions and should be considered in conjunction

with the District’s financial statements and notes to financial statements found immediately following the
MD&A.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Key financial highlights for the 2014-15 fiscal year are as follows:
> The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the District exceeded its liabilities and deferred

inflows of resources at June 30, 2015, by $272.1 mullion (net position).

» The District’s total net position decreased by $116.1 million from the prior fiscal year ($388.2
million) due to the implementation of GASB Statement 68 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions.

» At June 30, 2015, the District’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $144.8
million, a decrease of $12.4 mullion from the prior fiscal year ($157.2 million).

» At June 30, 2015, the combined assigned and unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
$37.0 mullion, or 12.8 percent (Financial Condition Ratio) of total General Fund revenues.

» The District’s total long-term debt (Bonds Payable and Certificates of Participation) was $34.4
million, a decrease of $4.6 million (12 percent) from the prior fiscal year ($39 million) primarily due
to payment of principal.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT'S
The basic financial statements consist of three components:

» Government-wide financial statements.
» Fund financial statements.

» Notes to financial statements.

This report also includes supplementary information intended to furnish additional details to support the

basic financial statements.
Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide both short-term and long-term information about the
District’s overall financial condition in a manner similar to those of a private-sector business. The statements
include a statement of net position and a statement of activities that are designed to provide consolidated
financial information about the governmental activities of the primary government presented on the accrual
basis of accounting. The statement of net position provides information about the District’s financial
position, its assets, liabilities and deferred outflows/inflows of resources, using an economic resources

measurement focus.  Assets plus deferred outflows of resources, less liabilities and deferred inflows of



resources, equals net position, which is a measure of the District’s financial health. The statement of
activities presents information about the change in the District’s net position, the results of operations, during
the fiscal year. An increase or decrease in net position is an indication of whether the District’s financial

health is improving or deteriorating,

All of the District’s activities and services are reported in the government-wide financial statements as
governmental activities, The District’s governmental activities include instruction, student support services,
instructional support services, administrative support services, facility maintenance, transportation, and food
services, Property taxes and State revenues finance most of these activities. Additionally, all capital and debt

financing activities are reported as governmental activities.
The government-wide statements present the District’s activities in two categories:

»  Governmental activities — This represents most of the District’s services, including its educational
programs:  basic, vocational, adult, and exceptional education. Support functions such as
transportation and administration are also included, Local property taxes and the State’s education
finance program provide most of the resources that support these activities.

>  Component units - The District presents aggregate financial information for the following ten
separate legal entities in this report: Escambia Charter School, Inc.,, Beulah Academy of Science,
Inc., Pensacola Beach Elementary School, Inc., Byrneville Elementary School, Inc., Jacqueline FHarris
Preparatory Academy, Newpoint Pensacola Academy Middle School, Newpoint Pensacola High
School, Five Flags Elementary School, Capstone Academy Pensacola, and the Escambia County
Public Schools Foundation For Excellence, Inc. Although legally separate organizations, the
component units are included in this report because they meet the criteria for inclusion provided by
GASB Statement No. 61, as interpreted by the Florida Department of Education, which determined
that it would be misleading to exclude the charter schools. Financial information for these
component units is reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary
government.

The Escambia School District Employee Benefit Trust (Trust) was established to administer the
District’s employee life, health, and dental insurance programs. The Escambia County District
School Board exercises significant oversight responsibility over the Trust, and all activities of the
Trust are solely for the benefit of the District and its employees. Therefore, the financial activities of
the Trust have been included (blended) as an integral part of the primary government.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements are one of the components of the basic financial statements. A fund is a grouping
of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements and prudent fiscal management. Certain funds are established by law while
others are created by legal agreements, such as bond covenants. Fund financial statements provide more
detailed information abour the District’s financial activities, focusing on its most significant or “major” funds
rather than fund types. This is in contrast to the entity-wide perspective contained in the government-wide
statements. All of the District’s funds may be classified within one of three broad categories, as discussed

below.



Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements, However, the governmental funds
utilize a financial resources measurement focus rather than the economic resources measurement focus found
in the government-wide financial statements. ‘The financial resources measurement focus allows the
governmental fund financial statements to provide information on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such

information may be useful in assessing the District’s neat-term financing arrangements,

The governmental fund statements provide a detailed, short-term view that may be used to evaluate the
District’s near-term financing requirements, 'This short-term view is useful when compared to the long-term
view presented as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. To facilitate this
comparison, both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation of governmental funds to governmental
activities.

The governmental funds balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide detailed information about the District’s most significant funds. The District’s major funds
are the General Fund, Special Revenue — Other Federal Program Fund, and the Capital Projects ~ Other

Fund. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its governmental funds. Budgetary comparison
statements have been provided for the General Fund and the Special Revenue -~ Other Federal Program
Fund to demonstrate compliance with the budget.

Proprietary Funds. Proprietary funds, including internal service funds, may be established to account for

activities in which a fee is charged for services. Internal service funds are used to report activities that
provide goods and services to support the District’s other programs and functions through user charges. The
District uses the internal sexrvice funds to account for risk management and employee benefits activities.
Since these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, the internal

service funds have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements,

The internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated column in the proprietary fund financial

statements.

Fiduciary Funds. TFiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or fiduciary capacity for the
benefit of external parties, such as student activity funds. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the
government-wide financial statements because the resources are not available to support the District’s own
programs. In its fiduciary capacity, the District is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these
funds are used only for their intended purposes. The District uses agency funds to account for resources held

for student activities and groups and to account for the resources of the District’s pre-tax flexible benefits

plan.



Notes to Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full understanding of the data provided in the

government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents required
supplementary information concerning the District’s progress in funding its obligation to provide other

postemployment benefits to its employees.
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial health. The following is a

summary of the District’s net position as of June 30, 2015, compared to net position as of June 30, 2014:

Net Position, End of Year

Governmental
Activities
6-30-15 6-30-14

Current Assets $ 191,626,403 $ 205,789,222
Capital Assets 322,900,603 308,948,717
Total Assets 514,527,006 514,737,939
Deferred Qutflow of Resources 25,540,146 472,996
Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources $ 540,067,152 $ 515,210,935
Long-Term Liabilities $ 200,366,377 $ 111,979,841
Other Liabilities 12,259,857 15,045,963
Total Liabilities 212,626,234 127,025,804
Deferred Inflow of Resources 55,306,233

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflow of Resources $ 267,932,467 $ 127,025,804
Net Position:

Net Investment in Capital Assets 288,526,040 269,930,903
Restricted 115,241,269 121,223,565
Unrestricted (Deficit) (131,632,624) (2,969,337)
Total Net Position 272,134,685 388,185,131
Total Liabilities and Net Position $ 540,067,152 $ 515,210,935

The largest portion of the District’s net position, $288.5 million, reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, construction in progress, buildings, improvements, equipment, motor vehicles, computer software, and

8



audio visual materials), less any related debt still outstanding, The District uses these capital assets to provide

services to students; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending,

The restricted portion of the District’s net position, $115 million, represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. Normually, the unrestricted net position is used to meet the
District’s ongoing obligations to students, employees, and creditors. Unrestricted net position totaled a
negative $132 million mainly due to the net pension liability of $94 million, The District reported net pension
liability according to the requirements of GASB Statement 68 - Accounting and Reporting for Pensions.

The key elements of the changes in the District’s net position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015, and

June 30, 2014, are as follows:



Operating Results for the Year

Governmental
Activities
6-30-15 6-30-14
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 5,092,659 § 5,668,386
Operating Grants and Contributions 16,484,055 15,890,352
Capital Grants and Contributions 6,094,047 2,632,234
General Revenues:
Property Taxes, Levied for Operational Purposes 95,102,045 91,977,693
Property Taxes, Levied for Capital Projects 21,492,708 22,777,599
Local Sales Taxes 23,376,775 21,856,254
Grants and Contributions Not Restricted
to Specific Programs 222,905,305 219,193,213
Unrestricted Investment Famings 584,835 96,333
Miscellaneous _ 3,604,535 3,702,323
Total Revenues 394,736,964 383,794,387
Functions/Program Expenses:
Instruction 206,850,659 200,433,368
Student Personnel Services 16,357,758 16,018,809
Instructional Media Services 4,400,081 4,224.367
Instruction and Cuniculum Development Services 10,450,035 10,038,942
Instructional Staff Training Services 8,497,923 9,139,669
Instruction Related Technology 4,165,597 4,401,182
Board of Education 1,223,781 1,196,527
General Administration 2,211,509 2,413,878
School Administration 14,578,087 14,787,725
Facility Services 19,944,374 13,506,908
Fiscal Services 2,335,937 2,164,484
Food Services ' 20,515,294 20,988,484
Central Services 5,050,783 4,791,656
Student Transportation Services 17,788,057 18,220,613
Operation of Plant 27 069,043 27,217 458
Maintenance of Plant 11,041,441 10,943,295
Administrative Technology Services 3,508,846 3,948,080
Community Services 1,119,798 1,384,546
Unallocated Interest on Long-Term Delst 1,855,933 1,883,019
Total Functions/Program Expenses 379,364,936 367,703,010
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 15,372,028 16,091,377
Beginning Net Position 388,185,131 372,093,754
Adjustment to Net Position (131,422,474
Ending Net Position $ 272,134,685 § 388,185,131

Governmental Activities decreased the District’s net position by $116.1 million. The key element of the

decrease is due to the GASB 68 reporting requirement which reduced Beginning Net Position a total of
$131.4 million,
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund. The General Fund is the District’s chief operating fund. The assigned and unassigned fund
balance at June 30, 2015, is $37.0 million, while the total fund balance is $51.3 million. The assigned and
unassigned fund balances increased by $2.2 million, while the total fund balance decreased by $2.2 million

during the fiscal year. Key factors for these changes are as follows:

» Decrease in total fund balance - Expenditures for salaries and benefits increased significantly due to
an across the board 4 percent raise for all employee categories. The increase in these costs was
anticipated to hold the fund at the breakeven point in terms of net change in fund balance.
However, a proration of the FEFP per the fourth calculation resulted in a $1.5 million loss of
expected revenue. These, along with certain other factors, resulted in a lower than expected total
fund balance.

> Increase in assigned and unassigned fund balances - The $2.2 million increase in assigned and
unassigned fund balances was due to expending restricted state categorical funds as a higher priority
than unrestricted funds in order to maximize flexibility of the fund balance reserves. The ratio of
unrestricted assigned and unassigned fund balance to general fund revenue is a measure of the

District’s financial condition.

Special Revenue — Other Fund. The Special Revenue - Other Federal Programs Fund had revenues and

expenditures of $32.5 million each. The fund includes entitlement grants such as Title T and Special
Education. Funds are typically recorded as revenue when expended.

Capital Projects — Other Fund. The Capital Projects — Other Fund has a fund balance of $69.3 million, of

which $4.6 million has been encumbered for specific projects. The fund balance decreased from the prior
year by $3.3 million due in part to the reconstruction projects of a two existing schools. Both Schools were

occupied during the 2014-15 fiscal year.

The majority of the revenue in the Capital Projects — Other Fund consists of proceeds from the District’s
local option sales tax. This sales tax is specific to the Escambia County School District and is a ten-year,

voter-approved referendum which began in 2008.
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Final budgeted revenues did not significantly differ from original budgeted revenues, and actual revenues are

in line with final budgeted revenues.

Actual expenditures were $25.7 million less than final budgeted expenditures. The instruction function
accounted for $11.3 million of this variance due mainly to the efficient staffing of instructional personnel

necessary to meet class size reduction requirements.
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM DEBT
Capital Assets

The District’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of June 30, 2015, amounts to
$322.9 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land;
improvements other than buildings; buildings and fixed equipment; furniture, fixtures, and equipment; motor
vehicles; construction in progress; and audio visual materials and computer software. The District’s
investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) for the current fiscal year increased $14 million,

or 4.5 percent.

Major construction projects initiated, continued, or completed during the current fiscal year included the

following:

AK. Suter Elementary School rebuild of entire facility.
Ernest Ward Middle School rebuild of entire facility.

Roofing projects at various District locations.

Y V V VYV

Bellview Middle School gymnasium construction.
> Installation and renovation of mechanical and life safety systems.
Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in Notes 5 and 13 to the financial

statements.
Long-Term Debt

At June 30, 2015, the District has total long-term debt outstanding of $34.3 million. The District had $2.7
million outstanding of State School Bonds issued by the State Board of Education (SBE) and backed by the
full faith and credit of the State of Florida. Certificates of Participation outstanding of $31.6 million represent

the remainder of long-term debt.

Additional information on the District’s long-term debt can be found in Notes 8 through 11 to the financial

statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AFFECTING 2015-16 FISCAL YEAR BUDGETS AND RATES
These factors were considered in preparing the District budget for the 2015-16 fiscal year:
State Funding for Student Enrollment

The District receives State funds based on the number of full-time equivalent (FTE) students. These formula
funds will increase approximately $8.1 million ($236 per unweighted FTE) over the 2014-15 fiscal year due to

a 3.0 percent increase in total formula funds appropriated by the State Legislature.
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General Fund - Fund Balance

The District will budget approximately $7.0 million of unrestricted fund balance to cover planned
expenditures during the 2015-16 fiscal year. The District anticipates that a portion of the unrestricted fund
balance will be replenished at year-end through unspent appropriations and actual revenue receipts in excess

of budgeted amounts.

The District anticipates that the fund balance at June 30, 2016, will remain in excess of the Board minimum

target of 3.5 percent (of anticipated General Fund revenues).
Expected Cost Increases

Major increases expected in operating expenditures include (1) potentially higher salary and benefits costs of
approximately $4.5 million due salary negotiations, and (2) continuing increases in health insurance costs and

wellness benefits to offset medical inflation.
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

Questions concerning information provided in the MD&A, and financial statements and notes thereto, or
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Assistant Superintendent - Finance
and Business Services, District School Board of Escambia County, 75 North Pace Boulevard, Pensacola,
Florida, 32505.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Investments

Accounts Receivable

Deposits Receivable

Prepaid ltems

Due from Other Agencies

Inventories

Capital Assets:
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions
Total Deferred Qutflows of Resources

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2015

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Salaries and Benefits Payable
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings
Accounts Payabie
Construction Contracts Payable

Consfruciion Contracts Payable - Retainage

Due to Other Agencies
Deposits Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Advanced Revenue
Loan Payable
Note Payable
Long-Term Liabilities:
Portion Due Within One Year:
Portion Due After One Year:
Tetal Liabilities

DEFERRED INFL.OWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions
Deferred Revenue

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for;

State Required Carryover Programs

Debt Service

Capital Projects

Federal Required Carryover Programs

Food Service

Other Required Carryover Programs
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION

Primary
Government
Governmental Component
Activities Units
$ 103,200,670 $ 4,046,714
77,688,238
431,023 695,418
2,000 1,751
74,346
6,252,483 187,551
3,268,733
9,761,713 428,690
313,138,880 5,083,686
514,533,750 10,518,156
25,540,146 131,178
25,540,146 131,178
$ 540,073,896 $ 10,649,334
$ 2,799,124 % 21,418
51,118
2,301,554 1,738,099
3,687
248,851
54,084
9,386 25
666,537
3,559,654
2,571,706
130,500
14,202,736 648,371
186,163,641 1,071,921
212,632,978 3,610,334
55,261,715 205,365
44 518
55,306,233 205,365
288,526,040 4,706,704
8,966,850
4,432,774 140,000
83,166,174 3,159
1,690
5,810,260
12,763,521 555,517
(131,632,624) 1,428,255
272,134,685 6,833,635
$ 540,073,806 $ 10,649,334

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an inﬁgral part of the financial statements.




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Program Revenues

Charges Operating
) far Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions
Functions/Programs
Primary Government
Governmental Activities:
Instruction $ 206,850,859 $ 916,332 $
Student Support Services 16,357,758
Instructional Media Services 4,400,081
Instruction and Curriculum Develcpment Services 10,450,035
Instructional Staff Training Services 8,497,923
Instruction-Related Technology 4,165,507
Board of Education 1,223,781
General Administration 2,211,508
School Administration 14,978,087
Facility Services 19,944,374 28,759
Fiscal Services 2,335,037
Food Services 20,515,294 3,480,641 16,484,055
Central Services 5,050,783
Student Transportation Services 17,788,057 241,944
Operation of Plant 27,069,043
Maintenance of Plant 11,041,441
Administrative Technology Services 3,508,846
Community Services 1,118,798 424,983
Unallocated Interest on Long-Term Debt 1,855,033
Total Governmental Activities 5 379,364,936 $ 5,092,652 3 18,484,055
Component Units
Foundation/Charter Schools § 11,086,833 3 383,106 $ 466,189

General Revenues;
Taxes:
Property Taxes, Levied for Operational Purposes
Property Taxes, Levied for Capital Projects
Local Sales Taxes
Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to Specific Programs
Unrastricted Investment Earnings
Miscellanecus

Total General Revenues

Change In Net Position

Net Position, July 1, 2014 - As Previously Reporied
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle
Net Position, July 1, 2014, As Restated

Net Position, June 30, 2015

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes In Net Position

Capltal Primary Government

Grants and Governmental
Contributions Activities

$ $ (205,934,327}
(16,357,758}

(4,£00,081)

(10,450,035)

(8,497,923)

{4,165,507)

{1,223,781)

{2,211,509)

{14,978,087)

4,804,129 (15,111,486)
(2,335,937)
(550,558)
(5,050,783)
(17,548,113)
(27,069,043)
(11,041,441
(3,508,846)

(694,815)

1289918 (566,015)

Component
Units

$ 5,084,047 (351,694,175)

$ 295,693

95,102,045
21,492,708
23,376,775
222,905,305
584,835
3,804,535

(9,951,845)

367,086,208

9,058,209
11,738
311,515

16,372,028

9,381,612

388,185,131
(131,422,474)
256,762,657

(570,233)

7,022,923
(519,055)
7,403,868

§ 272,134,688

5,833,635
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
BALANGCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2015

Special Revenue -

Other Federal
General Programs
Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 41,518,777 $ 142,190
Investments 7,065,109
Accounts Raceivable 313,276 40,892
Deposits Receivable 2,000
Due from Other Funds 6,410,225
Due from Other Agencies 817,818 4,584,180
Inventories 1,290,806
TOTAL ASSETS § 57,418,101 $ 4,767 272
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Salaries and Benefits Payable $ 2,592,417 § 206,707
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 34,162 15,256
Accounts Payable 888,046 581,249
Construcfion Contracts Payable
Construction Contracts Payable - Relainage
Due to Other Funds 14,815 3,858,158
Due o Other Agencles 50,772 4,212
Deposits Payable 121
Accrued Interest Payable
Loan Payable 2,571,706
Total Liabilities 6,152,039 4,765,582
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred Revenue
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventories 1,208,455
Restricted for:
State Required Carryover Programs 8,966,850
Debt Service
Capital Projects .
Federal Required Carryover Programs 1,690
Food Service
Other Required Carryover Programs 4,083,787
Assigned for:
Contingencies 6,533,487
Local Carryovers 15,714,078
Unassigned ' 14,759,425
Total Fund Balances 51,266,062 1,690
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND FUND BALANCES § 57418101 $ 4,767,272

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Capital

Profects - Other Total
Other Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
$ 3,619,364 $ 18,208,874 § 63,579,205
66,135,688 4,487,440 77,688,237
3,608 357,866
2,000
12,623 6,422,748
1,550,476 6,952,484
1,077,837 3,268,733
$ 69,755,052 § 26,330,848 $ 158,271,273
§ $ $ 2,799,124
1,699 51,117
174,480 413,297 2,057,072
3,687 3,687
248,851 248,851
1,014,358 4,987,331
54,084
9,265 9,386
666,537 666,537
2,571,706
427,018 2,105,156 13,449,795
44,518 44,518
44,518 44 518
1,977,837 3,186,202
8,066,850
4,432,774 4,432,774
69,328,034 13,838,140 83,166,174
1,690
3,932,423 3,032,423
4,083,787
6,533,467
15,714,078
14,759,425
69,328,034 24,181,174 144,776,960
$ 69,755,052 $ 26,330,548 $ 158,271,273
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2015

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciaticn, used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefare, are not reporled as assets In the governmental funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities,
such as insurance, to individual funds. The assets and liabillties of the internal
service funds are included in governmental activitios in the staternent of net position.

Long-term liabllities are not due and payable in the current fiscal year and, therefore, are not
reported as liabilitles in the governmental funds. Long-term liabilities at fisca! year-and

consist of:
Bonds Payable $ (2,738,580}
Certificates of Participation Payable {31,635,982)
Compensated Absences Payable (42,538,646}
Other Past Empioyment Benaeflts (2,227 205)

On the governmental fund statements, a net pensicen liablllty is not recorded until an amount
is due and payable and the pension plan's fiduciary net position Is not sufficient for
payment of those benefits (no such liability exists at the end of the current fiscal year).
On the Statement of Net Position, the District's proportionate share of the net pension
liability of the cost-sharing defined benefit pension plans in which the District
participates is reported as a noncurrent llablility. Additionally, deferred ocutflows and
deferred inflows related to pensions are aiso reported in accordance with GASE
Statement No. 68.

Net Pension Liability (94,152,174}
Deferred Outflows Related o Pensions 25,540,146
Deferred Inflows Related 1o Pensions (55,261,715}

$ 144,776,960

322,900,602

7,471,279

(79,140,413)

(123,873,743)

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of the financial statemenits.
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DISTRICT SCHOOQL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Revenuss
Intergovernmental:
Federai Direct
Federal Through State and Leocal
State
Local:
Property Taxes
Sales Taxes
Charges for Food Service
Miscellaneous

Toial Revenues

Expenditures

Current - Education:
Instruction
Student Support Services
Instructional Media Sarvices
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services
Instructional Staff Training Services
Instruction-Related Technology
Board of Education
General Administraticn
School Administration
Facility Services
Fiscal Services
Food Services
Central Services
Student Transportation Services
Operation of Plant
Maintenance of Plant
Administrative Technology Services
Community Services

Fixed Capital Outlay:
Facilities Acquisition and Construction
Other Capital Qutlay

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Flscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Gver Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In
Refunding Bends Issued
Premium on Refunding Bonds
Refunding Centlficates of Perticipation lssued
Premium on Refunding Certificate of Partlcipation
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets
Insurance Loss Recoverles
Payments to Refunding Escrow Agent
Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change In Fund Balances

Fund Balances, July 1, 2014
Fund Balances, June 30, 2015

Special Revenue -
Other Federal
Ganeral Programs
Fund Fund
1,244,398 $ 1,805,013
2,959,728 30,718,202
185,696,149
95,102,045
5,164,860
290,163,280 32,623,215
190,242,698 14,421,707
14,488,821 2,360,835
4,465,171 92,377
5,158,129 5,382,254
3,130,644 5,299,871
2,234,256 1,658,783
1,264,067
824,464 1,410,252
15,569,107 701
705,961 37,221
2,415,327 505
145,162
5,034,008 71,140
15,802,045 372,707
27,267,748 25,134
10,953,267
3,180,336 74,186
452,693 640,738
34,255 39,889
768,123 833,505
304,275,280 32,621,895
{14,111,300) 1,320
8,632,905
3,285,325
11,918,230
(2,193,070) 1,320
53,459,132 370
51,266,062 $ 1,680

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of the financlal statements.
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Capital

Projects - Other Total
Other Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds

$ $ 3 3,046,411
16,708,663 50,386,593

412,385 2,644,859 188,753,373
21,492,708 116,594,753

23,378,775 23,376,775
3,480,641 3,450,641

456,244 54,686 5,675,590
24,245,384 44,381,557 391,314,136
354,807 205,019,212

16,849,656

4,557 548

10,540,383

146,295 8,576,810

3,893,039

1,264,067

3,438 2,238,154

15,569,808

8,720,803 8,434,098 17,898,083
2,415,832

20,025,962 20,171,124

1,667 5,106,813

16,274,752

27,292,882

10,953,267

2,825 3,266,347

1,123,431

20,323,246 7,412,629 27,810,019
221,022 1,622,740

4,768,768 4,768,768

1,618,850 1,618,850

29,044,049 42,991,361 408,832,585
(4,798,666) 1,390,196 (17,518,449)
5,000,000 13,632,905

627,000 627,000

43,383 43,383

19,840,000 19,840,000

2,505,339 2,505,339

1,877,010 1,877,010
3,285,325
{23,126,288) (23,126,288)
(412,365) {13,173,570) (13,585,935)
1,464,645 18,284,136) 5,008,739
{3,334,020) (6,893,040) {12,419,710)
72,662,064 31,075,114 167,196,670
] 69,328,034 $ 24,181,174 $ 144,776,960
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA CQUNTY, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Net Change i Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Amounts reporied for governmental activities in the statement of activities are differant because:

Governmental funds repert capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets s allocated over thelr estimated usaful lives
as depreclation expanse. This Is the amount of capital outlays In excess of depreciation
expense in the current fiscal year.

Capital Outlay - Facilities Acguisition and Construction - Capitalized $  25960,074
Capltal Outlay - Other Capltal Qutlay - Capitallzed 1,622,739
Less, Depreciation Expense (11,891,420}

The statement of activities reflects cnly the gainfloss on the sale of assets, whereas
the governmental funds Include all preceeds from these sales. Thus, the change in
net position differs from the change in fund balances by the cost of assats sold.

Dabt proceseds are reported as financial resources in governmental funds and thus contrlbute
to the change in fund balance. Howaver, in the statement of net positlon, Issuing debt
Increases long-term liabilities and doas not affect the statement of activities. Similarly,
payments to escrow agents are reported as financial uses in the governmental funds but
raduces the liabllity In the statement of net position. Repayment of principal is an
expenditure in the governmental funds, but raducas the liabllity In the statement of net position.
These are the debt refunding and princlpal payments for the current fiscal year;

Refunding Bond Froceeds (627,000)
Premium on Refunding Bonds {43,383)
Refunding Cerfificate of Participation {19,840,000)
Premium on Refunding Certificates of Participation (2,505,339)
Fayment to Refunding Refunding Bond Escrow Agent 860,000
Payment to Refunding Certificate of Participation Escrow Agent 21,840,001
Bond Repayments 1,148,000
Certificate of Partisipation Repayments 3,620,768
Premiums associated with long-term debt issued in the current fiscal year are reported in the
statement of activities, but are not a current financial resource and, therefore, are not
raported in governmental funds. This is the decrease In deforred pramiums during the
current fiscal year:
Bonds Payabhle 78,078
312,128

Certificates of Participation Payable

Governmental funds repert contribufions fo definad benefit penslon plans as expenditures.
However, in the Statement of Activities, the amount contributed to defined benefit pension plans
reduces future net pansicn llabllity and is reported as part of deferred outflows of rescurces.

In the Statement of Activities, pensich expense is recorded for the District's proportionate share
of callective pension expense of the cost sharing definad bensfit plans in which the District
partlclpates. Also Included In pansion expense are amounts requlred fo be amortized in
accordance with GASE Statement No. 68,

In the statement of activities, the cost of compensated absances is measured by the amounts
earned during the fiscal year, whils in gevernmental funds expenditures are recognized based on
the amounts actually paid for compensated absences. This is the net amount of compensated
absences sarned in excess of the amount pald in the current fiscal year.

The net change In the liabllity for post-employment benefits payable is reported in the
government-wide statements, but not in the governmental fund statements.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of sertain aclivities, such as
insurance, to individual funds. The net revenue of internal service funds s reported
with governmental activities.

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanylng noles to the basic financial statements are an Integral part of the financial statements.
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$

(12,419,710)

15,691,383

(1,739,507)

4,253,047

380,204

15,329,995

(7.781,264)

{192,966}

497,505

1,343,331

15,372,028



DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Revenues

Intergovernmental:
Federal Direct
Federal Through State and Local
State
Local:
Property Taxes
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues
Expenditures

Current - Education:
Instruction
Student Support Services
Instructional Media Services
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services
Instruciional Staff Training Services
Instruction-Related Technology
Board of Education
General Administrafion
School Administration
Facllity Services
Fiscal Services
Food Services
Central Services
Student Transportation Services
Operation of Plant
Maintenance of Plant
Administrative Technology Services
Community Services

Fixed Capital Cutlay:
Facilities Acquisition and Construction
Other Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Principal

Total Expenditures

{Excess) Deficiency of Revenues Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In
Insurance Loss Recoveries

Total Other Financing Scurces (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, July 1, 2014

Fund Balances, June 30, 2015

BUDGET TO ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

General Fund
Vartance with
Original Final Final Budget -
Budget Budget Actual Positive
Amouints Amounts Amounts {Negative}
$ 1,100,000 $ 1,241,398 $ 1,241,398 $
2,121,456 2,950,728 2,950,728
189,364,921 185,094,663 185,696,149 (298,514)
91,061,655 05,102,045 95,102,045
3,868,343 5,173,524 5,164,660 (8.864)
287,507,375 290,471,358 280,163,980 (307,378)
186,278,289 201,549,455 190,242,698 11,306,757
14,462,530 15,383,853 14,488,821 895,082
4,448,815 4,811,338 4,465,171 346,167
4,775,244 5,210,548 5,158,129 52,417
3,234,897 3,807,315 3,130,644 676,671
2,175,365 2,227,281 2,234,256 (6,975)
1,265,167 1,679,083 1,264,067 415,016
679,395 850,784 824,464 35,320
15,021,802 15,884,979 15,569,107 315,872
1,920,438 1,569,758 705,961 863,797
3,115,441 3,220,405 2,415,327 805,078
152,441 145,162 7,278
6,642,328 6,772,002 5,034,006 1,738,986
16,111,873 17,452 631 15,002,045 1,550,586
29,413,876 29,427,574 27,267,748 2,159,826
11,701,382 14,537,384 10,953,267 3,584,117
3,308,666 3,379,666 3,189,336 120,330
783,703 863,652 482,693 380,958
20,589 34,255 (13,668)
673,920 1,174,147 768,123 406,024
10,000 10,000 10,000
306,052,331 320,904,873 304,275,280 25,719,593
(18,544,956) {39,523,515) (14,111,300} 25,412,215
8,007,949 8,632,905 8,632,905
3,285,325 3,285,325
8,007,849 11,918,230 11,918,230
(10,537,007} (27,605,285) (2,193,070} 25,412,216
53,459,132 53,458,132 53,459,132
$ 42,822,125 $ 25,853,847 $ 51,266,062 § 25412,215

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET TO ACTUAL - MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Revenues

Intergovernmental:
Federal Direct
Federal Through Staie and Local

Total Revenues
Expenditures

Current - Education:
Instruction
Student Support Services
Instruciional Media Services
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services
Instructional Staff Training Services
Instruction-Related Technology
General Administration
School Administration
Facility Services
Fiscal Services
Central Services
Student Transportation Services
Oparation of Plant
Maintenance of Plant
Administrative Technology Services
Community Services

Fixed Capital Outlay:
Facilities Acquisition and Construction
Other Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, July 1, 2014

Fund Balances, June 30, 2015

Other Federal Programs Fund

Variance with

Original Final Final Budgef -
Budget Budget Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts Amounts {Negative)
$ 1,400,431 $ 1,805,013 $ 1,805,013 $
38,615,852 34,669,026 30,718,202 (3,950,824}
40,016,283 36,474,039 32,623,215 {3.950,824)

18,868,782 15,393,444 14,421,707 971,737
2,720,180 2,584,565 2,360,835 223,730
44,203 92,453 92,377 76
5,768,000 5,747,496 5,382,254 365,242
8,204,378 7,094,756 5,299,871 1,794,885
1,828,263 1,824,318 1,658,783 165,535
1,211,630 1,510,915 1,410,252 100,663
3,266 4,820 701 4,119

57,595 37,221 37,221

505 505
88,849 83,983 71,140 12,843
1,022,483 408,705 372,707 35,998
37,981 32,024 25,134 6,890

500

71,555 74,186 74,186

120,596 640,738 640,738

22,924 39,889 39,880
1,165,459 904,391 633,505 270,796
40,016,653 36,474,408 32,521,895 3,852,614
{370) (370} 1,320 1,680
(370) (370) 1,320 1,690

370 370 370
$ $ $ 1,690 $ 1,680

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2015

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Due From Other Funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Unearned Revenue
Estimated Insurance Claims Payable
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Estimated Insurance Claims Payable
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET POSITION

Resftricted for Employee Benefits
Total Net Position

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Service
Funds

$

39,711,464
13,622

39,725,086

243,288
1,377,076
3,559,654
5,650,609

10,839,627

21,414,180

21,414,180

32,253,807

7,471,278

7,471,279

$

39,725,086




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

OPERATING REVENUES
Premium Revenues
Cther
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Purchased Services
Energy Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Outlay
Insurance Claims
Other
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income
NONOPERATING REVENUES
Interest
Total Nonoperating Revenues
Income Before Transfers
Transfers Out
Change in Net Position
NET POSITION

Total Net Position, July 1, 2014
Total Net Position, June 30, 2015

Governmental
Activilies -
Internal
Service
Funds

44,064,264
860,963

44,915,227

486,634
140,234
5,512,910
16,118
5,227
3,536
34,379,940
2,985,863

43,530,462

1,384,765

5,536

5,536

1,320,301

(46,970)

1,343,331

6,127,948

7471,279

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements,
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Board Funds and Participants
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services
Cash Payments fo Employees for Services
Cash Payments for Interfund Services
Cash Payments for Insurance Claims

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers to Other Funds
Net Cash Used by Noncapital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Income
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginning Cash and Cash Equivalents

Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease in Accounts Receivable
Decrease in Due From Other Funds
Increase in Accounts Payable
Decrease in Due to Other Funds
Increase in Due to Cther Agencies
Decrease in Unearned Revenue
Increase in Estimated Insurance Claims Payable
Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Service
Funds

$ 44928615
(8,290,284}
(626,868)
(285,907)
(34,749,127)

976,429

(46,970)

(46,970)

5,536

5,536

934,995

38,776,469

$ 39,711,464

$ 1,384,765

20,056
(13,622)
114,203

(285,908)

(1,272)
127,394
(369,187)

(408,336}

$ 976,429




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES -

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2015

Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Cash $ 2,847,945
- LIABILITIES
Internal Accounts Payable 2,792,528
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 55,417
Total Liabilities $ 2,847,945

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

» Reporting Entity

The Escambia County District School Board (Board) has direct responsibility for operation,
control, and supervision of District schools and is considered a primary government for
financial reporting. The District School Board of Escambia County (District) is considered part
of the Flonda system of public education. The governing body of the District is the Board,
which is composed of five elected members, The elected Superintendent of Schools is the
executive officer of the Board. Geographic boundaries of the District correspond with those of
Escambia County.

Criteria for determining if other entities are potential component units which should be
reported within the District’s basic financial statements are 1dentified and described in the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) Codification of Governmental Awonnting and
Financial Reporting Standards, Sections 2100 and 2600, 'The application of these criteria provides
for identification of any entities for which the Board is financially accountable and other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the Board are such
that exclusion would cause the District’s basic financial statements to be misleading,

Based on the application of these criterta, the following component units are included within
the Board’s reporting entity:

s Blended Component Unit. The Escambia School District Employee Benefit Trust
(Trust) has been established to administer the District’s employee life, health, and
dental insurance programs. Assets necessary to fund the programs are transferred to
the Trust; however, under the terms of the Trust Agreement, the Board retains control
of the assets. Due to the substantive economic relationship between the District and
the Trust, the financial activities of the Trust are reported in the accompanying basic
financial statements as an mrernal service fund.

» Discretely Presented Component Units. The component units columns in the basic
financial statements, include the financial data of the District’s other component units,
as follows:

The Escambia County Public Schools Foundation for Excellence, Inc. (Foundation} is
a separate not-for-profit corporation organized and operated as a direct-support
organization under
Section 1001.453, Florida Statutes, and, as such, the Foundation is approved by the
Board. The Foundation was formed to provide charitable and educational aid to the
District and to receive, hold, invest, and admintster property and to make expenditures
for the benefit of the District, which is able to impose its will on the Foundation.

Charter schools are separate not-for-profit corporations each with a separate board of
directors organized pursuant to Chapter 617, Florida Statutes, the Florida Not for
Profit Corporation Act, and Section 1002.33, Florida Statutes. Charter schools operate
under a charter of the sponsoring school district and are considered component units
according to the interpretation of GASB Statement No. 61 by the Flotida Department
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

of Education which determined that Florida school districts are financially accountable
for Florida charter schools. The District has entered into charters with the following
charter schools that are considered part of the District’s reporting entity:

Escambia Charter School, Inc., was established to provide an alternate educational
system for “at risk” students.

Capstone Academy Pensacola was established to provide exceptional student
educational services to handicapped prekindergarten students.

Jaqueline Harris Preparatory Academy was established to provide alternate programs of
education, training, and related services for elementary students who are considered “at
risk” of academic failure. Jaqueline Harris Preparatory Academy, operated by New
Road to Learning, Inc., is a separate not-for-profit entity.

Beulah Academy of Science, Inc., was established to provide an agriculture and science
program for middle school students.

Byrneville Elementary School, Inc., and Pensacola Beach Elementary School, Inc., were
established to provide education, training, and related services to elementary school
students.

Five Flags Elementary School (21 Century Academy of Pensacola, Inc) was
established to provide education, training, and related services to elementary school
students.  21st Century Academy of Pensacola, Inc. elected to close Five Flags
Elementary School effective June 30, 2015 due to financial concerns related to the
closure of Newpoint Pensacola Academy Middle School and Newpoint Pensacola High
School.

Newpoint Pensacola Academy Middle School (21 Century Academy of Pensacola,
Inc.) was established to provide education, training, and related services to middle
school students. Due to contractual violations, Newpoint Pensacola Academy Middle
School was closed by School Board action effective June 30, 2015,

Newpoint Pensacola Tligh School (21 Century Academy of Pensacola, Inc) was
established to provide education, training, and related services to high school students.
Due to contractual violations, Newpoint Pensacola Iigh School was closed by School
Board action effective June 30, 2015.

Audits of the Foundation’s financial statements and the charter schools’ financial
statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, are conducted by an independent
certified public accountant and are filed in the District’s administrative office at 75 North
Pace Boulevard, Pensacols, Flonda,

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The accounting and fmancial reporting treatment applied to a fund i determined by its
measurement focus. The basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting
relates to the timing of the measwrement made, regardless of the measurement focus
applied.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Government-wide Finaneial Statements - The Government-wide financial statements are
prepared under the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time
liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash transaction takes place.
Nonexchange transactions in which the District gives or receives value without directly
receiving or giving value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements and
donations, On an accrual basis, revene from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year
for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is
recognized m the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities present financial
information about the District’s governmental activities. These statements include the
financial activities of the government in its entirety, except for those that are fiduciary.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and inter-governmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which are generally
supported by fees charged The District currently does not have any business-type
activities.

The Statement of Net Position includes all assets, liabilities, and deferred outflows/ inflows
of the District. The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between the direct
expenses and program revenues for each function or program of the District’s
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a
program of function and, therefore, are clearly idemtifiable to a particular function.
Depreciation expenses are allocated to functions based on actual and estimated usage of the
assets in those functions,

Amounts reported as program revenues include: 1) charges for services provided to
students for tuition, fees, rental, material, supplies, or other services, 2) operating grants and
contributions, and 3) capﬂ:a[ grants and comributions. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. The comparison
of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental
function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the District.

The effects of interfund activity have been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements except for interfund services provided and used.

Fund Financial Statements - The Governmental Fund Financial Statements are prepared
utilizing the current financial resource measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting, Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become
susceptible to accrual, that is, both measurable and available, “Measurable” means the
amount of transaction can be determined and “available® means collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay lLiabilities of the current period.
Significant revenues “susceptible to accrual” include ad valorem taxes, reimbursable-type
grants, and interest on investments. The District considers revenues from property taxes as
available if they are collected within sixty (60} days after fiscal year-end. Expenditures are
recorded when the fund liability is incurred. Ilowever, exceptions include unmuatured
principal and interest on general long-term debt and accumulated sick and vacation pay,
which are recorded when payment is due,

In applying the “susceptible to accrual” concept to revenues from Federal and State
sources, the legal contractual requirements of the numerous individual programs are used as
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guidance. There are, however, essentially two types of revenues. In one type, moneys must
be expended for the specific purpose or project before the District will recerve any
amounts; therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the occurrence of the expenditure.
In the other type, moneys are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are
usually revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed legal and contractual
requirements. These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if
the “susceptible to accrual” criteria are met. In all cases, moneys received before the
revenue recognition criteria have been met, are reported as advanced revenue.

Agency (Fiduciary) funds are purely custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and as such
do not have a measurement focus. Agency funds use the accrual basis of accounting to
recognize receivables and payables.

The Proprietary Fund Financial Statements are prepared under the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting,

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating irems.
Operating reverues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operauons
'The principal operating revenues of the District’s internal service funds are for self-
insurance (property, casualty, liability, and workers’ compensation), employee benefits
(health and prescription), and warehousing provided to other funds. Operating expenses
for the internal service funds include salaries, employee benefits, purchased services, encrgy
services, materials and supplies, capital outlay, and insurance claims. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The fund statements provide information about the District’s funds, including fiduciary
funds. Separate statements for each fund category- governmental, proprietary, and
fiduciary - are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major funds,
each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and

reported as non-major funds. The District reports the following major governmental
funds:

e General Fund - to accoumt for all financial resources not required to be accounted for
in another fund, and for certain revenues from the State that are legally restricted to be
expended for specific current operating purposes.

»  Special Revenue - Other Federal Programs Fund - to account for certain Federal grant
Program resources.

o Capital Projects - Other Fund - to account for the financial resources generated by the
local voted sales tax and various other financial resources restricted for educational
capital outlay needs, including new construction, renovation, and remodeling projects.

Additionally, the District reports the following proprietary and fiduciary fund types:

e Internal Service Funds - to account for the District’s individual self-mnsurance
programs.
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»  Agency Funds - to account for resources of the District’s pre-tax flexible benefits plan
and the school internal funds, which are used to administer moneys collected at the
schools in connection with school, student athletic, class, and club activities.

Discretely Presented Component Units — The Foundation is accounted for under the not-
for-profit basis of accounting and uses the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues
are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Except for the Capstone Academy Pensacola, the charter schools are accounted for as
governmental organizations and follow the same accounting model as the District’s
governmental activities. The Capstone Academy Pensacola is accounted for under the not-
for-profit basis of accounting and uses the accrual basts of accounting,

During the course of operations the District has activity between funds for various
purposes. Any residual balances outstanding at fiscal year-end are reported as due from/to
other funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain
eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements.
Balances between the funds included in governmental activities (i.e., the governmental and
internal service funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal
balances m the governmental activities columa,

Further, certain activity occurs during the fiscal year involving transfers of resources
between funds. In fund financial statements, these amounts are reported at gross amounts
as transfers in and out. While reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are
made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Transfers between
the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is
inchuded as transfers in the governmental activities cohimn.

Net Position / Fund Balance Flow Assumptions

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s
policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
When committed, assigned, or unassigned resources are available for use in governmental
fund financial statements, it is the District’s policy to use committed resources first,
followed by assigned resources, and then unassigned resources as they are needed.

Fund Balance Policies

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature
of any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The District itself
can establish limitations on the use of resources through either a commitment (committed
fund balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance).

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the
specific purposes determined by a formal action of the District’s highest level of decision-
making authority. 'The Board is the highest level of decision-making authority for the
District that can, by adoption of a resolution prior to the end of the fiscal year, comimit
fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the resolution remains in place
untif a similar action is taken (the adoption of another resolution) to remove or revise the

Limitation.
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Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the District
for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. The Board
has by resolution authorized the finance director to assign fund balance. The Board may
also assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between
estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year’s appropriated budget, Unlike
commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily, In other words, an additional
action does not normally have to be talken for the removal of an assignment. Conversely, as
discussed above, an additional action is essential to either remove or revise a commitment,

Deposits and Investments

The District’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand
deposits, and short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less. Investments classified as cash equivalents include amounts placed with the State
Board of Administration (SBA) in Florida PRIME.

Cash deposits are held by banks qualified as public depositories under Florida law. All
deposits are msured by Federal depository insurance, up to specified limits, or collateralized
with securities held in Florida’s multiple, financial institution collateral pool, as required by
Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. The statement of cash flows considers cash and cash
equivalents as those amounts in demand deposit accounts and all highly liquid investments
with an original maturity of three months or Jess.

Investments consist of amounts placed in SBA Debt Service accounts for investment of
debt service moneys, amounts placed with SBA for participation in the Florida PRIME, and
those made locally. Investments made locally consist of:

(1) Intergovernmental investment pool made up of money market mutual funds and
various short-term government bond funds. The intergovernmental investment pool is
reported at fair value and is described in a subsequent note on investments.

(2) Government bonds.

(3) Brokered certificates of deposits {CDs).
(4) Commercial paper.

(5) Treasury notes.

(6) US. Government bond funds.

The District’s investments in Florida PRIME, which SBA indicates is a Securities and
Exchange Commission Rule 2a7-like external investment pool, as of June 30, 2015, are
similar t0 money market funds in which shares are owned in the fund rather than the
underlying investments, These investments are reported at fair value, which is amortized
cost. Florida PRIME operates under investment guidelines established by Section 21547,
Florida Statutes.
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» Inventories

Inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption in the course of District
operations, Material stores, maintenance stores, custodial stores, transportation stores, and
purchased food and lunchroom supply inventories are stated at cost on the first-in, first-out
basis. Fuel nventories are stated at an average-cost basis. The United States Department
of Agriculture surplus donated foods are stated at their fair value, as determined at the time
of donation to the District’s food service program by the Florida Department of
Agriculture and Consumer Services, Bureau of Food Distribution, The costs of inventories
are recorded as expenditures when used rather than purchased.

» Capital Assets

Expenditures for capital assets acquired or constructed for general District purposes are
reported in the governmental fund that financed the acquisition or construction. The
capital assets so acquired are reported at cost in the government-wide statement of net
position but are not reported in the governmental fund financial statements. Capital assets
are defined by the District as those costing more than $5,000. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated assets are
recorded at fair value at the date of donation. Interest costs incurred during the
construction of capital assets are not considered material and are not capitalized as part of
the cost of construction,

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives;

Description Estimated Lives

Improvements Other than Buildings 15 years
Buildings and Fixed Equipment 20 - 55 years
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment 5 - 15 years
Motor Vehicles 10 - 20 years
Audio Visual Materials and Computer Software 10 - 15 years

Current fiscal year mnformation relative to changes in capital assets is described in a
subsequent note.

» Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term obligations that will be financed from resources to be received in the future by
governmental funds are reported as liabilities in the government-wide statement of net
position. Bond and Certificates of Participation (COP) premiums and discounts are
amortized over the life of the debt using the effective interest method. Bonds and COP
payable are reported net of the applicable premiums or discounts.
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In the governmental fund financial statements, bonds and other long-term obligations are
not recognized as liabilities until due. Governmental fund types recognize premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt
issued and premiums on debt issuance are reported as other financing sources, ‘while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether
or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures,

Changes in long-term liabiities for the current fiscal year are reported in a subsequent note.

Compensated Absences

The criteria for determining compensated absences (ie., paid absences for employee
vacation and sick leave benefit) Hability are derived from Board policy, negotiated
agreements, and State law. Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are
earned if the employee’s right to recetve compensation is attributable to services already
rendered and it is probable that the employer will compensate the employees for the
benefits through paid time off or some other means. Sick leave benefits are accrued as a
liability using the vesting method. The liability is based on the sick Jeave accumulated at
fiscal year-end by those employees who are currently eligible to treceive termination
payments and those employees for whom it is probable they will become eligible to receive
termination benefits in the future. Compensated absences include applicable salary related
payments for Social Security, Medicare, and retirement contributions.

In the government-wide financial statements, compensated absences are accrued as
liabilities to the extert that it is probable that the benefits will result in termination
payments. A liability is reported for compensated absences in the governmental fund
financial statements only if they have matured (ie., unused reimbursable leave still
outstanding following an employee’s resignation or retirement).

Changes in compensated absences for the current fiscal year are reported in a subsequent
note.

State Revenue Sources

Revenues from State sources for current operations are primarily from the Florida
Education Finance Program administered by the Florida Department of Education
(Department) under the provisions of Section 1011.62, Florida Statutes. In accordance
with this law, the District determines and reports the number of full-time equivalent (FTE)
students and related data to the Department. The Department performs certain edit checks
on the reported mumber of FTE and related data, and calculates the allocation of funds to
the District. 'The District is permitted to amend its original reporting according to a
calendar established by the Department. Such amendments may impact funding allocations
for subsequent fiscal years, The Department may also adjust subsequent fiscal period
allocations based upon an audit of the District’s compliance in determining and reporting
FTE and related data. Normally, such adjustments are treated as reductions or additions of
revenue in the fiscal year when the adjustments are made.

The State provides financial assistance to administer certain educational programs. State
Board of Education (SBE) rules require that revenue earmarked for certain programs be
expended only for the program for which the money is provided, and require that the
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money not expended as of the close of the fiscal year be carried forward into the following
fiscal year to be expended for the same educational programs. The Department generally
requires that these educational program revenues be accounted for in the General Fund, A
portion of the fund balance of the General Fund is restricted in the governmental fund
financial statements for the unspent balance of categorical and earmarked educational
program resources.

A schedule of revenue from State sources for the current fiscal year is presented in a
subsequent note,

District Property Taxes

The Board is authorized by State law to levy property taxes for District school operations,
capital improvements, and debt service.

Property taxes consist of ad valorem taxes on real and personal property within the District,
Property values are determined by the Escambia County Property Appraiser, and property
taxes are collected by the Escambia County Tax Collector,

'The School Board adopted the 2014 tax levy on September 16, 2014, Tax bills are mailed
in October and taxes are payable between November 1 of the year assessed and March 31
of the following year at discounts of up to 4 percent for early payment.

Taxes become a lien on the property on January 1, and are delinquent on April 1 of the year
following the year of assessment. State law provides for enforcement of collection of
personal property taxes by seizure of the property to satisfy unpaid taxes, and for
enforcement of collection of real property taxes by the sale of interest-bearing tax
certificates to satisfy unpaid taxes. The procedures result in the collection of essentially all
taxes prior to June 30 of the year following the year of assessment.

Property tax revenues are recognized in the government-wide financial statements when the
Board adopts the tax levy. Property tax revenues are recognized in the governmental fund
financial statements when taxes are received by the District, except that revenue is accrued
for taxes collected by the Escambia County Tax Collector at fiscal year-end but not yet
remitted to the District.

Millages and taxes levied for the current fiscal year are presented in a subsequent note.

School Capital Outlay Surtax

The citizens of Escambia County, on September 5, 2006, approved a 0.5 percent school
capital outlay sales surtax authorized under Section 212 055(6) Florida Statutes. The surtax
was authorized for a period of ten years, proceeds of which are to be used for fixed capital
expenditures or fixed capital costs associated with the construction, reconstruction, or
improvement of school facilities and campuses which have a useful life expectancy of five
or more years, and retrofitting and technology implementation and any land acqmsn;lon,
land improvement, design, and engineering costs related thereto.

Federal Revenue Sources

The District receives Federal awards for the enhancement of various educational programs.
Federal awards are generally received based on applications submitted to, and approved by,
various granting agencies. For Federal awards in which a claim to these grant proceeds is
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based on incurring eligible expenditures, revenue is recognized to the extent that eligible
expenditures have been incurred.

BUDGETARY COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board follows procedures established by State Statutes and SBE rules in establishing budget
balances for governmental funds, as described below:

> Budgets are prepared, public hearings are held, and original budgets are adopted annually
for all governmental fund types in accordance with procedures and time iniervals
prescribed by law and SBE rules,

> Appropriations are controlled at the object level (e.g., salaries, purchased services, and
capital outlay) within each activity (e.g., instruction, student personnel services, and school
administration) and may be amended by resolution at any Board meeting no later than the
due date for the annual financial report.

» Budgets are prepared using the same modified accrual basis as is used to account for
governmental funds.

» Budgetary information is integrated into the accounting system and, to facilitate budget
control, budget balances are encumbered when purchase orders are issued. Appropriations
lapse at fiscal year-end and encumbrances outstanding are honored from the subsequent
fiscal year’s appropriations.
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3. INVESTMENTS

As of June 30, 2015, the District has the following investments and maturities:

Investment Matutities Fair Value

Bank of America Treasury Reserves (1)(2) 6 Day Average 5 684333
State Board of Administration :

Florida PRIME (2) 37 Day Average 176,065

Debt Service Accounts 6 months 63,526
Sales Tax Investment Portfolio

Governmert Bonds 3.74 Years 27,833,989

Certificates of Deposit (Brokered) 33 Days 5,513,463

Commercial Paper 11 Days 12,477,420

U.S. Treasury Notes 1.87 vears 2,543,902

First American Gov Obligations (2) 46 Days 33,537
Florida Fixed Income Trust (FL FI'T)

Florida FI'T 90 211 Day Average 25,216,544

Florida FIT 180 289 Day Average 2,495,553

Florida FIT 1 Year 631 Day Average 1,543,840
Total Investments, Pamary Government § 78582172

Notes: (1) These investments are held under trust agreements in connection with the

Certificates of Participation, Series 1996, 2002, 2004, 2005, 2006, and 2014
financing arrangements,

2) Investments reported as cash equivalents for financial statement reportin
q P B
purposes.

Interest Rate Risk

>

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. In order to provide sufficient liquidity to pay obligations as they become
due, the District’s investment policy limits the length of mvestments as follows: (1)
investments of current operating funds shall have maturities of no longer than two years,
and (2) investments of bond reserves, construction funds, and other nonoperating funds
shall bave a term appropriate for the need for the funds and in accordance with debt
covenants, but in no event shall exceed five yeats.

The District’s investments in Florida PRIME, First American Government Obligations
Fund, Centificates of Deposit (CDs}), and Commercial Paper (CP) had weighted average
maturities (WAMs) of 37 days, 46 days, 33 days, and 11 days, respectively, at June 30, 2015.

"The District’s portfolio of Government Bonds and U.S. Treasury Notes had WAMs of 3.74
vears and 1.87 years, respectively, at June 30, 2015,

Florida Fixed Income Trust (FL FIT) had the following WAM for each portfolio: FL, FIT
90 ~ 211 days, FL FIT 18C - 28% days, FL FI'T 1 Year - 631 days.

A portfolio’s WAM reflects the average maturity in days or years based on final maturity or
reset date, in the case of floating rate instruments, WAM measures the sensitivity of the
portfolio to mterest rate changes,
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> As of June 3C, 2015, the District has the following interest rate risk by fund:

Investanent by Fund Fair Value lnvestmet Nbiis
Greater than

SkMonds  SwMonhsto  Greaterthan

orLess TwoYews  Two Yeas
Major Govemmental Fungs:
Genetal § 70§ 7% 8 750
Capiial Projets- Other 66,333,}43 18,188 538 20310816 33398
Nonmajor Gosernimenta 5173981 730066 {41915
Total Investments § ORI S MM 31080 27 833989

Note: Tawestments that have ongnal s of three months or lss ae consicered cash eqvaes for fnencl
StATORTE pIpose,

Credit Risk

»  Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The District’s investtnent policy limits authorized investments to the SBA
Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund Investment Pool, which is known as Florida
PRIME; direct obligations of the United States Government Agencies; certain Federal
Instrumentalities; interest-bearing time deposits or savings accounts in qualified public
depositories, as defined in Section 280.02, Florida Statutes; repurchase agreements secured
by the collateral composed of negotiable direct obligations of the United States
Government, Government Agencies, and Federal Instrumentalities that have a market
value of 102 percent of the value of the repurchase agreement; commercial paper of the
highest credit rating; certain Banker’s Acceptances; certain highly rated state and local
government taxable or tax-exempt debt; shares of open-end, no-load mutual funds
registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, provided that the portfolio invests
primarily in short-term government bonds and money market funds operated in accordance
with 17 CFR 270.2a-7, provided the funds are rated no lower than the credit rating applied
to the United States government by Standard & Poor’s, or the equivalent by another rating
agency; and any intergovernmental investment pool authorized pursuant to the Florida
Interlocal Cooperation Act, as provided in Section 163.01, Florida Statutes, provided that -
the said funds contain no derivatives. Investment in any derivative products or the use of
reverse repurchase agreements requires specific Board approval.
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As of June 30, 2015, the District’s investments are rated as follows:

o 'The District’s investments in First American Government Obligations Fund and Bank
of America Treasury Reserves are rated AAAm by Standard and Poor’s and Aaa-mf by
Moody's Investors Service.

o The District’s mvestments in the SBA Florida PRIME are rated AAAm by Standard &
Poor’s.

o 'The District’s investiments in Government Bonds, and CPs are rated Aaa by Moody’s.

o The District’s ivestments in Brokered CDs are FDIC insured to $250,000, therefore
the credit rating of the U.S, Government is implied.

¢ 'The District’s investments i1 FL FIT are unrated.

o The District’s investments in the SBA Debt Service Accounts are to provide for debt
service payments on bond debt issued by the SBE for the benefit of the District. The
Dustrict relies on policies developed by the SBA for managing credit risk for this
account.

Custodial Credit Risk

» Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to a transaction, the District will not be able to recover the value of
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Section
218.415(18), Florida Statutes, requires the District to earmark all investments and 1) if
registered with the Issuer or its agents, the investment must be immediately placed for
safekeeping in a location that protects the governing body’s interest in the security; 2) if in
book entry form, the investment must be held for the credit of the governing body by a
depository chartered by the Federal Government, the State, or any other state or territory
of the United States which has a branch or principal place of business in this State, or by a
national association organized and existing under the laws of the United States which is
authorized to accept and execute trusts and which is doing business in this State, and must
be kept by the depository in an account separate and apart from the assets of the financial
institution; or 3) if physically issued to the holder but not registered with the issuer or its
agents, must be immediately placed for safekeeping in a secured vault. The District’s
investment policy requires that securities shall be held with a third-party custodian; and all
securities purchased by and all collateral obtained by the District should be properly
designated as an asset of the District. As of June 30, 2015, all investments are held with an
appropriate custodian or trustee or are held in accounts in the name of and belonging to the
District.

All District investments are in compliance with District policy in relation to interest rate risk,
credit risk, and custodial credit risk,
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Concentration of Credit Risk

> Concentration of credit risk is associated with potential loss of assets atiributed to the
portion of investment in a single issuer or issue size. The District’s investment policy has
established asset allocation and issuer limits according to the following investment types:

The Florida Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund (Florida PRIME)

Portfolio Composition: A maximum of 35% of available funds may be invested in Florida
PRIME.

United States Government Securities

Portfolio Composition: A maximum of 75% of available funds may be invested in the
Untted States Government Securities with no more than 10% of those funds invested in
any one issue size (per CUSIP).

Uhited States Government Agencies

Portfolic Composition: A maximum of 50% of available funds may be invested in United
States Government agencies.

Limits on Individual Issuers: A maximum of 25% of available funds may be invested in
individual United States Government agencies with no more than 10% of those funds
invested in any one issue size (per CUSIP),

Federal Instrumentalities (United States Government sponsored agencies)

Porttolio Composition: A maximum of 50% of available funds may be mvested in Federal
Instrumentalities.

Limits on Individual Issuers: A maximum of 25% of available funds may be invested in
individual Federal Instrumentality security with no more than 10% of those funds invested
In any one issue size {per CUSIP).

Interest Bearing Time Deposit or Saving Accounts
Portfolio Composition: A maximum of 25% of available funds may be invested in non-

negotiable interest bearing time certificates of deposit (CD’s).

Limits on Individual Issuers: A maximum of 15% of available funds may be deposited with
any one CD,

Repurchase Agreements

Portfolio Composition: A maximum of 50% of available funds may be invested in
repurchase agreements excluding one business day agreements and overnight sweep
agreements.

Limits on Individual Issuers: A maximum of 15% of available funds may be invested with
any one institution.
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Commercial Paper
Portfolio Composition: A maximum of 35% of available funds may be directly invested in

prime commercial paper.

Limits on Individual Issuers: A maximum of 10% of available funds may be invested i any
one issuer with no more than 5% of those funds invested in any one issue size.

Registered Investment Companies (Mutual Funds and Money Markets)

Portfolio Composition: A maximum of 20% of available funds may be invested in mutual
funds (investing in short-term government bonds) and 75% of available funds may be
invested in money market funds.

Limits on Individual Issuers: A maximum of 20% of available funds may be invested with
any one mutual fund or money market fund.

Intergovernmental Investment Pool
Portfolio Composition: A maximum of 50% of available funds may be invested in

intergovernmental investment pools,

Limits on Individual Issuers: A maximum of 25% of available funds may be invested with
any one Irtergovernmental mvestment pool (excludes Florida PRIME).

RECEIVABLES

The majority of receivables are due from other agencies. These receivables and the remaining
accounts receivable are considered to be fully collectible. As such, no allowance for uncollectible
receivables is accrued.
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CHANGES IN CAPITAIL ASSETS

Changes in capital assets are presented in the table below.

Balance Additions Deletions Balance
7-1-14 6-30-15
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land $ 9430302 § 16377  § 66,291 § 9,380,388
Construction in Progress 21,888,103 19,147,225 40,654,004 381,324
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 31,318,405 19,163,602 40,720,295 9761,712
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Improvements Other Than Buildings 17,801,449 610,711 1,062,669 17,349,491
Buildings and Fixed Equipment 386,072,774 40,346,045 5462,877 420,956,542
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment 15,369,341 1,251,894 520,024 16,101,211
Motor Vehicles 41,604,624 6,783,964 998,822 47,389,766
Audio Visual Materials and
Computer Software 9,025,774 80,000 10,005,774
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 470,773,962 49,073,214 8,044,392 511,802,784
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Improvements Other Than Buildings 8,499,239 1,034,515 746,824 8,786,930
Buildings and Fixed Equipment 149,535,247 7415477 4,360,714 152,590,010
Furniture, Fixtares, and Equipment 10,637,219 863,332 459,187 11,041,364
Motor Vehicles 17,248,351 2,210,385 804,452 18,654,284
Audio Visual Materials and
Computer Software 7,223,594 367,711 7,591,305
Toal Accurnulated Depreciation 193,143,650 11,891,420 6,371,177 198,663,893
Total Capital Assets Being Depteciated, Net 277 630,312 37,181.794 1,673,215 313,138,891
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net § 308948717 § 56345396 $ 42393510 5 322,900,603
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Function Amount
GOVERNMENTAL ACTTVITIES

Instruction $ 7,981,092
Student Personnel Services 10,084
Instructional Media Services 7,049
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 100,053
Instructional Staff Training Services 1,741
Instruction Related Technology 343,228
Board of Education 739
General Administration 1,038
School Administration 18,978
Facility Services 206,236
Hiscal Services 2,033
Food Services 348,854
Central Services 106,452
Student Transportation Services 1,978,056
Operation of Plant 86,469
Maintenance of Plant 329,064
Administrative Technology Services 366,017
Community Services 4,237

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities § 11,891,420

SCHOOL DISTRICT LOAN PROGRAM

In accordance with the School District Loan Program authorized by Chapter 2006-25, Laws of
Florida, the District applied for and received an interest-free loan from the Florida Department of
Education totaling $2,571,706, which is included as a liability of the General Fund. The loan
enabled the District to meet operating expenses while awaiting resolution of litigation regarding
school property taxes for Pensacola Beach property owners, Loan provisions require District
personnel to notify the Florida Department of Education within 5 business days after the
resolution of the litigation. Repayment of the loan must be made within 20 business days following
the resolution of the litigation or the District may submit a repayment plan not to exceed two fiscal

years,
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CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION

The District entered into financing arrangements, characterized as lease purchase agreements, with
the Florida School Boards Association, Inc., whereby the District secured financing of various
educational facilities, The financing was accomphshed through the issuance of Certificates of
Participation to be repaid from the proceeds of rents paid by the District. The following schedule
describes the current status of the principal balances of these issues at June 30, 2015:

Original Principal Refunded Balance
Tssue Amount Paid Refunded By Series 6-30-15
Series 1992 $ 55830000 § 15030000 § 40,800,000 1996-1,2002 §
Series 1996-1 26,740,000 6,485,000 20,255,000 2005, 2006, 2011
Series 1996-2 21,645,000 21,645,000 2004
Sertes 2002 16,745,000 16,745,000
Series 2004 22,725,000 §85,00C 21,840,000 2014
Series 2005 10,30C,000 709,355 9,290,645
Series 2006 10,600,000 10,000,000
Series 2011 1,124,561 1,124,561
Series 2014 19,840,000 19,840,000
§ 184649561 § 50978916  § 104,540,000 $ 29,130,645

As a condition of the financing arrangements, the District has given ground leases on District
property to the Florida School Boards Association, Inc. 'The ground leases on the property
associated with the Serles 1992, 1996-1, 2002, 2005, 2006, and 2011 Certificates end on the earlier
of (a) the date on which the Series 1996-1, 2005, 2006, and 2011 Certificates, and any Certificates
of Participation refunding such Certificates, have been paid in full or provision for their payment
has been made, or (b) June 30, 2028. The ground leases on the propetty associated with the Series
1996-2, 2004, and 2014 Certificates end on the earlier of (a) the date on which the senes of
Certificates has been paid in full, or (b) June 30, 2022. The properties covered by the ground leases
are, together with the improvements constructed thereon from the financing proceeds, leased back
to the District. If the District fails to renew the leases and to provide for the rent payments
through to term, the District may be required to surrender the sites included under the ground
lease agreements for the benefit of the securers of the Certificates wntil the end of the ground
leases.

The District properties included in the ground leases under these arrangements include the
following:

Certificates of Participation Series 1992, 1996-1, 2002, 2005, 2006, and 2011;

¢ Hellen Caro Elementary School
o CA. Weis Elementary School
+ R.C Lipscomb Elementary School
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Jim Allen Elementary School — Administrative Suite/Media Center

Bellview Elementary School - Classroom Building

Cordova Park Elementary School - Five Classroom Additions/Media Center
Escambia Westgate Center — Pre-Kindergarten Classroom Renovation

Holm Elementary School - Classrooms/Media Center

Mpyrtle Grove Elementary School - Classroom Addition

Navy Point Elementary School - Classroom Addition/ Administrative Suite

Pine Meadow Elementary School ~ Media Center/Kindergarten
Classrooms/ Administrative Suite

Pleasant Grove Elementary School - Dining/ Classroom Addition/ Administrative Suite
Scenic Heights Elementary Schiool — Pre-Kindergarten Classrooms/Media Center
Sherwood Elementary School - Pre-Kindergarten Classrooms/Media Center

Jim C. Bailey Middle School

Northview High School

West Florida School of Advanced Technology (the portion formerly known as Beggs
Educational Center and used primarily for instructional purposes)

Tate High School - Physical Education Facility

Certificates of Participation Series 1996-2, 2004, and 2014:

N.B. Cook Elementary School

Tate ITigh School - Cafeteria/Media Center Addition and Renovation/ESE/ROTC
Classroom Building

Myrtle Grove Elementary School - Media Center/ Classroom Building Renovation
Navy Point Elementary School -~ ESE Classroom Building
Ferry Pass Middle School ~ ESE Classroom Building

Carver/Century K-8 Elementary School - Physical Education Building/Media
Center/ Classroom Additions
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The lease payments are payable by the District, semiannually, on August 1 and February 1 at
interest rates ranging from 3.90 to 5.0 percent. The following is a schedule by vears of future
minimum lease payments under the lease agreements, together with the present value of minimum
lease payments as of June 30, 2015:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Total Principal Interest

2016 $ 5062,851 § 3,800,613 $ 1,262,238
2017 5,060,278 3,951,723 1,108,555
2018 4,782,241 3,828,309 953,932
2019 4,850,625 4,075,000 775,625
2020 4,837,000 4,270,000 567,000
2021-2022 9,670,875 9,205,000 465,875
Total Minimum Lease Payments 34.263,870 29,130,645 5,133,225

Unamortized Premium 2,505,339 2,505,339
Total Certificaves of Participation b 36769209 % 31,635984  § 5,133,225

Forward Delvery Agreement - Ceruficates of Participation Series 2014

On May 7, 2014 the Board entered into an agreement to refund Series 2004 Certificates of
Participation on a forward delivery basis so long as the refinancing resulted in a net present value
savings of at least 3.00 percent of the refunded Certificates. Forward delivery was necessary in
order to comply with IRS regulations prohibiting the refunding of the Series 2004 Certificates prior
to November 4, 2014 (90 days prior to the first date available for redemption). The forward
delivery method allowed the District to issue Series 2014 Refunding Certificates of Participation
totaling $19,840,000 while locking in net present value (NPV) savings of $2.2 million, Par amount
of the refunded Certificates totaled $21,840,00C to which NPV savings yielded 9.88 percent.

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS LIABILITY

Hedging Derivative Instruments — In order to protect against the potential of rising interest rates,
the District entered into pay-fixed, receivable-variable interest rate swap agreements with Bank of
America for both the $10,000,000 Series 2005 and $10,000,000 Series 2006 Certificates of
Participation at the same time each Certificate was issued. The agreement provided for the
optional termination of the swap by the District on certain dates. The District elected to exercise
the option on the remaining Series 2005 Certificates and the swap was terminated on the first
available date of May 1, 2015, 'The fiscal year-end balance of $9,290,644 (Series 2005 Certificates)
is carried as a variable rate bank loan. The Series 2006 Certificates were paid off during the 2014-
15 fiscal year.
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BONDS PAYABLE
Bonds payable at June 30, 2015 are as follows:
Bond Type ' Original Debt Amount Interest Annual
Issue Amount Outstanding Rates Maturicy
{Percent) To
State School Bonds:
Series 2008A 1,295,000 1,045,000 4,25-5.0 2028
Series 2010A 225,000 200,000 3.5-5.0 2030
Series 2011A {Refunding) 2,625,000 425,000 3.0-5.0 2023
Series 2014A (Refunding) 229,000 216,000 2.0-5.0 2025
Series 2014B (Refunding) 627,000 627,000 2.0-5.0 2020
Subtotal 5,001,000 2,513,000
Unamortized Premiums, Net 382,400 225,580
Total Bonds Payable $ 5383400 $ 2738580

The various bonds were issued to finance capital outlay projects of the District. The following is a
description of the bonded debt issues:

State School Bonds

These bonds are issued by the SBE on behalf of the District. The bonds mature serially, and are
secured by a pledge of the District’s portion of the State-assessed motor vehicle license tax. The
total revenues received i the current fiscal year were $1,596,958, all of which related to debt
service. Other financing sources recerved were through the refunding of certain callable portions
of Series 2005B bonds totaled $627,000 for bond proceeds and $43,383 for bond premium and
were used to refund $155,000 of the Series 2005B bonds. The State’s full faith and credit is also
pledged as security for these bonds. Principal and interest payments, investment of Debt Service

Fund resources, and compliance with reserve requirements are administered by the SBE and the
SBA.

Annual requirements to amortize all bonded debt outstanding as of June 30, 2015, are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Total Principal Interest
State School Bonds:

2016 $ 637,927 $ 516,000 $ 121,927
2017 378973 285,000 93,973
2C18 246903 167,00C 79,903
2019 221,553 15C,000 71,553
2020 227,203 163,000 64,203
2021-2025 1,013,088 812,000 201,088
2026-2030 462475 420,000 42 475
Subtotal 3,188,122 2,513,000 675,122

Unamortized Premiums, Net 225,580 225,580

Total Bonds Payable $ 3,413,702 $ 2.738.580 $ 675,122
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Sales Tax Revenue Bonds

In November 2014, the voters of Escambia County approved a ten year extension to the District's
current one-half cent sales surtax for capital outlay. The extension will begin on January 1, 218,
and will end on December 31, 2027. Due to the extension, the Board approved a resolution
authorizing the issuance of Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2015, in order to proceed with the
planning and construction of a new middle school and other related capital outlay projects. The
resolution authorized the issuance of bonds in an amount not to exceed $75 million. As of June

30, 2015, bonds had not been offered for sale.

CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities:

Desctiption Balance Additions Deductions Balance Duein
7-1-14 6-30-15 One Year

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Bonds Payable $ 3694000 § 627000 § 1808000 § 2503000 § 515,000
Unamortized Prenmivrs, Net 260,275 43,383 78078 225,580

Total Bonds Payable 3,954,275 670,383 1,886,078 2,738,580 516,000

Certificates of Participation Payable 34,751,413 19,840,000 25,460,769 29,130,044 3,800,613
Unamortized Premium 312,126 2193213 2,505,339

Total Certificates of Participation Payable 35,063,539 22033213 25460,76% 31,635,983 3,800,613

Estimated Insurance Claims Payable 27418641 34.379.940 34,724,792 27,073,789 5,659,609

Compensated Absences Payable 42,345,680 3,934,608 3,741,641 42,538,647 4,226514

Derivative Instruments Liabilicy 472.9% 472,996

Net Pension Liability 145,168,929 17,381,522 68,398,277 94,152,174

Other Postermployment Benefits Payable 2724710 1,202,203 1,699,710 2227005

Total Governmental Activities $ 257148770 & 7960L871 § 136384263 § 200366378 § 1420273

For the governmental activities, compensated absences and other postemployment benefits are
generally liquidated with resources of the General Fund. The estimated insurance claims are
generally liquidated with resources of the internal service funds.
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INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

The following is a summary of interfund receivables and payables reported in the fund financial
statements;

Funds Interfund
Recervables Payables
Major:
General $ 6401698 § 13,622
Special Revenue - Other Federal Programs 3,958,158
Nonmajor Governmental 12,432 1,014,358
Internal Service 13,622 1,441,614
Total $ 6427752  § 6427752

The interfund receivables and payables represent the payment of expenditures by one fund for
another fund and will be repaid within 12 months. The amounts above do not include the school
actvity funds.

The following is a summary of interfund transfers reported in the fund financial statements:

FFunds Interfund
Transfers In Transfers Out

Major:

General $§ 8,632,905

Capital Projects - Other 412,365
Nonmajor Governmental 5,000,000 13,173,570
Internal Setvice 46,970
Total $ 13,632,905 $ 13,632,905

Transfers from the Capital Projects funds to the General Fund were made to assist in financing
maintenance operations, the lease of instructional equipment, and for the payment of property
nsurance premiums. Transfers from the Internal Service Fund to the General Fund were used to
fund the District’s employee and dependent wellness program. Nonmajor funds included transfers
from the Capital Projects - Local Capital Improvement Fund to the Debt Service ~ Other fund
that were used to fund a portion of the District’s debt service requirement.

FUND BALANCE REPORTING

The District does not have a fund balance policy regarding the commitment or assignment of fund
balance. However, Section 1001.51, Florida Statutes, requires the Superintendent or designee to
prepare the Annual Financial Report, including the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, including the statements issued by the
Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB).  'The Board approves the assigned fund
balance.
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The District reports its governmental fund balances in the following categories, as applicable:

> Nonspendable. The net current financial resources that cannot be spent because they are
either not in spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
Generally, not in spendable form means that an item is not expected to be converted to
cash. Examples of items that are not in spendable form include inventory, prepaid
amounts, long-term amounts of loans and notes receivable, and property acquired for

resale. The District classifies its amouns reported as inventories as nonspendable.

» Restricted, The portion of fund balance on which constraints have been placed by
creditors, grantors, contriburors, laws or regulations of other governments, constitutional
provisions, or enabling legislation, Restricted fund balance places the most binding level of
constraint on the use of fund balance. The District classifies most of its fund balances,
other than General Fund, as restricted, as well as unspent State categorical and earmarked
educational funding reported in the General Fund, that are legally or otherwise restricted.

» Committed. The portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the highest level of decision-making
authority (.c., the Board). Generally, such formal action by the Board would be in the foxm
of a resolution or Board policy. These amounts cannot be used for any other purpose,
unless the Board removes or changes the specified use by taking the same action it
employed to previously commit the amounts. The District did not have any committed

fund balances at June 30, 2015.

> Assigned. The portion of fund balance that is intended to be used for specific purposes,
but is neither restricted nor committed. Assigned amounts include those that have been set
aside for specific purposes, such as allocated school-based funds, specific "reserves for
projects and contingencies, and other designated vses. Constraints imposed for assigned
fund balances do not satisfy the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. This
category also includes any remaining positive amounts, for governmental funds, other than
the General Fund, not classified as nonspendable, restricted, or committed. 'The District
also classifies amounts as assigned that are constrained to be used for specific purposes
based on actions of the Superintendent and Assistant Superintendent for Finance and
Business Services and not included in other categories. The District has determined a total
assigned fund balance of $22,247,545 consisting of the following: encumbered local project
carryovers totaling $1,401,036; unencumbered local project carryovers totaling $14,313,042;

and local project contingencies of $6,533,467.

» Unassigned. The portion of fund balance that is the residual classification for the General
Fund. This balance represents amounts that have not been assigned to other funds and
that have not been restricted, committed, or assigned for specific purposes. Unassigned

fund balance totaled $14,759,425 at June 30, 2015.

General Fund Minimum Fund Balance Requirement. Section 1011051, Florida Statutes,
requires that the District matntain a fund balance in the General Fund that is sufficient to address
normal contingencies, and the Superintendent shall provide written notification to the Board and
the Commissioner of Education if, at any time, the fund balance in the General Fund not classified
as restricted, comuitted, or nonspendable in the approved operating budget is projected to fall
below 3 percent of projected General Fund revenues. If the fund balance in the General Fund not
classified as restricted, committed, or nonspendable is projected to fall below 2 percent of
projected General Fund revenues, the Commissioner must determine whether the District has a
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plan to avoid a financial emergency, as determined pursuant to Section 218.503, Florida Statutes, or
to appoint a financial emergency board operating consistent with the requirements, powers, and
duties specified in Section 218.503(3)(g), Florida Statutes. The District has adopted Board policy
5.01, which provides that it is the goal of the District to maintain an unrestricted fund balance (the
sum of the assigned and unassigned fund balance) in the General Fund of at least 3.5 percent to
comply with the intent of Section 1011.051, Florida Statutes. As of June 30, 2015, the unassigned
and assigned fund balance in the General Fund of $36,978,525.41 was 12.7 percent of General
Fund revenues.

SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS

Encumbrances. Appropriations in governmental funds are encumbered upon issuance of
purchase orders for goods and services. Even though appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal
year, unfilled purchase orders of the current fiscal year are carried forward and the next fiscal year’s
appropriations are likewise encumbered.

Under GASB Statement No. 54, encumbrances are not a specific purpose and therefore should not
be reported as a separate line on the balance sheet. Encumbering funds that are already restricted,
commutted, or assigned based on the source and strength of the constramts placed on them do not
further Limit the use of the amounts reported in these classifications.

The following is a schedule of encumbrances at June 30, 2015:

Major Funds Nonmajor Total
General Special Capital Governmental Governmental
Revenue - Projects - Punds Funds
Other Other
$ 1910441 § 269906  § 4601980  § 1647913} 8,430,240
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Constraction Contract Commitments. The following is a summary of major construction

contract commitments remaining at fiscal year-end:

Project Contract Completed Balance
Amount to Date Commutted
Districtwide Projects:
Roofing Projects _ $ 751544 § 265218 486,326
Safety Renovations 355,873 16,503 339,370
Mechanical and Life Safety Systems 2,515,817 1,032,921 1,482,896
School Specific Projects:
Bellview Middle School - Gymnasium 300,707 184,860 115,847
AKX, Suter Elementary School - Rebuild of Facility 20,347 544 20,235,565 611,979
Ernest Ward Middle School - Rebuild of Facility 15,650917 15,353,176 297,741
Total $§ 40422402 § 37,088,243 3,334,159

Total other construction contract commitments (individually below $250,000) amounted to

$1,506,996 at June 30, 2015.

SCHEDULE OF STATE REVENUE SOURCES

The following is a schedule of the District’s State revenue for the 2014-15 fiscal year:

Source

Amount

Florida Education Finance Program

Categorical Educational Program - Class Size Reduction
Workforce Development Program

Motor Vehicle License Tax (Capital Outlay and Debt Service)
Voluntary Pre-K Program

School Recognition

Public Education Capital Outlay

Racing Commission Funds

Charter School Capital Outlay

Food Service Supplement

Adults with Disabilities

Discretionary Lottery Funds

Workforce Education Performance Incentive

State License Tax

Miscellaneous

Total

$ 133,079,212

43,750,668
4,799,731
1,596,958
1,108,438
1,420,617

787,693
446,500
412365
284 424
167,298
142,093

80,398

58,689
618,288

$ 188,753,372

Accounting policies relating to certain State revenue sources are described in Note 1.
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PROPERTY TAXES

The following is a summary of millages and taxes levied on the 2014 tax roll for the 2014-15 fiscal
year: .
Millages Taxes Levied

GENERAL FUND
Nonvoted School Tax:
Required Local Effort 5.237 $ 82,917,065
Discretionary Local Effort 0.748 11,843,033
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
Nonvoted Tax:
Local Capital Improvement 1.337 21,168,630
Total 7.322 $ 115,928,728

FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Pensions. In the governmente-wide statement of net position, liabilities are recognized for the
District’s proportionate share of each pension plan’s net pension liability. TFor purposes of
measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of
the Florida Retirement System (FRS) defined benefit plan and the Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS)
defined benefit plan and additions to/deductions from the FRS’s and the HIS’s fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the FRS and the IS
plans. For this purpose, benefit payments (mchiding refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms,

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68, The District participates in
the Florida Retirement System (FRS) defined benefit pension plan and the Health Insurance

Subsidy (FIIS) defined benefit plan administered by Florida Division of Retirement. As a
participating ernployer, the District implemented GASB Statement No. 68, Acounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions, which requires employers participating in cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plans to report the employers’ proportionate share of the net pension
liabilities and related pension amounts of the defined benefit pension plans. The beginning net
position of the District was decreased by $131,472,474 due to the adoption of this Statement. The
District’s proportionate share of the net pension liabilities at July 1, 2014 totaled $94,152,174.
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Change in Accounting Principle. Net position as of July 1, 2014, has been restated as follows
for the implementation of GASB Statement No. 68, Awounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, as
amended by GASB Statement No 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the
Moeasuroment Date.

Governmental
Activities
Net position as previously reported fune 3C, 2014 $ 388,185,131
Prior period adjustment - implementation of GASB 68 (131,422,474)
Net position as restated, July 1, 2014 $ 256,762,657

General Information about the FRS

The FRS was created in Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, to provide a defined benefit pension plan
for participating public employees. The FRS was amended in 1998 to add the Deferred Retirement
Option Program under the defined benefit plan and amended in 2000 to provide a defined
contribution plan alternative to the defined benefit plan for FRS members effective July 1, 2002,
This integrated defined contribution pension plan is the FRS Investment Plan, Chapter 112,
Florida Statutes, established the Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) Program, a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, to assist retired members of any state-administered
retirement system in paying the costs of health insurance.

Essentially all regular employees of the District are eligible to enroll as members of the State-
administered FRS. Provisions relating to the FRS are established by Chapters 121 and 122, Florida
Statutes; Chapter 112, Part TV, Florida Statutes; Chapter 238, Florida Statutes; and FRS Rules,
Chapter 60S, Florida Administrative Code; wherein eligibility, contributions, and benefits are
defined and described in detail. Such provisions may be amended at any time by further action
from the Florida Legislature. The FRS is a single retirement system administered by the Florida
Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement, and consists of the two cost-sharing,
multiple-employer defined benefit plans and other nonintegrated programs. A comprehensive
annual financial report of the FRS, which includes its financial statements, required supplementary
information, actuarial report, and other relevant information, is available from the Florida
Department of Management Services” Web site (www.dms.myflorida.com).

The District’s pension expense totaled $7,781,264 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.
FRS Pension Plan

Pian Deseription. The FRS Pension Plan (Plan) is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan, with a Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) for eligible employees. 'The
general classes of membership are as follows:

e Regular Class - Members of the FRS who do not qualify for membership in the other classes.
o Elected Connty Officers Class — Members who hold specified elective offices in local government.

Employees enrolled in the Plan prior to July 1, 2011, vest at six years of creditable service and
employees enrolled in the Plan on or after July 1, 2011, vest at eight years of creditable service. All
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vested members, enrolled prior to July 1, 2011, are eligible for normal retirement benefits at age 62
or at any age after 30 years of service. All members enrolled in the Plan on or after July 1, 2011,
once vested, are eligible for normal retirement benefits at age 65 or any time after 33 years of
creditable service. Members of the Plan may include up to 4 years of credit for military service
toward creditable service. The Plan also includes an early retirement provision; however, there is a
benefit reduction for each year a member retires before his or her normal retirement date. 'The
Plan provides retirement, disability, death benefits, and annual cost-of-living adjustments to eligible
participants.

DROP, subject to provisions of Section 121.091, Florida Statutes, permits employees eligible for
normal retirement under the Plan to defer receipt of monthly benefit payments while continuing
employment with an FRS employer. An employee may participate in DROP for a period not to
exceed 60 months after electing to participate, except that certain instructional personnel may
participate for up to 96 months. During the period of DROP participation, deferred monthly
benefits are held in the FRS Trust Fund and accrue interest. The net pension liability does not
include amounts for DROP participants, as these members are considered retired and are not
accruing additional pension benefits,

Benefits Provided. Benefits under the Plan are computed on the basis of age and/or years of service,
average final compensation, and service credit. Credit for each year of service is expressed as a
percentage of the average final compensation. For members mitially enrolled before July 1, 2011,
the average final compensation is the average of the five highest fiscal years’ earnings; for members
initially enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, the average final compensation is the average of the eight
highest fiscal years’ earnings. The total percentage value of the benefit received is determined by
calculating the total value of all service, which is based on the retirement class to which the
member belonged when the service credit was earned. Members are eligible for in-line-of-duty or
regular disability and survivors’ benefits, The following chart shows the percentage vahie for each
year of service credit earned:

Class, Initial Enrollment, and Retirement Age/Yeats of Setvice % Value
Regular Class members initially enrolled before July 1, 2011
Retirement up to age 62 or up to 30 years of service 1.60
Retirement at age 63 or with 31 years of service 1.63
Retirement at age 64 or with 32 years of service 165
Retirement at age 65 or with 33 or more years of service 1.68
Regular Class members initially enrolled on or after July 1, 2011
Retirement up to age 65 or up to 33 years of service 1.60
Retirement at age 66 or with 34 vears of service 1.63
Retirement at age 67 or with 35 vears of service 1.65
Retirement at age 68 or with 36 or more years of service 1.68
Elected County Officers 3.00

As provided in Section 121,101, Florida Statutes, if the member is initially enrolled in the FRS
before July 1, 2011, and all service credit was accrued before July 1, 2011, the annual cost-of-living
adjustment is 3 percent per year. If the member is initially enrolled before July 1, 2011, and has
service credit on or after July 1, 2011, there is an individually calculated cost-of-living adjustment.
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The annual cost-of-hiving adjustment is a proportion of 3 percent determined by dividing the sum
of the pre-July 2011 service credic by the total service credit at retirement multiplied by 3 percent.
Plan members initially enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, will not have a cost-of-living adjustment
after retirement.

Contribmtions. 'The Florida Legislature establishes contribution rates for participating employers and
employees. Contribution rates during the 2014-15 fiscal year were as follows:

Percent of Gross Salary

Class ) Employee Emplover (1)
FRS, Regular 3.00 737
FRS, Eledred County Officers 3.00 43.24
DROP - Applicable to

Members from All of the Above Classes 0.00 12,28
FRS, Reemployed Retiree ] (2

Notes: (1) Employer rates incdude 1.26 perent for the postemployment health insurance subsidy.
Also, employer rates, other than for DROP partidpants, indude 0.04 pement for
administrative costs of the Investment Plan,

{2) Conuribution rates are dependent upon retirement dass in which reemployed.

The District’s contributions, including employee contributions, to the Plan for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2013, June 30, 2014, and June 30, 2015 totaled $8,885,764, $13,516,461, and
$14,453,083 respectively; which were equal to the required contributions for each fiscal year.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Eopense, and Deferred Outflows of Resonrces and Deferved Inflows of Resourees
Related to Pensions. At June 30, 2015, the District reported a liability of $31,942,283 for its
proportionate share of the Plan’s net pension liabilicy. 'The net pension liability was measured as of
June 30, 2014, and the total pension lability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2014, The District’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability was based on the District’s 2014-15 fiscal year contributions relative to the
2013-14 fiscal year contributions of all participating members, At June 30, 2014, the District’s
proportionate share was .52 percent, which was a decrease of .01 percent from its proportionate
share measured as of June 30, 2013,
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For the fiscal year ended June 30C, 2015, the District recognized pension expense of $3,362,988
related to the Plan. In addition, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Defetred Outflows Deferred Inflows

Desctiption of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and

actual expetience $ $ 1,976,684
Change of assumptions 5,531,872
Net difference betweer: projected and actual

earnings on FRS pension plan investments 53,285,031
Changes in proportion and differences between

District FRS contributions and proportionate

share of contributions 1,824,849
District FRS contributions subsequent to

the measurement date 12,745,799
Total $ 20,102,520 $ 55,261,715

The deferred outflows of resources related to pensions, totaling $12,745,799, resulting from
District contributions to the Plan subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016,

Aetuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the July 1, 2014 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods inchided in the
measurement:

Inflation. 2.60 percent

Salary Inaeases 3.25 percent, average, induding inflation

Investment rate of retum 7.65 percent, net of pension plan investment expense,
induding inflation

Mortality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB, with
adjustments for mortality improvements based on Scale AA

'The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2014, valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2008, through June 30, 2013.

‘The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was not based on historical
returns, but instead is based on a forward-looking capital market economic model. The allocation
policy’s description of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset classes
shown below. Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions,
and includes an adjustment for the inflation assumption. The target allocation and best estimates
of artthmetic and geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the
following table:
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Compound
Annunal Annual

Target Arithmetic  (Geometric) Standard
Asset Class Allocation (1) Return Return Deviation
Cash 1.00% 3.11% 3.10% 1.65%
Intermediate-Term Bonds 18.00% 4.18% 4.05% 5.15%
High Yield Bonds 3.00% 6.79% 6.25% 10.95%
Broad US E quities 26.50% 8.51% 6.95% 18.90%
Developed Foreign Equities 21.20% 8.66% 6.85% 20.40%
Emerging Market E quities 5.30% 11.58% 7.60% 31.15%
Private Equity 6.00% 11.80% 8.11% 30.00%
Hedge Punds / Absolute Returmn 7.00% 5.81% 5.35% 10.00%
Real Estate (Property) 12.00% 7.11% 6.35% 13.00%
Total = 10000%
Assumed inflation - Mean 2.60% 2.00%

Note: (1) As outlined in the Plan’s investment policy

Discount Rats. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65 percent. The
Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current active and mactive employees. 'Therefore, the discount rate for calculating the
total pension liability is equal to the long-term expected rate of return.

Senritivity of the District’s Proportionate Shave of the Net Position Iiability to Changes in the Discount Rate.
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.65 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower
(6.65 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.65 percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(6.65%) (7.65%) (8.65%)
District's proportiogate share of _
the net pension liability 136,621,387 31,942,283 (55,130,758)

HIS Pension Plan

Pian Deseription. The HIS Pension Plan (FHIS Plan) is a cost-sharing mukiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan established under section 112.363, Florida Statutes, and may be amended by
the Florida Legislature at any time. 'The benefit is a monthly payment to assist retirees of State-
administered retirement systems in paying their health insurance costs and is administered by the
Division of Retirement within the Florida Department of Management Services.

Benefiss Provided. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, eligible retirces and beneficiaries received a
monthly HIS payment of $5 for each year of creditable service completed at the time of retirement,
with a minimum HIS payment of $30 and a maximum HIS payment of $150 per month, pursuant
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to Section 112,363, Florida Statutes. To be eligible to receive a HIS Plan benefit, a retiree under a
State-administered retirement system must provide proof of health insurance coverage, which may
include Medicare.

Contributions. 'The HIS Plan is funded by required contributions from FRS participating employers
as set by the Florida Legislature. Employer contributions are a percentage of gross compensation
for all active FRS members. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the contribution rate was 1,26
percent of payroll pursuant to section 112,363, Florida Statues. The District contributed 100
percent of its statutorily required contributions for the cutrent and preceding three years. HIS Plan
contributions are deposited in a separate trust fund from which payments are authorized. HIS Plan
benefits are not guaramteed and are subject to annual legislative appropriation. In the event the
legislative appropriation or available funds fail to provide full subsidy benefits to all participants,
benefits may be reduced or canceled.

The District’s contributions to the HIS Plan totaled $2,279,194 for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2015,

Dension Liabilities, Pension Eschenis. and Deferved Outflows of Resonrcer and Deferved Inflows of Resources
Rolated 20 Pensions. At June 30, 2015, the District reported a net pension liability of $62,209,891 for
its proportionate share of the HIS Plan’s net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2014, The District’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability was based on the District’s 2013-14 fiscal year contributions
relative to the total 2013-14 fiscal year contributions of all participating members. At June 30,
2014, the District’s proportionate share was 665329064 percent, which was an increase of .0081
percent from its proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2013.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the District recognized pension expense of $4,418,275
related to the HIS Plan. In addition, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
Description of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected
and actual experience

Change of assumptions $ 2,213,675
Net difference between projected and actual
eamings on HIS pension plan investments 29,862

Changes in proportion and differences between
Districc HIS contributions and proportionate

share of HIS contributions 609,893
District contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 2,584,196
Total $ 5,437,626

The deferred outflows of resources related to pensions, totaling $2,584,196, resulting from District
contributions to the HIS Plan subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.
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Actuarial Assumptions.  The total pension liability in the July 1, 2014, actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation 2.60 percent
Salary Increases 3.25 perent, average, induding mflation
Municipal Bond Rate 4.29 percent

Mortality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projected Scale BB

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2014 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2008, through June 30, 2013.

Discount Rate. 'The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4.29 percent. In
general, the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to the single rate
equivalent to discounting at the long-term expected rate of return for benefit payments prior to the
projected depletion date. Because the HIS benefit is essentially funded on a pay-as- you-go basis,
the depletion date is considered to be immediate, and the single equivalent discount rate is equal to
the mumicipal bond rate selected by the HIS Plan sponsor. 'The Bond Buyer General Obligation
20-Bond Municipal Bond Index was adopted as the applicable municipal bond index.

Sensitivity of the Distrivt’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension I sability fo Changes in the Discount Rate. The
following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 4.29 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension
hability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (3.29
percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (5.29 percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Dectease Discount Rate Increase
(3.29%) (4.29%) {(5.29%)
District's proportionate share of
the net pension Eabﬂity $ 70,758,713 § 62,209,891 § 55,074,071

Pension Plan Diduciary Net Pasition. Detailed information about the HIS Plan’s fiductary net position
is available in the separately issued FRS Pension Plan and Other State Administered Systemns
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

FRS ~ Defined Contribution Pension Plan

The District contributes to the FRS Investment Plan (Investment Plan), a defined contribution
pension plan, for its eligible employees electing to participate in the Investment Plan. The
Investment Plan is administered by the SBA, and s reported in the SBA’s annual financial
statements and in the State of Florida Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. Service retirement
benefits are based upon the value of the member’s account upon retirement,

As provided in Section 121.4501, Florida Statutes, eligible FRS members may elect to participate in
the Investment Plan in lieu of the FRS defined-benefir plan. District employees participating in
DROP are not eligible to participate in the Investmemt Plan. Employer and employee
contributions, including amounts contributed to individual member’s accounts, are defined by law,
but the ultimate benefit depends in part on the performance of investment funds. Benefit terms,

66



(Continued)

DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

including contribution requirements, for the Investment Plan are established and may be amended
by the Florida Legislature. The Investment Plan is funded with. the same employer and employee
contribution rates that are based on salary and membership class (Regular Class, Elected County
Officers, etc.), as the FRS defined benefit plan. Contributions are directed to individual member
accounts, and the individual members allocate contributions and account balances among various
approved investment choices, Allocations to the investment member’s accounts during the 2014-
15 fiscal year were as follows:

Percent of
Gross
Class Compensation
PRS, Regular 6.30
RS, Elected County Officers 11.34

For all membership classes, employees are immediarely vested in their own contributions and are
vested after one year of service for employer contributions and investment earnings. If an
accumulated benefit obligation for service credit originally earned under the FRS Pension Plan is
transferred to the Investment Plan, the member must have the years of service required for FRS
Pension Plan vesting (including the service credit represented by the transferred funds) to be vested
for these funds and the earings on the funds. Nonvested employer contributions are placed in a
suspense account for up to five years. If the employee returns to FRS-covered employment within
the five year period, the employee will regain control over their account. If the employee does not
return within the five year period, the employee will forfeit the accumulated account balance.
Costs of administering the Investment Plan, including the FRS Financial Guidance Program, are
funded through an employer contribution of 0.04 percent of payroll and by forfeited benefits of
Investment Plan members, For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the information for the
amount of forfeitures was unavailable from the SBA; however, management believes that these
amouutts, if any, would be immaterial to the District.

After termination and applying to receive benefits, the member may rollover vested funds to
another qualified plan, structure a periodic payment under the Investment Plan, receive a himp-
sum distribution, leave the funds mvested for future distribution, or any combination of these
options, Disability coverage is provided; the member may either transfer the account balance to
the FRS Pension Plan when approved for disability retirement to recetve guaranteed lifetime
monthly benefits under the FRS Pension Plar, or remain in the Investment Plan and rely upon that
account balance for retirement income,

There were 691 District participants in the Investment Plan during the 2014-2016, 'The District’s
contributions, including the employee contributions to the Investment Plan totaled $2,491,216
which was equal to the required contribution for the 2014-15 fiscal year.
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EARLY TERMINATION BENEFITS

Retirement Incentive. Board policy provides for the payment of retirement incentive bonuses to
District personnel who retire by the end of the fiscal year in which they first become eligible under
any retirement plan sponsored by a unit of Flotida mumicipal, local, or State government and who
have a minimum of 15 years of service with the District. The Retirement Incentive is equal to 25
percent of the qualified employee’s gross annual salary. In addition to payments made for regular
termination benefits, the District reported expenditures totaling $329,743 during the 2014-15 fiscal
year for Retirement Incentive pay.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PAYABLE

Plan Description. The Postemployment Healthcare Benefits Plan (Plan) is a single-employer,
defined benefit plan administered by the District, Pursuant to the provisions of Section 112,0801,
Florida Statutes, former employees who retire from the District are eligible to participate in one of
four self-funded comprehensive plans for medical and prescription drug coverage. The District
subsidizes the premium rates paid by retirees by allowing them to participate in the plan at reduced
or blended group (implicitly subsidized) premium rates for both active and retired employees.
These rates provide an implicit subsidy for retirees because, on an actuarial basis, their current and
future claims are expected to resulc m higher costs to the plan on average than those of active
employees.

Additionally, certain retirees receive Insurance coverage at a lower (explicitly subsidized) premium
rate than active employees, The benefits provided under this defined benefit plan are provided for
a fixed number of years determined at the time of retirement based on the number of years worked
for the District. Retirees are required to enroll in the Federal Medicare program for their primary
coverage as soon as they are eligible. The Plan does not issue 2 stand-alone report and is not
included in the report of a public employee retirement system or another entity.

Funding Policy. Plan contribution requirements of the District are established and may be
amended through recommendations of the Insurance Committee and action from the Board. The
District has not advanced-funded or established a funding methodology for the annual Other
Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) costs or the net OPEB obligation. The calculations were based
on July 1, 2015, data where there were 205 retirees and 38 eligible dependents receiving
postemployment healthcare benefits. For the 2014-15 fiscal year, the District provided required
contributions of $1,699,710 toward annual OPEB costs, comprised of benefit payments made on
behalf of retirees for claims expenses, retention costs, and net of retiree contributions totaling
$3,059,143. Required contributions are based on projected pay-as-you-go financing,

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. 'The District’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is
calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in
accordance with parameters of GASB Statement No. 45, Acounting and Finanial Reporting by
Employers for Postempipyment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The following table shows the District’s
annual OPEB cost for the fiscal year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in
the District’s net OPEB asset for Postemployment Healthcare Benefits:
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Descriptiont Amoumt
Normal Cost (service cost for one year) $ 772,370
Amortization of Unfunded Actuarial

Accrued Liability 378,914
Interest on Normal Cost and Amortization 46,051
Annual Required Contribution 1,197,335
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 108,988
Amortization of Net OPEB Obligation (104,118}
Annual OPEB Cost 1,202,205
Contribution Toward the OPEB Cost (1,699,710)
Decrease in Net OPEB Obligation (497,505)
Net OPEB Obligation, Beginning of Fiscal Year 2,724,710
Net OPEB Obligation, End of Fiscal Year $ 2,227,205

The District’s historical annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the
Plan, and the net OPEB obligation {asset) as of June 30, 2015, and the preceding two fiscal years,
are as follows:

Fiscal Year Annual Contribution  Percentage of ~ Net OPEB
OPEB Cost Annual Obligation
OPEB Cost (Asset)
Contributed
2012-13 2,411,164 217,151 9.0% 3,361,894
2013-14 2,223,097 2,860,281 128.7% 2,724,710
2014-15 1,202,205 1,699,710 141.4% 2,227,205

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of July 1, 2014, the most recent actuarial valuation
date, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $9,915,992 and the actuarial value of assets was
$0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability of $9,915,992 and a funded ratio of 0
percent. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active participating employees) was $217,952,759
and the ratio of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability to the covered payroll was 4.5 percent.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the
notes to fmancial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for
benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates
of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events
far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment and termination,
mortality, and the healthcare cost trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as
actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the furure.
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan
provisions, as understood by the employer and participating members, and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of shating of benefit costs
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between the employer and participating members. The actuarial methods and assumptions used
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial

accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.

The District’s OPEB actuarial valuation for the 2014-15 fiscal year used the entry age normal cost
actuarial method to estimate the unfunded actuarial liability as of June 30, 2015, and to estimate the
District’s annual required contribution, Because the OPEB liability is currently unfunded, the
actuarial assumprtions included a 4 percent rate of return on invested assets, which is the District’s
long-term expectation of investment returns under its investment policy. The actuarial assumptions
also included a payroll growth rate of 3 percent per year, general inflation is 2.5 percent, and an
annual healthcare cost trend rate of 8 percent initially for the 2014-15 fiscal year, reduced to an
ultimate rate of 5 percent for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, The unfunded actuarial accrued
liability and gains/losses are being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open
basis over 30 years.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAMS

The District is exposed to various tisks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; mjuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District is self-
insured for property losses, except that commercial property insurance having a number of
different deductibles, sublimits, and policy maximums has been purchased to limit the District’s
exposure to loss. The District provides a self-insurance program for workers’ compensation,
automobile liability, and general liability coverage. These activities are accounted for in a Risk
Management Fund, a part of the mrternal service funds reported on the basic financial statements of
the District. For automobile and general liability, the District generally relies upon the sovereign
immunity limits of Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, which limits the District’s liability to $200,000
for each claimant and $300,000 in any one occurrence. Workers” compensation claims, except for
certain claims covered under stop-loss insurance policies purchased in prior fiscal years, are fully
covered by the District.

The District also provides commercially purchased life insurance and self-insured dental,
prescription drug, and health coverage to its employees, retirees, and their dependents. These
activities are accounted for in the Escambia School District Employee Benefit Trust, which is
reported in the internal service funds on the basic financial statements of the District, The District
has entered into agreements with various insurance companies to provide specific excess coverage
of health claims that exceed a stated amount per policy period. In addition, third-party
administrators have been contracted to assist in the payment and/or processing of dental,
prescription drugs, and health claims.

Settled claims resulting from the risks described above have not exceeded commercial insurance
coverage in any of the past three fiscal vears.

For all programs for which the District is self-insured, an undiscounted liability in the amount of
$27,073,789 ($24,735,687 for workers’ compensation, automobile and general liability claims, and
$2,338,102 for dental, prescription drug, and health insurance claims) was actuarially determined to
cover estimated incutred, but not reported claims and insurance claims payable at June 30, 2015,
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The following schedule represents the changes in claims liability for the past two fiscal years for the
District’s self-insurance program:

Fiscal Year ~ Beginning-of- Current-Year  Claims Payments  Balance at Fiscal

Piscal-Year Claims and Year-End
Liaility Changes in
Estimates
201314 27,137 624 36,899,371 (36,618,354) 27 418,641
2014-15 27 418,641 34,370,940 (34,724,792) 27073789

OTHER LOSS CONTINGENCY

The Escambia County Property Appraiser was involved in ongoing litigation with the Pensacola
Beach Leaseholders and Residents Association regarding the appraisals on and taxability of the
values of leasehold improvements and land on Pensacola Beach. During the [itigation, some
leaseholders have chosen to pay the assessed taxes, while others have chosen not to pay the
assessed taxes pending the outcome of the litigation.

The Florida Supreme Couwrt ultimately ruled during the 2013-14 fiscal year that the leasehold
improvements are taxable and the issue has therefore been resolved. However, the Property
Appraser is of the opinion that the [and under lease is also addressed by the Court ruling but the
leaseholders disagree. Consequently, taxation on the land is still untesolved. Depending upon the
ultimate outcome of this litigation, the District may be entitled to its portion (estimated at $735,758
at June 30, 2015) of the gross taxes uncollected from residential leaseholders, or the District may be
required to return a portion of the gross taxes that were previously collected from the leaseholders.
At June 30, 2015, the District has recefved $32,199,159 in taxes collected from residential
Jeaseholders.

LITIGATION

The District is involved in several pending and threatened legal actions. It is the opinion of
District management, after giving consideration to the District’s related insurance coverage, as well
as statutory limitations on uninsured losses for governmental agencies, that the amount of loss
from all such claims and actions would not materially affect the financial condition of the District.

SUBSEQENT EVENTS

On January 6, 2016, the District issued Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 in the amount of
$51,910,000, The bonds were sold to fund the construction of a new middle school and other
related capital projects. Service of the debt will begin in September 2016,
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Funded Ratio Covered UAALasa
Valuation Value of Accrued Liability  AAL (UAAL) Payroll Percent of
Date Assets (AAL) (1) Covered Payroll
() {b) (b-a) (a/b) [(b-a)/c]
7/1/2012 $ 0 3 33,083,102 § 33,083,102 0% $ 196,359,029 16.85%
7/1/2013 0 27,000,000 27,000,000 0% 209,931,489 12.86%
7/1/2014 0 9,915,992 9,915,992 0% 217,952,759 4.55%

Note (1): See notes to required supplemental information for actuarial methods used to calculate the actuarial
accrued liability.
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1. SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS — OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT
BENEFITS

The July 1, 2014, unfunded actuarial accrued liability of $9,915,992 was significantly lower than
the July 1, 2013, liability of $27,000,000 mainly due to the following reason:

»> The number of retirees (205) and eligible dependents (38) receiving post employment
health care benefits during the 2014-15 fiscal year was reduced significantly over the
prior 2013-14 fiscal year. The reduction totaled 477 retirees and 79 eligible
dependents and was due to due to the implementation of a new, District sponsored
Medicare Supplement program.

The program was introduced by the District as a charter member of the Florida
Retired School Employee Benefit Program and had an effective date of January 1,
2015. 'The program moved 100 percent of the District’s post-65 retirees and their
Medicare dependents who were previously participating in the District’s Retiree
Indemnity Plan, The new Retiree Benefit Program provided greater plan options and
reduced premiums to the Retiree,
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT*S PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF NET PENSION LIABILITY —

FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM PENSION PLAN

2015 2014

District's proportion of the FRS net

pension liability (asset) 0523517774%  0.510916965%
District's proportionate share of the FRS

net pension liability (asset} $ 31,942,283  § 87,951,549
District's covered-employee payroll $ 217,952,759  $§ 209,931,489
District's proportionate share of the FRS net

pension liability (asset) as a percentage

of its covered-employee payroll 15% 42%

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS -
FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM PENSION PLAN

2015 2014
Contractually required FRS contribution $ 12745799 § 11,467,261
FRS contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution (12,745,799) (11,467,261}
FRS contribution deficiency (excess) § - 3§
Disteiet's covered-eraployee payroll § 217952759  § 209,931,489

FRS contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 5.85% 546%
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY -

HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PENSION PLAN

District's proportion of the HIS net
pension liability (asset)

District's proportionate shate of the HIS
net pension liability (asset)

District's covered-employee payroll

District's proportionate share of the HIS net

pension liability (asset) as a percentage
of its covered-employee payroll

2015 2014

0.665329064%  0.657194019%

$ 62209891 § 57217380
$ 217952759  $ 209,931,489

29% 27%

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS ~
HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PENSION PLAN

Contractually required HIS contribution

HIS contributions in relation to the

contractually required HIS conttibution

HIS contribution deficiency (excess)

District's covered-employee payroll

HIS contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payrolt

78

2015 2014

$ 2584196 § 2,279,194

(2,584,196) (2,279,194)

$ - _$ -

$ 217952759  § 209,931,489

1,19% 1.09%



COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL
FUND STATEMENTS AND

SCHEDULES




Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

The Special Revenue Funds account for certain revenues derived from the State of Florida, the
Federal Government, and other local and private sources that are required to finance designated
activities. Activities included within the funds are as follows:

Food Service Fund - To account for and report on activities of the food service
program in serving breakfast and lunch at the schools.

Federal Economic Stimulus Programs Fund - To account for pregrams funded
by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) and other Federal
stimulus programs, requiring separate accountability because of legal or
regulatory restrictions.

Debt Service Funds

The Debt Service Funds are used to account for the payment of interest and principal of the
current portion on long-term debt.

Other Debt Service Fund - To account for and report on Certificate of
Participation Issues, characterized as lease-purchase agreements.

State Board of Education (SBE) Bond Fund - To account for and report on
payment of principal, interest, and related costs on the State school bonds
issued by the SBE on behalf of the District. These bonds are payable from the
District's portion of the State-assessed motor vehicle license tax.
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds (Continued)

Capital Projects Funds

The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the financing and acquisition or construction
of major capital facilities, such as new school buildings or additions to existing buildings, or for
major renovation projects. Specific funding sources included herein are:

Capital Outlay and Debt Service Fund — To account for and report on the excess
dollars received through the State's Capital Outlay/Debt Service {CO/DS)
program, used for construction and maintenance of schools.

Public Education Capital Cutlay Fund — To account for and report on funds
received from the State for the construction and maintenance of schools.

Local Capital Improvement Fund - To account for the financial resources
generated by the local capital improvement tax levy to be used for educational
capital outlay needs, including new construction, renovation and remodeling
projects, and debt service payments on certificates of participation.

81



This page was intentionally left blank.

82



€8

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Accounts Receivable
Cue from Other Funds
Cue from Other Agencies
Inventories

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESCGURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
Liablities:
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings
Aceounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Deposits Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Total Liahilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred Revenue
Total Deferred [nffows of Resources

Fund Balances:
Nonspendabls:
Inventories
Reastricted for:
Debt Service
Capital Projects
Food Service

Tetal Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFEOWS OF

RESOURCES, AND FUND BEAEANGCES

DISTRIGT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMEBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 3G, 2015
Special Revenue Funds Debt Service Funds
Tofal Total Federal Total State Board of
Nonmajor Nonmajor Economic Nonmafor Other Education
Govermmental Special Revenua Stimulus Programs Food Service Debt Service Debt Service (SBE} Bond
Funds Funds Fund Fund Funds Fund Fund
$ 18,298,874 5 3,860,801 $ $ 3,860,801 $ 5,035,785 $ 5,035,785 $
4,487,440 63,526 63,526
3,698 24186 2,416
12,523 12,523 12,523
1,550,476 456,334 366,687 80,647
1,977,837 1,977,837 1,977,837
3 28,330,848 3 6,308,911 $ 366,687 $ 5,943,224 $ 5,099,311 5 5,035,785 5 653,526
$ 1,699 $ 1,689 $ 1,699 % % $
413,287 9,659 a1 568
1,014,358 379,028 366,596 12,432
9.265 9,265 9,265
606,537 666,537 666,537
2,105,156 399.851 366,687 32,964 666,537 666,537
44,518
44,518
1,877,837 1,977,837 1,877,837
4,432,774 4,432,774 4,369,248 63,526
13,838,140
3,832,423 3,932,423 3,932,423
24,181,174 5.810.2860 5,010,260 4,432,774 4,360,248 63,526
$ 26,330,848 $ 6,309,911 $ 366,887 $ 5,943,224 $ 5,099,311 $ 5,035,785 3 63,526

(Continued)
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Accounts Receivable
Due from Other Agencies

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Due o Other Funds
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred Revenue
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances:
Restricted for:
Capital Projects
Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOQURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued)

June 30, 2015

Capital Projects Funds
Local
Total Nonmajor Capital Outlay Pubiic Education Capital Iimprovemeni
Capital Projects & Debt Service Capital Outiay Section
Funds Fund Fund 1011.71(2), F.S.
$ 9,402,288 $ 683,759 $ 8,718,529
4,423 914 4,423,914
1,282 1,282
1,004,142 326,449 767,693
$ 14,921,626 $ 1,010,208 767,693 % 13,143,725
$ 403,638 $ 4,693 $ 308,945
635,330 635,330
1,038,968 4,693 635,330 398,945
44,518 44,518
44 518 44,518
13,838,140 960,297 132,363 12,744,780
13,838,140 960,997 132,363 12,744,780
$ 14,921,626 % 1,010,208 767,693 $ 13,143,725




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

¢}

Special Revenue Funds Debt Service Funds
Total Total Federal Total Stafe Board of
Nonmajor Nonmajor Economic Nonmajor Other Education
Governmental Special Revenue Stimulus Programs Food Service Debt Service Debt Service (SBE) Bond
Funds Funds Fund Fund Funds Fund Fund
REVENUES
Federal Through State and Local:
Food Service $ 16,199,631 $ 16,199,631 $ $ 16,199,631 $ $ $
Race o the Top 509,032 508,032 509,032
Total Federal Through State and Local 16,708,663 16,708,663 509,032 16,199,631
State:
Food Service 284,424 284,424 284,424
CO and DS Withheld for SBE/COBI Bond 1,288,789 1,288,789 1,288,789
CO and DS Distribution 272,230
Public Education Capital Qutiay 787,693
Other State Sources 11,723 1,129 1,128
Total State 2,644,853 284,424 284,424 1,288,818 1,288,918
Local:
Charges for Food Sarvice 3,480,641 3,480,641 3,480,641
Propetty Taxes 21,492,708
Other Local Sources 54,686 8,360 8,360 1,040 1,040
Total Local 25,028,035 3,489,001 3,489,001 1,040 1,040
Total Revenues § 44,381,557 § 20482088 3 503,032 § 19,973,056 3 1,290,958 3 1.040 5 1,289,018

{Continued})
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Special Revenue Funds Debt Service Funds
Tatal Total Federal Total State Board of
Nonmafor Nanmajor Economic Nonmajor Other Education
Governmental Special Revenue Stimulus Programs Food Service Debf Service Debi Service (SBE) Band
Funds Funds Fund Fund Funds Fund Fund
EXPENDITURES
Currert Education:
Instruction $ 354,807 % 354,807 3 354,807 5 $ $ $
Instructionzl Siaff Training Senvices 146,295 146,295 146,295
General Administration 3.438 3,438 3,438
Facility Services 8,434,098
Food Services 20,025,962 20,025,962 20,025,962
Cenlral Services 1,667 1,667 1,667
Administrative Technology Services 2,828 2,825 2825
Fixad Capital Cutlay:
Faciliies Acquisition and Construction 7.412,629
Cther Capital Outlay 221,022 221,022 221,022
Debt Service:
Principai 4,768,768 4,768,768 3,620,768 1,148,000
Interest and Fiscal Charges 1,619,850 1,618,957 1,459,584 159,373
Total Expenditures 42,991,361 20,756,016 508,032 20,246,984 6,387,725 5,080,352 1,307,373

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 1,390,196 {273,928) (273,928) {5,096,767) {5,079,312) (17.455)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Leong-Term Debt Issues:

Refunding Bonds Issuad 627,000 627,000 627,000

Refunding Certificates of Parlicipations Issued 19,840,000 19,840,000 19,840,000

Premium on Refunding Bonds 43,353 43,383 43,383

Premium on Refunding Cerlificates of Participation 2,505,339 2,505,339 2,505,339

Payments to Refunding Escrow Agent (23,126,288) (23,126,288) (22,363,281) {763,007)

Transfers In 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000

Transfers Qut (13,173,570)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (8,284,136) 4,889,434 4,982,058 {92,624)

Net Change in Fund Balances {6,853,540) (273,928) (273,528) {207,333) (97,254) (110,079)
Fund Balances, July 1, 2014 31,075114 6,184,188 65,184,185 4,640,107 4,466,502 173,605
Fund Balances, June 30, 2015 3 24181174 $ 5.810,260 $ $ 5,810,260 $ 4,432,774 ] 4,369,248 3 63,526

(Continued)
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Capital Projects Funds
Local Capital
Total Nonmajor Capital Qutlay Public Education Improvement
Capital Projects & Debt Service Capital Outlay Section
Funds Fund Fund 1011.71(2), F.S.
REVENUES
State:
Food Service
CO and DS Withheld for SBE/COBI Bond
CO and DS Distribution $ 272,230 $ 272,230 $ $
Public Education Capital Outlay 787,693 . 787,693
Other State Sources 10,594 10,594
Total State 1,070,517 282,824 787,693
Local:
Property Taxes 21,492,708 21,492,708
Other Local Sources 45,286 45,286
Total Local 21,537,904 21,537,994
Total Revenues $ 22,608,511 $ 282,824 $ 787,693 3 21,537,994

{Continued)
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Capital Projects Funds
Local Capital
Total Nonmajor Capital Outlay Public Education Improvement
Capital Projects & Debt Service Capital Outiay Section
Funds Fund Fund 1011.71(2), F.S.
EXPENDITURES
Current Education:
Facility Services $ 8,434,098 $ 168,320 $ 14,851 $ 8,250,927
Fixed Capital Qutlay:
Facilities Acquisilion and Construction 7,412,629 7,412,629
Debt Service:
Interest and Fiscal Charges 893 893
Total Expenditures 15,847,620 169,213 14,851 15,663,556
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 6,760,891 113,611 772,842 5,874,438
OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES (USES)
Transfers Out {13,173,570) (640,479) {12,533,091)
Total Other Financial Sources {Uses) {13,173,570) (640,479) {12,5633,091)
Net Change in Fund Balances (6,412,679) 113,611 132,363 (6,658,653)
Fund Balances, July 1, 2014 20,250,819 847,386 19,403,433
Fund Balancss, June 30, 2015 $ 13,838,140 $ 960,997 $ 132,363 $ 12,744,780




General Fund

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Board. All general tax revenues and other
receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to another fund are accounted for
in this fund. The General Fund is reported as a major governmental fund.
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

REVENUES

Federal Direct:
Federal Impact, Current Operaticns
Reserve Officers Training Corps {ROTC)
Other Federal Direct Sources

Total Federal Direct

Federal Through State and Local:
Medicald
Other Federal Through State and l.ocal Sources

Total Federal Through State and Local

State:
Florida Education Finance Program (FEFP)
Workforce Development
Workforce Education Performance Incanfive
Adults With Disabillities
CO and DS Withheld for Administrative Expense
Discretionary Lottery Funds
Categorical Programs - Class Size Reduction
Other State Sources

Total State

Local:
Property Taxes
[nterest Income
Other Local Sources

Total Local
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current Education:
Instruction

Salaries
Employee Benefils
Purchased Services
Energy Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Outlay
Other Expenses

Total Instruction

DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

General Fund
Varfance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
$ 500,000 $ 615,565 % 615,565 $
400,000 438,955 438,955
200,000 186,878 186,878
1,100,000 1,241,308 1,241,398
1,250,000 1,763,829 1,763,829
871,456 1,195,899 1,195,809
2,121,456 2,959,728 2,959,728
137,020,707 133,079,212 133,079,212
4,799,731 4,789,731 4,799,731
80,398 80,398
177,756 167,298 167,298
24,183 24,217 24,217
387,861 142,093 142,093
44,048,794 43,750,668 43,750,668
2,805,889 3,951,048 3,662,532 (298,514)
189,364,821 185,094,663 185,696,149 (298,514)
91,051,655 095,102,045 95,102,045
50,000 07,280 88,425 (8,864)
3,819,343 5,076,235 5,076,235
94,920,998 100,275,569 100,266,705 (8,864)
287,607,375 290,471,358 280,163,980 (307,378)
124,443,752 129,410,374 127,215,106 2,195,268
35,014,857 35,759,835 35,758,625 1,210
16,104,726 17,223,143 14,640,398 2,582,745
12,800 15,267 6,682 8,675
6,361,416 12,404,504 6,514,334 5,890,170
1,144,090 1,711,579 1,564,848 146,731
4,196,548 5,024,753 4,542,795 481,268
186,278,289 201,549,455 190,242,698 11,308,757
(Continued}
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND {Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

General Fund
Varlance with
Final Budget -
Budgefed Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
EXPENDITURES
Current Education: (Continued)
Student Support Services
Salaries § 9,612,774 $ 10,067,329 $ 10,002,140 $ 65,189
Employee Benefits 3,174,373 2,807,251 2,807,251
Purchased Services 1,629,501 2,337,693 1,594,629 743,064
Energy Services 4,000 4,000 3,735 265
Malerials and Supplies 135,194 148,428 62,178 86,250
Capital Outlay 6,688 10,488 10,424 64
Other Expenses 8,664 8,464 200
Total Student Support Services 14,462,530 15,383,853 14,488,821 895,032
Instructional Media Services
Salaries 2,966,391 3,337,053 3,227,648 110,305
Employee Benefits 994,511 941,319 939,598 1,721
Purchased Services 42,341 50,825 46,551 4,274
Materials and Supplies 55,242 50,500 34,000 16,500
Capital Outlay 390,070 394,218 181,633 212,585
Other Expenses 1,360 36,523 35,741 782
Total Instructional Media Services 4,449,915 4,811,338 4,465,171 346,167
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services
Salaries 3,526,378 4,031,400 4,031,400
Employee Benefits 1,132,960 1,006,067 1,006,067
Purchased Services 31,890 66,890 66,153 737
Materials and Supplies 76,421 95,649 42,780 52,868
Capital Outlay 150 1,861 3,955 (2,094}
Other Expenses 7,445 8,679 7,774 805
Tofal Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 4,775,244 5,210,546 5,158,128 52,417
Instructional Staff Training Services :
Salaries 1,879,076 1,875,336 1,838,727 36,600
Employee Benefits 278,038 610,328 484,428 125,900
Purchased Services 756,673 900,640 659,128 250,512
Materials and Supplies 48,417 117,103 87,403 . 29,700
Capital Quilay 201,836 191,612 6,148 185,464
Other Expenses 70,867 103,296 54,810 48,486
Total Instructional Staff Training Services 3,234,897 3,807,315 3,130,644 676,671
Instruction-Related Technology
Salaries 1,350,317 1,423,382 1,423,382
Employee Benefits 449,120 438,367 382,202 56,165
Purchased Services 243,076 334,508 334,507 1
Materials and Supplies 17,552 17,148 452 16,996
Capital Qutlay 100,832 1,832 89,711 {87,879)
Other Expenses 14,468 12,044 4,302 7,742
Total Instruction-Related Technology 2,175,365 2,227,281 2,234,256 (6,975)
{Continued)
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

General Fund
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounis (Negative)
EXPENDITURES
Current Education: (Confinued)
Board of Education
Salaries $ 664,771 $ 761,593 $ 728,694 $ 32,899
Employee Benefits 372,871 640,965 333,367 307,598
Purchased Services 216,364 217,600 153,648 63,952
Energy Services 975 645 640 5
Materials and Supplies 13,995 12,851 3,517 9,334
Capital Outlay 195 195
Other Expenses 26,191 45,234 44,006 1,228
Total Board of Education 1,295,167 1,679,083 1,264,067 415,016
General Administrafion :
Salaries 390,157 571,145 571,143 2
Employee Benefits 130,804 130,804 127,445 3,359
Purchased Services 77,534 78,970 57,122 21,848
Materials and Supplies 21,900 18,500 8,458 10,042
Capital Qutiay 165 164 1
Other Expenses 59,000 60,200 60,132 68
Total General Administration 679,395 859,784 824,464 35,320
Schoel Administration
Salaries 11,190,107 12,381,555 12,189,436 192,119
Employee Benefits 3,740,702 3,379,407 3,280,775 98,632
Purchased Services 6,226 8,238 7,223 1,015
Materials and Supplies 65,067 64,349 42 474 21,875
Capital Outlay 17,820 33,322 32,247 1,075
Other Expenses 1,880 18,108 16,852 1,166
Total School Administration 15,021,802 15,884,979 15,569,107 315,872
Facility Services
Salaries 147,941 441,631 214,154 227477
Employee Benefits 49,5989 74,909 45,363 28,546
Purchased Services 570,514 267,866 218,587 48,279
Energy Services 20,500 22,800 22,734 66
Materials and Supplies 33,581 15,116 8,538 6,578
Capital OQutiay 1,003,253 745,436 195,451 549,085
Other Expenses 4,350 2,000 1,134 866
Total Facility Services 1,920,438 1,569,758 705,961 863,797
Fiscal Services
Salaries 1,682,439 1,666,193 1,633,126 33,067
Employee Benefits 530,377 552,623 430,538 122,085
Purchased Services 947,936 893,900 279,427 614,473
Materials and Supplies 42,414 41,669 11,083 30,586
Capltal Outlay 5,000 5,220 1,220 4,000
Other Expenses 7,275 60,800 59,033 867
Total Fiscal Services 3,115,441 3,220,405 2,415,327 805,078
{Continued}
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

General Fund
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
EXPENDITURES
Current Education: (Continued)
Food Services
Salaries $ % 147204 § 139,94 $ 7,263
Employee Benefits 4,820 4,804 16
Other Expenses M7 417
Total Food Services 152,441 145,162 7,279
Central Services
Salaries 3,941,439 3,141,191 3,140,437 754
Employee Benefits 1,188,699 979,119 977,020 2,099
Purchased Services 1,010,310 2,111,893 572,424 1,539,569
Energy Services 40,000 40,000 23,942 16,068
Materials and Supplies 347,033 368,687 216,907 171,780
Capital Outiay 1,197 5,227 5,638 {411}
Other Expenses 113,750 106,775 97,638 9,137
Total Central Services 6,842,328 6,772,092 5,034,006 1,738,986
Student Transportation Services
Salaries 8,414,768 8,542,033 8,642,033
Employee Benefits 2,812,424 3,570,529 3,669,800 729
Purchased Services 527,085 609,187 380,362 228,835
Energy Services 3,111,807 2,303,879 2,060,950 332,929
Materials and Supplies 548 857 1,657,173 1,046,580 510,593
Capital Outiay 91,819 03,672 35,172 58,500
Other Expenses 205,313 686,158 267,158 419,000
Total Student Transportation Services 16,111,873 17,452,631 15,902,045 1,550,586
Operation of Plant
Salaries 5,550,143 5,601,688 5,521,761 79,827
Employee Benefits 1,911,170 2,549,282 2,542 955 6,327
Purchased Services 8,920,265 8,304,738 6,228,486 2,076,252
Energy Services 12,372,205 11,834,615 11,834,614 1
Materials and Supplies 603,285 688,136 679,545 8,591
Capital Outlay 25,708 70,097 81,269 (11,172)
Other Expenses 30,400 379,118 379,118
Total Operation of Plant 29,413,876 29,427,574 27,267,748 2,169,826
Maintenance of Plant
Salaries 4,548,765 4,587,540 4,532,731 54,809
Employse Benefits 1,555,641 1,745,396 1,745,112 284
Purchased Services 3,766,602 6,290,001 2,755,820 3,534,181
Energy Services 241,774 262,892 262,570 322
Materials and Supplies 1,533,362 1,588,454 1,588,133 321
Capital Outtay 55,238 54,651 60,482 {5,831}
Other Expenses 8,450 8,419 3
Total Maintenance of Plant 11,701,382 14,537,384 10,953,267 3,584,117
(Continued)
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND (Continued)

Far the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

EXPENDITURES
Current Education: (Continued)
Administrative Technology Services
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Purchased Services
Energy Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Outlay
Other Expenses

Total Administrative Technology Services
Community Services
Salarles
Employee Benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Outlay
Other Expenses
Total Community Services
Fixed Capital Qutlay:
Facilities Acquisition and Construction
Other Capital Qutlay
Total Fixed Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Principal

Total Debt Service
Total Expenditures

Deficiency of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources
Transfers In
Insurance Loss Recoveries

Total Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, July 1, 2014

Fund Balances, June 30, 2015

General Fund
Variance with
‘ Final Budgef -
Budgeted Amounis Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative}
$ 2400785 § 257,700 $ 2442819 § 74,800
801,014 725,307 669,544 55,763
17,887 38,887 38,631 256
4,500 4,500 2,660 1,840
82,480 77,899 20,735 57,164
5,364 5,300 55
10,000 9,638 362
3,306,866 3,379,666 3,189,336 180,330
108,000 183,236 173,452 9,784
28,380 72,333 69,848 2,485
10,250 12,008 6,191 5,817
302,366 284,270 18,578 265,692
5,244 13,956 11,8313 2,643
329,463 297,849 203,311 94,538
783,703 863,652 482,693 380,959
20,689 34,255 (13,666)
673,020 1,174,147 768,123 406,024
673,820 1,194,736 802,378 392,358
10,000 10,000 10,000
10,000 10,000 10,000
306,052,331 329,994,873 304,275,280 25,719,593
(18,544,956) {39,523,515) {14,111,300) 25,412,215
8,007,948 8,632,905 8,632,905
3,285,325 3,285,325
8,007,948 11,918,230 11,918,230
{10,537,007) (27,605,285) (2,193,070) 25,412,215
53,458,132 53,459,132 53,459,132
$ 42,822,125 $ 25,853,847 § 51,266,062 $ 25412,215
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Special Revenue Funds

The special revenue funds account for certain revenues derived from the State of Florida, the
Federal Government and other focal and private sources that are required to finance designated
acfivities. Activities included within the funds are as follows:

Major Special Revenue Funds
Other Federal Programs Fund - To account for and report on activities of various
programs of different funding sources according fo the specifications and
requirements of each funding source,

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Food Service Fund - To account for and report on activities of the food service
program in serving breakfast and lunch at the schools.

Federal Economic Stimulus Programs Fund - Te account for programs funded
by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) and other Federal
stimulus programs, requiring separate accountability because of legal or
regulatory restrictions.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - FOOD SERVICE
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Food Service Fund

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounis Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Federal Through State and Local:
Food Service $ 15810,000 $ 16,199,631 $ 16,199,631 $
Total Federal Through State and Local 15,810,000 16,199,631 16,199,631
State:
Food Service 305,000 284,424 284,424
Total State 305,000 284,424 284,424
Local:
Charges for Food Service 3,811,000 3,436,585 3,480,641 44,056
Other Local Sources 3,000 8,360 8,360
Total Local 3,814,000 3,444,945 3,489,001 44,056
Tofal Revenues 19,929,000 18,828,000 19,873,066 44,056
EXPENDITURES
Current Education:
Food Services:
Salaries 4,845,000 4,807,717 4,854,574 43,143
Employee Benefits * 2,811,900 2,808,558 2,541,144 267,414
Purchased Services 704,679 641,577 525,886 115,692
Energy Services 360,150 274,641 274,641
Materials and Supplies 10,058,000 10,584,207 10,202,292 381,915
Capital Outlay 829,640 271,640 127,809 143,831
Other Expenses 1,983,548 1,666,477 1,499,617 56,860
Total Food Services 21,592,817 21,034,817 20,025,962 1,008,855
Fixed Capital Outlay:
Other Capital Outlay 558,000 221,022 336,978
Total Fixed Capital Outiay 558,000 221,022 336,978
Total Expenditures 21,592,817 21,692,817 20,246,984 1,345,833
Deficiency of Revenues Over Expenditures (1,663,817) (1,663,817) (273,928} 1,389,889
Net Change in Fund Balances (1,663,817) (1,663,817) (273,928) 1,389,889
Fund Balances, July 1, 2014 6,184,188 6,184,188 6,184,188
Fund Balances, June 30, 2015 $ 4,520,371 $ 4,620,371 $ 5,910,260 § 1,389,889
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - OTHER FEDERAL PROGRAMS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

REVENUES
Federal Direct;
Other Federal Direct Sources

Total Federal Direct

Federal Through State and Local:
Career and Technical Education
WIQA - Adult General Education
Cther Workforce and Innovation Cppertunity Act
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act
Elementary and Secondary Education Act - Title |
Gther Federal Through State and Local Scurces
Total Federal Through State and Local

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current Education;
Instruction:
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Outlay
Other Expenses

Total Instruction

Student Support Services:
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Outlay
Other Expenses

Total Student Support Services

Instructional Media Services:
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Capital Outlay
Other Expenses

Total Instructional Media Services

Other Federal Programs Fund

Variance with

97

Final Budgef -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts {Negative)
1,400,431 § 1,805,013 & 1,805,013  §
1,400,431 1,805,013 1,805,013
577,364 611,814 598,873 (12,941)
404,488 194,161 122,851 (64,310)
305,819 295,505 295,505
12,084,239 11,984,157 11,645,252 {338,905)
21,399,004 17,640,447 15,158,967 (2,481,480)
3,844,938 3,942,942 2,889,754 (1,053,188)
38,615,852 34,669,026 30,718,202 (3,950,824)
40,016,283 36,474,039 32,623,215 (3,950,824)
6,736,848 7,293,109 7,165,620 127,489
2,597,247 2,747,366 2,509,113 238,253
2,060,683 1,255,148 1,096,557 168,589
5,582,215 1,125,423 849,834 276,589
1,549,361 2,364,869 2,270,793 94,076
342,428 607,531 529,790 77,741
18,868,782 15,393,444 14,421,707 971,737
887,494 1,008,264 969,482 38,782
241,552 296,858 271,684 25,174
1,328,213 1,003,705 891,375 112,330
143,978 165,237 128,799 36,438
2,570 3,089 1,532 1,657
116,373 107,412 97,963 9,449
2,720,180 2,584,565 2,360,835 223,730
24,266 64,831 64,831
3,949 10,497 10,497
15,800 16,436 16,360 76
188 689 689
44,203 92,453 92,377 76
(Continued)



DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - OTHER FEDERAL PROGRAMS (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

EXPENDITURES
Current Education: (Continued)
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services:
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Outlay
Other Expenses

Total Instruction and Curriculum Devalopmant Sarvices

Instructional Staff Training Services:
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Qutlay
Other Expenses

Total Instructional Staff Training Services

Instruction-Related Technology:
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Purchased Services
Other Expenses

Total Instruction-Related Technolegy

General Adminlstration:
Other Expensas

Total General Administration

School Administration:
Salaries
Employse Benefits
Purchased Services

Total School Administration

Facllity Services:
Capital Outlay

Total Facllity Services

Fiscal Services
Purchased Services

Total Fiscal Services

Central Services:
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Other Expenses

Total Central Services

Qther Federal Programs Fund

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgefed Amouitts Positive
Orfginal Final Actual Amounts {Negative}
4,218,250 4,240,186 % 4023630 $ 216,556
1,240,093 1,199,832 1,116,304 82,528
183,034 164,462 127,796 36,666
75,813 83,945 63,170 20,775
28,419 46,773 39,066 7,717
12,300 12,298 12,208
5,758,009 5,747,496 5,382,254 366,242
3,086,912 2,934,036 2,577,093 356,043
794,085 832,215 700,561 131,654
1,712,558 2,196,077 1,653,860 642,217
575,023 750,694 208,121 542,573
342,948 201,168 132,683 68,582
312,872 180,569 127,653 52,916
6,904,378 7,094,756 5,208,871 1,794,886
1,405,233 1,316,865 1,214,720 102,145
428,970 405,149 364,553 40,5956
3,900 1,645 1,238 407
92,160 100,659 78,272 22,387
1,928,263 1,624,318 1,668,783 165,535
1,211,630 1,510,215 1,410,252 100,663
1,211,630 1,510,915 1,410,252 100,663
2,112 3,450 604 2,846
341 567 a7 460
813 813 813
3,266 4,820 701 4,118
57,695 37,221 37,221
57,595 37,221 37,221
505 505
505 505
27,568 25,373 22,016 3,358
11,195 10,896 7,281 3,615
39,006 43,515 39,124 4,391
9,000 1,317 1,317
2,080 2,882 1,403 1,479
885,849 83,983 71,140 12,843
{Continuad)
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - OTHER FEDERAL PROGRAMS (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

EXPENDITURES
Current Education; (Continued)
Student Transportation Services:
Purchased Services
Energy Services
Other Expenses

Total Student Transportation Services

Operation of Plant:
Purchased Services

Total Operation of Plant

Maintenance of Plant:
Purchased Services

Total Maintenance of Plant
Administrative Technology Services:
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Total Administrative Technology Services
Community Services:
Employee Benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Other Expenses
Total Community Services
Fixed Capital Outlay:
Facilities Acquisition and Construction
Other Capital Outlay
Total Fixed Capital Qutlay
Total Expendifures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, July 1, 2014

Fund Balances, June 30, 2015

Other Federal Programs Fund

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts ) Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
$ 15604 % 21,306 % 14305 § 7,000
8,505 2,180 1,959 221
908,374 385,220 356,443 28,777
1,022,483 408,705 372,707 35,998
37,881 32,024 25,134 6,890
37,981 32,024 25,134 6,890
500
500
55,499 57,751 57,751
16,056 16,435 16,435
71,555 74,186 74,186
1,561 1,424 1,424
7,660 3,684 3,684
1,445 1,246 1,246
109,930 634,384 534,384
120,596 640,738 540,738
22,924 30,889 39,889
1,155,459 804,381 833,595 270,798
1,178,383 944,280 673,484 270,798
40,016,653 36,474,408 32,521,885 3,852,514
(370) {370) 1,320 1,690
(370) {370} 1,320 1,690
370 370 370
$ $ $ 1,690 § 1,690
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - FEDERAL ECONOMIC STIMULUS PROGRAMS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Federal Economic Stimulus Programs Fund
: Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative}
REVENUES
Federal Through State and Local:
Race-to-the-Top $ 08578 $ 524824 $ 509,032 § (15,792)
Total Federal Through State and Local 08,578 524,824 509,032 (15,792)
Total Revenues 098,578 524,824 500,032 (15,792)
EXPENDITURES
Current Education:
Instruction:
Materials and Supplies 15,792 15,792
Capital Outlay 354,807 354,807
Total Instruction 370,599 354,807 15,792
Instructional Staff Training Services:
Salaries 37,842 37,838 37.838
Employee Benefits 3,200 3,200
Purchased Services . 21,832 50,895 50,895
Materials and Supplies 22,340 17,832 17,832
Capital Qutlay 31,836 31,836
Other Expenses 10,900 4,694 4,694
Total Instructional Staff Training Services 92,914 146,205 146,295
General Administration:
Other Expenses 1,172 3,438 3,438
Total General Administration 1,172 3,438 3,438
Central Services:
Purchased Services 1,667 1,667 1,667
Total Central Services 1,667 1,667 1,667
Administrative Technology Services;
Purchased Services 2,825 2,825 2,825
Total Administrative Technology Services 2,825 2,825 2,825
Total Expenditures 98,678 524,824 509,032 16,792
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
QOver Expenditures
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, July 1, 2014
Fund Balancges, June 30, 2015 $ $ $ $
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Debt Service Funds

The Debt Service Funds are used to account for the payment of interest and principal of the
current portion on long-term debt.

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds

Other Debt Service Fund - To account for and report on Certificate of
Participation Issues, characterized as lease-purchase agreements.

State Board of Education (SBE) Bond Fund - To account for and report on
payment of principal, interest, and related costs on the State school honds
issued by the SBE on hehalf of the District. These bonds are payable from the
District's portion of the State-assessed motor vehicle license tax.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL
DEBT SERVICE FUND - GTHER DEBT SERVICE
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Other Debt Service Fund
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budyeted Amounis Positive
Qriginal Final Actual Amounts {Negative)

REVENUES
Local:

Interest Income $ $ 1040 % 1.040 %

Total Local 1,040 1,040
Total Revenues 1,040 1,040
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:

Principal 3,620,768 3,620,768 3,620,768

Interest and Fiscal Charges 1,639,081 1,459,585 1,459,584
Total Expenditures 5,159,849 5,080,353 5,080,352
Deficiency of Revenues Over Expenditures | (5,159,8409) (5,079,313) (5,079,312}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Long-Term Debt Issues:

Refunding Cettificates of Participation 19,840,000 19,840,000

Premiums on Refunding Ceriificates of Participation 2,505,339 2,505,339

Payments to Refunding Escrow Agent (22,363,281) (22,363,281)
Transfers In 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) 5,000,000 4,982,058 4,082,058
Net Change in Fund Balances (159,849) (97,255) (97,254)
Fund Balances, July 1, 2014 4,488,502 4,466,502 4,466,502
Fund Balances, June 30, 2015 % 4,306,853 $ 4,369,247 $ 4,369,248 $
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL
DEBT SERVICE FUND - STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION (SBE) BONDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 :

State Board of Education (SBE) Bond Fund

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Qriginal Final Actual Amounts {Negative)

REVENUES
State:

CO and DS Withheld for SBE/COBI Bonds $ 1,322,953  § 1,288,789 $ 1,288,789 &

Other State Sources 1,128 1,129

Total State 1,322,053 1,289,918 1,289,918
Total Revenues 1,322,953 1,289,918 1,289,918
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:

Principal 1,148,000 1,148,000 1,148,000

Interest and Fiscal Charges 174,953 159,373 159,373
Total Expenditures 1,322,283 1,307,373 1,307,373
Deficiency of Revenues Over Expenditures {17,455) (17,455}
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Refunded Bonds Issued 627,000 627,000
Premium on Refunded Bonds 43,383 43,383
Payments to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent (763,007) (763,007)
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) (92,624) (82,624)
Net Change in Fund Balances (110,079) (110,079)
Fund Balances, July 1, 2014 173,805 173,605 173,805
Fund Balances, June 30, 2015 $ 173,605 63,526 § 63526 §
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Capital Projects Funds

The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the financing and acquisition or construction
of major capital facilities, such as new school buildings or additions to existing buildings, or for
major renovation projects. Specific funding scurces included herein are:

Major Capital Projects Funds

Capital Projects - Other Fund - To account for the financial resources generated
by the local voted sales tax and various other financial resources restricted for
educational capital outlay needs, including new construction, renovation, and
remodeling projects.

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

Local Capital Improvement Fund - To account for the financial resources
generated by the local capital improvement tax levy to be used for educational
capital outlay needs, including new construction, renovation and remodeling
projects, and debt service payments on certificates of participation.

Capital Qutlay and Debt Service Fund — To account for and report on the excess
dollars received through the State's Capital Outlay/Debt Service {CO/DS)

program, used for construction and maintenance of schools,

Public Education Capital Outlay Fund — To account for and report on funds
received from the State for the construction and maintenance of schools.

105



DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - LOCAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

REVENUES

Local:
Property Taxes
Interest Income

Total Local
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current - Education:
Facility Services:
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment
Improvements Other Than Buildings
Remodeling and Renovations
Computer Software

Total Facility Services

Fixed Capital Outlay:

Facilities Acquisition and Construction:

Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment
Motor Vehicles

Improvements Other Than Buildings
Remodeling and Renovations
Computer Software

Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Other Financing Uses
Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Uses

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, July 1, 2014

Fund Balances, June 30, 2015

Local Gapital Improvement Fund

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 20,340,194 $ 21,492,708 $ 21,492,708 $
45,286 45,286
20,340,194 21,537,994 21,537,994
20,340,194 21,537,994 21,637,984
768,679 2,353,039 2,131,188 221,851
613,124 1,176,558 590,994 576,564
3,409,140 6,855,123 5,134,583 1,720,540
423,710 564,919 385,162 179,757
5,214,653 10,949,639 8,250,027 2,698,712
2,648,098 853,552 486,461 367,091
6,510,494 6,947,114 6,782,884 164,230
183,885 341,795 119,814 221,981
13,704 23,470 23,470
433,113 291,852 201,852
9,789,304 8,457,783 7,412,629 1,045,154
15,003,857 19,407,422 15,663,556 3,743,866
5,336,337 2,130,672 5,874,438 3,743,866
{11,819,449) {12,533,001) (12,533,001)
{11,919,449) {12,533,091) (12,533,001)
(6,583,112) {10,402,519) {6,658,653) 3,743,866
19,403,433 19,403,433 19,403,433
$ 12,820,321 $ 9000914 § 12,744,780 § 3,743,866
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TQ ACTUAL
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - CAPITAL OUTLAY AND DEBT SERVICE
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Capital Cutlay and Debt Service Fund

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES :
State:
CO and DS Distribution $ 188,005  § 272,230 $ 272,230 $
Other State Sources 10,594 10,504
Tofal State 188,005 282,824 282,824
Total Revenues 188,005 282,824 282,824
EXPENDITURES
Current - Education:
Facility Services:
Improvements Other Than Bulldings 25,145 25,145 25,145
Remodeling and Renovations 917,660 917,660 168,320 749,340
Total Facility Services 942,805 942,805 168,320 774,485
Fixed Capital Outlay;
Facilities Acquisition and Construction:
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment 67,011 67,011 67,011
Improvements Other Than Buildings 11,289 11,289 14,280
Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction 78,300 78,300 78,300
Debt Service:
Dues and Fees 893 893
Total Deblt Service 893 893
Total Expendifures 1,021,105 1,021,998 169,213 862,785
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (833,100) {739,174) 113,611 852,785
Net Change in Fund Balances (833,100) (739,174) 113,611 852,785
Fund Balances, July 1, 2014 847,385 847,385 847,386
Fund Balances, June 30, 2015 [ 14,285 $ 108,211 $ 960,997 $ 852,785
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - PUBLIC EDUCATION CAPITAL OQUTLAY

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 -

Public Education Capital Outlay Fund

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounis (Negative)
REVENUES
State:
Public Education Capital Outlay 787683 % 787,693 787,693 3
Total State 787,693 787,683 787,693
Total Revenues 787,623 787,693 787,693
EXPENDITURES
Current - Education:
Facility Services:
Remodeling and Renovations 99,744 147,214 14,851 132,383
Total Facility Services 99,744 147 214 14,851 132,363
Total Expenditures 99,744 147,214 14,851 132,363
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 687,949 640,479 772,842 132,363
Other Financing Uses
Transfers Out (687.949) {640,479) {640,479)
Total Other Financing Uses (687,949) (640,479) {640,479)
Nef Change in Fund Balances 132,363 132,363
Fund Balances, July 1, 2014
Fund Balances, June 30, 2015 $ 132,363 $ 132,363
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TO ACGTUAL
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - OTHER CAPITAL PROJECTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Other Capital Projects Fund

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES
State:
Charter School Capital Outlay $ 400551 % 412,365  § 412,365 §
Total State 400,551 412,365 412,365
Local;
Sales Taxes 20,000,000 23,376,775 23,376,775
Interest Income 456,244 456,244
Total Local 20,000,000 23,833,019 23,833,019
Total Revenues 20,400,551 24,245,384 24,245,384
EXPENDITURES
Current - Education:
Facility Services:
Fumifure, Fixtures, and Equipment 937,658 1,703,845 1,305,331 308,514
Improvements Other Than Buildings 265,477 1,506,211 605,582 900,629
Remodeling and Renovations 14,915,413 15,960,697 6,809,800 9,150,807
Computer Software 1,448
Total Facility Services 16,119,096 19,170,753 8,720,803 10,449,850
Fixed Capital Outlay:
Facilities Acquisition and Construction:
Buildings and Fixed Equipment 67,632,858 66,322,544 18,902,235 47,420,309
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment 977,845 1,033,809 969,584 64,225
Land 1,868,000 1,054,377 29,070 1,925,307
Improvements Other Than Buildings 345,028 305,847 158,429 147,418
Remodeling and Renovations 681,847 680,889 263,928 416,861
Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction 71,505,676 70,297,466 20,323,246 49,974,220
Total Expenditures 87,625,672 89,468,219 29,044,049 60,424,170
Deficiency of Revenues Qver Expenditures {67,225,121} (65,222,835) (4,798,665) 60,424,170
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of Fixed Assets 1,877,010 1,877,010
Transfers Out (400,551} (412,365) {412,365)
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) (400,551} 1,464,645 1,464,645
Net Change in Fund Balances {67,625,672) (63,758,190) (3,334,020) 60,424,170
Fund Balances, July 1, 2014 72,662,054 72,662,054 72,662,054
Fund Balances, June 30, 2015 3 5,036,382 $ 8,903,864 $ 69,328,034 $ 60,424,170

109



Internal Service Funds

Internal service funds are nonmajor proprietary funds and are reported as Governmental-Type
Activities. They are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department to other departments within the District on a cost-relmbursement basis. The following
funds are included in the internal service funds:

Risk Management Fund — To account for and report on funds received for and
used by the District’s self-insured property, casualty, liability, and workers’
compensation program,

Employee Benefit Trust Fund — To account for and report on funds received for
and used to pay for life, health, and dental insurance issued under the District’s

self-insurance program.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2015

Governmental Activities

Proprietary Funds - Internal Service Funds

Self-Insurance
Risk Employee
Management Benefit Trust
Fund Fund Total
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 25,137,092 $ 14,674,372 $ 39,711,464
Due from Other Funds 13,622 13,622
TOTAL ASSETS $ 25,137,092 $ 14,587,994 $ 39,725,086
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ $ 243,288 $ 243,288
Due to Other Funds 401,405 275,671 1,377,076
Unearned Revenue 3,569,654 3,650,654
Estimated Insurance Claims Payable 3,321,507 2,338,102 5,659,609
Total Current Liabilities 3,722,912 7,116,715 10,839,627
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Estimated Insurance Claims Payable 21,414,180 21,414,180
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 21,414,180 © 21,414,180
TOTAL LIABILITIES 25,137,092 7,116,715 32,253,807
NET POSITION
Restricted for Employee Benefits 7,471,279 7,471,279
Total Net Position 7,471,279 7,471,279

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION $ 25,137,092 $ 14,587,894 % 39,725,086
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,

OPERATING REVENUES

Premium Revenues
Other
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries
Employee Benefits
Purchased Services
Energy Services
Material and Supplies
Capital Outlay
Insurance Claims
Other
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income
NONOPERATING REVENUES
Interest
Total Nonoperating Revenues
Income Before Transfers
Transfers out

Change in Net Position

NET POSITION
Total Net Position, July 1, 2014

Total Net Position, June 30, 2015

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Governmental Activities

Proprietary Funds - Internal Service Funds

Self-insurance
Risk Employee
Management . Benefif Trust
Fund Fund Total
$ 4,070,333 $ 30,983,931 $ 44,054,264
120,439 740,524 860,963
4,190,772 40,724,455 44,915,227
223,751 262,883 486,634
58,608 81,626 140,234
391,482 5121,428 5,612,910
5,537 10,581 16,118
2,261 2,966 5,227
3,536 3,536
3,508,541 30,871,399 34,379,940
5392 2,985,271 2,985,863
4,190,772 39,339,690 43,530,462
1,384,765 1,384,765
5,536 5,536
5,536 5,536
1,390,301 1,390,301
{46,970) (46,970)
1,343,331 1,343,331
6,127,948 6,127,948
$ $ 7,471,279 $ 7471279
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Board Funds and Participants
Cash Payments fo Suppliers for Goods and Services
Cash Payments to Employees for Services
Cash Payments for Interfund Services Used
Cash Payments fot Insurance Claims

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers To Other Funds
Net Cash (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Income
Net Cash Provided by Investment Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginning Cash and Cash Equivalenis

Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Acfivities:

Operating income
Adjustments to Reconclle Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Acfivities:
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease in Accounts Recelvable
Decrease in Due From Other Funds
Increase in Accounts Payable
Decrease in Due to Other Funds
Increase in Due to Other Agencies
Decrease in Unearned Revenue
Increase in Estimated Insurance Clzims Payable
Total Adjusiments

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
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Governmental Aclivities

Proprietary Funds - Internal Service Funds

Self-Insurance
Risk Employee
Management Benefit Trust
Fund Fund Total
4,000,388 § 40,838,227 % 44,928,615
{285,840) (8,004,444) (8,290,284)
(282,359) (344,508) (626,868)
10,903 (298,810) (285,907)
(2,741,088) (32,008,039) (34,7498,127)
792,004 184,425 976,429
(46,970} (48,970)
{48,970} (46,970)
5,536 5,536
5,636 5,536
792,004 142,991 934,995
24,345,088 14,431,381 38,776,469
25,137,002 § 14,574,372 § 39,711,464
$ 1,384,765  § 1,384,765
20,056 20,056
(13,622) {13,622)
(6,407} 120,610 114,203
10,903 (296,811} {285,908)
(1,272} (1,272)
127,394 127,394
767,452 (1,136,639) (369,187)
792,004 (1,200,340) {408,336}
702,004 % 184,425  § 976,429




Agency Funds

Agency funds are fiduciary funds and are used to account for resources held by the District in a
trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals or private organizations. These resources include
student and club activities funds that are held in trust for student, athletic, class, club activities,
etc., and a voluntary employee benefits program.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2015

Agency Funds
Student and Employee
Total Club Activities Benefits

ASSETS

Cash $ 2,847,945 $ 2,792,528 $ 55,417
LIABILITIES

Internal Accounts Payable 2,792,528 2,792,528

Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 55,417 55,417

Total Liabiliies $ 2,847,945 $ 2,792,528 $ 55,417
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - AGENCY FUNDS
June 30, 2015

Student and Club Activities

June 30, 2014 Additions Deletions June 30, 2015
Assets
Cash $§ 2773462 § 5305300 § 5286324 $ 2,792,528
Liabilities
Internal Accounts Payable $ 2,773,462 $ 5,305,390 $ 5,286,324 $ 2,792,528
Total Liabilities $ 2,773,462 $ 5,305,390 $ 5,286,324 $ 2,792,528
Employee Benefits Program
June 30, 2014 Additions Deletions June 30, 2015
Assets
Cash $ 587,660 $ $ 532,243 $ 55,417
Liabilities
Payroli Deductions and Withholdings 3 587,660 $ B 532,243 3 55,417
Total Liabilities 3 587,660 $ ] 532,243 $ 55,417
Total
June 30, 2014 Additions Deletions June 30, 2015
Assets :
Cash $ 3,361,122 $ 5,305,380 $ 5,818,567 $ 2,847,945
Liabilities
Internal Accounts Payable $ 2,773,462 $ 5,305,390 $ 5,286,324 % 2,792,528
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 587,660 532,243 55,417
Total Liabilities 3 3,361,122 $ 5,305,390 $ 5,818,567 $ 2,847,945
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Discretely Presented Component Units

The component units' columns in the basic financial statements, include the financial data of the
District's discrefely presented component units.

Nonmajor Discretely Presented Component Units

The Escambia County Public Schools Foundation for Excelience, Inc.
{Foundation} is a not-for-profit corporation organized and operated as a direct-
support organization under Section 1001.453, Florida Statutes, to raise funds,
receive, hold, invest, and administer property and to make expenditures for the
benefit of the District. Section 1001.453, Fiorida Statutes, requires the Foundation
to be authorized and approved by the District, The stated mission of the
Foundation is to enhance the quality of education in Escambia County Public
Schools through raising and distributing funds and in-kind contributions,
fostering involvement in the public system. The Foundation is considered to be a
component unit of the District because the District must approve all members of
the Foundation's board and the District has the ability to impose its will on the
Foundation. it is considered to be a discretely presented component unit because
the two boards are nof the same.

Beulah Academy of Science, Inc., Jacqueline Harris Preparatory Academy,
Pensacola Beach Elementary School, Inc., Escambia Charter School Inc., Five
Flags Elementary School, Newpoint Pensaccla Academy Middle School, Newpoint
Pensacola High School, Byrneville Elementary School, Inc., and Capstone
Academy Pensacola (Charter Schools) are separate not-for-profit corporations
organized pursuant to Chapter 617, Florida Statutes, the Florida Not For Profit
Corporation Act, and Section 1002.33, Florida Statutes. These nine charter
schools operate under charters approved by their sponsor, the Board, and are
considered to be component units of the District since they cannot levy taxes and
are fiscally dependent on the District to levy taxes for their support.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

COMPONENT UNITS
June 30, 2015
Charter Schools
Beulah Jacqueline Pensacola Escambia
Academy Harris Beach Charter Five Flags
of Preparatory Elementary School, Etementary
Science, inc. Academy School, Inc. Inc, School
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,019819  § 142,258 $ 827,104  § 220,084 § 35,066
Accounts Recelvable 5,386 189,505 7,340 596
Deposits Receivable 1,016
Prepaid ltems 9,359 743 29,835 16,409
Due from Cther Agencies 49,650
Capltal Assels:
Non-Depreclable Capital Assets 428,690
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 1,756,224 209,839 2,657,292 204,365
Total Assets 3,212,792 359,242 3,703,736 448,198 85,311
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflows Related fo Pensions 56,326
Total Deferred Gutflows of Resources 56,326
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESQURSES § 3,212,792 5 359,242 $ 3,760,062 % 448,198 & 85,311
LIABILITIES
Salaries and Benefits Payable 5 $ $ 20,463 $ $
Accounts Payable 3,006 20,253 193,190 10,696 599,792
Deposiis Payable
Note Payable
Long-Term Liabilities:
Portion Due or Payable Within One Year:
Notes Payable 175,329 2,350
Obligations Under Capital Leases 1,249 4,180
Compensated Absences Payable 11,296 6,259
Penslon Liability 193,720
Portion Due ot Payable After One Year:
Notes Payable 599,806 404,805
Obligations Under Capital Leases 14,955
Compensated Absences Payable 30,359 13,177
Total Liabilities 779,480 20,253 853,833 80,617 590,792
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions 90,351
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 90,351
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Caplial Assets 1,407,430 209,839 2,657,292 182,880
Reslricted for:
Debt Service 140,000
Capital Projecis
Other Purposes
Unrestricted 885,872 129,150 158,586 204,701 {514,481)
Total Net Position - Component Units 2,433,302 338,989 2,815,878 387,581 {514,481)
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION $ 3,212,792 $ 359,242 $ 3,760,062 & 448,198 § 85,311
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Charter Schools

The Escambia
Newpoint Byrneville County Public
Pensacola Newpoint Elementary Capstone Total Schools Total
Academy Pensacola School, Academy Charter Foundation for Component
Middle Schoof High School nc. Pensacola Schools Excellence, Inc. Units
$ 52,244 $ 1,591 $ 1,054,633 8614 § 3,361,113 % 685,601 $ 4,046,714
47,095 314,885 82,719 647,535 47,883 695,418
735 1,751 1,751
18,000 74,346 74,346
91,664 46,237 187,551 187,551
428,690 428,690
145,345 11C,193 5,082,258 1,428 5,083,686
209,003 363,458 1,193,978 201,526 9,783,244 734,912 10,518,156
74,852 131,178 131,178
74,852 131,178 131,178
$ 208,003 3 363,458 $ 1,274,830 201,526 % 9,914,422 § 734,912 $ 10,649,334
$ $ 3 955 & 21,418 % - 21,418
377,850 490,580 33,667 65 1,738,089 1,738,008
25 25 25
65,900 64,600 130,600 130,500
5,561 6,972 180,242 190,212
5,429 5,429
16,099 33,6654 33,654
225,356 419,076 419,076
731 1,005,442 1,005,442
14,955 14,955
7,988 51,524 51,524
449,311 555,180 283,110 8,748 3,610,334 3,610,334
115,014 205,365 205,365
115,014 205,365 205,365
145,345 162,450 4,705,276 1,428 4,708,704
140,000 140,000
3,159 3,159 3,159
555,517 555,517
(240,308) {191,722} 731,361 87,129 1,250,288 177,967 1,428,255
(240,308) {191,722) 876,706 192,778 6,098,723 734,912 6,833,636
$ 209,003 3 363,458 $ 1,274,830 201,526 % 9,914,422 § 734,912 $ 10,649,334
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
COMPONENT UNITS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Charter Schools

Jacqueline Pensacola
Beulah Harris Beach Escambia Five Flags
Academy of  Preparatory  Elementary Charter School, Eiementary
Sclence, lnc. Academy Schoaol, Inc. Inc. Schoaol
Functions/Programs
Expenses:
Governmental Activities:
Instruction § 720,844 5 8979097 § 773,920 $ 337,750 § 448,733
Student Personnel Services 1,249 1,006 50,966 1,910
Instructional Media Services 1,673 223
Instruction and Curriculum Developmant Services 400 4,667 442 1,500
Instructional Staff Tralning Services 640 850
Instruction-Related Technology 38,626 61,722
Roard of Education 500 978 155,548
General Administration 237 32,195
School Administration 257,795 246,539 179,457 3,219 233,685
Facllity Services 5,080 187,004 23,763 127,247
Fiscal Services 13,500 34,000 30,685 152,660 15,769
Food Services 159,567 837 8,582
Central Services 88,505 57,283
Student Transportation Services 194,054 123,454 18,940 139,075
Operation of Plant 173,966 246,243 10,366 85,127 39,494
Maintenance of Plant 87,559 71,288 1,827 21,505 2,180
Community Services 5
Unabocated Interest on Long-Term Debt 44,589 10,983 278
Unallocated Depreclation Expense
Total Expenses 1,729,558 1,337,604 1,274,674 874,104 1,095,395
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services 55,422 140,400
Operating Grants and Contributions 249,670 58,435 17,010 114,724
Capital Grants and Contributions 67,503 121,575
Total Program Revenues 306,082 126,028 278,985 114,724
MNet Program Expense {1,424,466) (1,211,576) {995,689) (759,380) (1,095,395)
General Revenues and Special tem:
Grants and Contributions Mot Restrictad to Spacific Programs 1,623,046 1,177,003 953,517 586,339 577,260
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 9,497 202
Miscellaneous 2,752 10,726 6,184 11,959
Total General Revenues and Special ltem 1,625,798 1,187,729 963,014 692,725 530,219
Changes in Net Position 201,332 (23,847) (32,675) {66,655) (508,176)
Net Position
Net Position, July 1, 2014 - As Previously Reported 2,231,970 362,836 3,088,249 454,236 {(8,308)
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Princlple {239,696)
Net Position, July 1, 2014 - As Restated 2,231,970 362,836 2,848,553 454,236 (8,308)
Net Posttion, June 30, 2015 § 2433302 § 338080 § 2815878 § 387,581 $ (514,481)
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Charter Schools

The Escambla
Newpoint County Public
Pensacola Newpoint Byrneville Capstone Schools Total
Academy Middle  Pensacola High Elementary Academy Totaf Charter Foundation for Component
School School School, Inc. Pensacola Schools Excellence, inc. Units

$ 357,852 § 228,626 831,685 % 430,756 § 4727972 & 704,832  § 5,432,604
1,581 10,348 736 67,886 67,885

1,796 1,798

1,800 8,809 8,809

1,698 1,084 4,072 4,072

10,483 12,978 123,807 123,807
245,754 158,405 561,185 561,185
11,862 44,294 151,775 196,069

130,510 117,863 178,063 108,161 1,486,192 1,456,182
245,506 146,455 2,400 738,444 738,444
26,643 16,474 12,476 4,015 306,221 308,221
15,924 9,874 10,746 2,423 207,953 207,953
30,535 460 176,783 176,783

62,659 4,985 543,167 543,167

73,386 45,307 9%,328 24,346 797,553 797,553
17,360 9,623 243 535 191,990 191,290

9 4 18 18

22,318 17,108 558 95,924 95,924
83,890 88,479 13,991 186,360 186,360
1,232,913 862,516 1,230,870 503,002 10,240,426 866,407 11,096,833
7,530 6,447 8,931 164,378 383,106 383,106

26,350 466,189 466,188

57,949 48,576 295,693 295,693
65,479 55,023 35,281 164,376 1,144,988 1,144,988
(1,167,434} (807,4¢3) (1,195,289) (438,716) (9,095,438) (B56,407) (9,851,845)
1,013,057 637,406 1,324,435 380,236 8,372,309 685,900 9,058,299
1,837 30 11,366 432 11,798

1,257 250 81,290 114,418 197,097 311,515
1,014,314 637,656 1,328,072 461,656 8,498,183 883,420 9,381,612
(153,120) {169,5837) 130,783 22,940 (597,265) 27,022 (670,233)
(87,188) (21,885) 1,026,282 169,838 7,215,033 707,890 7,922,923
(278,359) (519,055} {619,055}

(87.188) (21,888) 745,923 162,838 6,685,978 707,820 7,403,868

% {240,308) § (191,722) 876,706 § 192778 § 6,008,723 $ 734,912 % 8,833,635

121



This page was intentionally left blank.

122



STATISTICAL SECTION
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the District School Board of Escambia County, Florida's comprehensive annual
financial report presents detail information as a context for understanding what the
information in the financial statements, notes disclosures and required supplementary
information says about the District's overall financial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trend Information 126

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader
undersfand how the District's financial performance and well-being
have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity Information 134

Theses schedules contain information to help the reader assess the
Disirict's most significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity Information 140

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the District's current levels of outstanding debt and the
government's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 144

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators fo help
the reader understand the environment within which the District's
financial activities take place.

Operating Information 148

These schedules contain service data to help the reader understand
how the information in the District’s financial report refales to the
services the District provides and the activities it performs.
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DISTRICT SCHCOL BOARD CF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT - GOVERNMENT-WIDE

Governmental Activities:
Net Investment in Capifal Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Governmental Activities Net Position

Business-Type Activities:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Business-Type Activities Net Position
Primary Government:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Reslricted
Unrestricted

Total Primary Government Net Position

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30, 2006

June 30, 2007

June 30, 2008

$ 165,456,952

$ 178,015,643

$ 188,476,535

104,744,385 128,677,400 141,958,454
{4,437,218) (5,337,670) (8,743,741)
265,764,119 302,255,373 321,691,248
9,504 12,755
9,504 12,756
165,456,952 178,915,643 188,476,535
104,744,385 128,677,400 141,958,454
(4,427,714) (5,324,915) (8,743,741

$ 265,773,623

$ 302,268,128

$ 321,601,248

Source: District Records
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Fiscal Year Ending
June 30, 2009 June 30, 2010 June 30, 2011 June 30, 2012 June 30, 2013 June 30, 2014 June 30, 2015

$ 219,815,751 $ 225,400,496 $ 252,115638 § 254,218,697 $ 252,132,081 $ 269,930,903 $ 288,526,040

123,598,721 134,790,510 107,465,893 115,478,880 119,870,743 121,223,565 115,241,269
(8,902,576) (3,287,900) 22,166,216 5,026,408 90,030 (2,969,337) (131,832,624)
334,511,896 356,903,007 381,747,747 374,722,983 372,093,754 388,185,131 272,134,685
219,815,751 225,400,496 252,115,638 254,218,697 252,132,081 269,930,903 288,526,040
123,508,721 134,700,510 107,485,893 115,478,880 119,870,743 121,223,565 115,241,269
(8,902,576) (3,267,909) 22,166,216 5,025,406 90,030 (2,969,337) (131,632,624)

$ 334,511,896 $ 356,903,097 $ 381,747,747 $ 374,722,983 § 372,003,754 $ 388,185,131 $ 272,134,685
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Primary Government:

Expenses:
Governmental Activities:
Instruction
Siudent Personnel Services
Insfructional Media Sernvices
Instruction and Currisulum
Development Services
Instruconal Staff Training Services
Instruction Related Technology
Board of Education
General Administration
School Administration
Facility Services
Fiscal Services
Food Service
Central Services
Studsnt Transportation Services
Cperafion of Plant
Maintenance of Plant
Administrative Technology Services
Community Services
Unallocated Interest on Long-Term Debt
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets
Unallocated Depreciation

Total Governmental Activiies Expenses

Business-Type Activities:
Panbandle Management Development Network

Total Business-Type Activities Expenses
Total Primary Government Expenses

Program Revenues:
Governmental Activities:

Charges for Services:
Instruction
Fagility Services
Food Services
Trangportation
Community Services

Operating Grants and Contributions

Caplal Grants and Contributions

Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues

DISTRICT SHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - GOVERNMENT-WIDE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

{Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007 June 30, 2008 June 30, 2009 June 30, 2010 June 30, 2011 June 30, 2012 June 30, 2013 June 30, 2014 June 30, 2015
$ 184,674,639 § 200,035,407 $ 210,698,078 $ 205755887 $ 205,951,789 $ 200,265,786 $ 197,679,286 $ 202,319,715 $ 200,433,368 $ 206,850,659
16,289,854 17,710,197 17,158,487 16,952,375 16,858,395 16,848,558 15,147,309 15,295,809 16,018,809 16,357,758
5,471,588 5,877,497 5,581,263 5,302,170 4,761,283 4,772,147 4,223,246 4,170,561 4,224,367 4,400,081
10,324,742 11,838,007 11,812,859 10,898,048 11,197,176 11,008,291 £,883,085 8,685,168 10,038,842 10,450,035
7,157,151 7,408,238 7,787,869 7,202,570 8,724,396 8,633,858 7,502,117 8,083,368 9,138,689 8,497,923
2,677,467 2,777,732 3,267 448 3,105,661 3,923,575 4,254,642 4,054,693 4,295,397 4,401,182 4,185,587
1,083,889 1,083,258 1,212,416 1,169,148 1,564,164 1,444,331 1,353,109 1,272,572 1,198,527 1,223,781
1,741,746 1,368,805 1,525,336 1,808,860 3,003,731 2,653,708 1,518,541 1,581,664 2413878 2,211,509
14,577,098 15,866,202 15,674,843 14,445,918 14,770,094 14,368,227 13427115 14,123,325 14,787,725 14,978,087
37,322,498 37,396,130 31,604,053 22,275,464 17,510,854 15,698,810 16,667,247 9,966,883 13,506,908 18,944,374
2,104,480 2,266,833 2,386,653 2,211,047 2,184,481 2,298,755 2,180,162 2,401,752 2,164,484 2,335,937
18,021,854 18,852,187 18,578,045 18,394,973 18,878,371 18,486,682 26,414,794 21,199,498 20,988,484 20,515,294
3,440,807 4,180,563 5,103,314 3,830,766 3,857,958 3,967,315 4,629,028 5,019,010 4791 656 5,050,783
15,593,018 17,173,433 17,894,762 18,143,178 17,537,020 18,863,979 18,651,437 19,359,259 18,220,613 17,788,057
23,119.212 27,270,568 28,308,033 27,722,642 28,935,143 28,489,116 28,363,047 27,069,683 27,217458 27,089,043
19,020,854 13,854,263 11,875,929 11,125,532 10,704,985 11,255,993 10,749,457 11,641,163 10,943,295 11,041,447
3,670,920 3,712,180 3,813,807 3,719,871 3,681,151 3,781,038 3,891,879 3,811,728 3,048,080 3.508,846
§94,296 706,533 887,108 985,155 1,242,581 1,084,175 1,283,875 1,458,102 1,384,546 1,119,788
3,181,513 3,650,126 3,251,291 2,876,984 2,843,124 2,643,630 2,404,544 2,105,728 1,883,018 1,855,833
1,008,503 3,653,313 334,148 1,123,337
371,154,107 396,835,468 388,777,831 378,854,885 377,531,251 379,810,056 363,894,261 364,960,386 367,703,010 379,364,936
47,785 55,804 8,000
47,785 65,894 8,000
371,201,892 396,801,382 398,785,831 378,854,885 377,531,251 379,810,056 363,994,281 364,960,386 387,703,010 370,364,936
1,163,378 1,186,281 1,221,058 1,148,218 1,384,372 1,344,462 1,302,174 1,040,440 1,154,747 916,332
33,888 40,716 28,759
5,833,058 8,104,082 5,901,163 5,753,396 5,282,975 5,185,911 4,734,992 4,033,654 3,827,300 3,480,641
457,021 415,479 262,892 437,998 236,127 252,548 241,844
394,213 383,075 424883
23,186,429 23,196,783 22,883,048 23,782,878 13,816,659 14,392,698 15,000,374 16,029,098 15,880,352 16,484,055
8,628.047 14,383,520 12,787,860 5,549,903 2 872,668 11,338,456 1,966,452 2,583,367 2,032,234 6,084,047
36,808,912 44 880,666 42,803,130 36,689.416 23,782,153 32,534.41¢ 23,441,890 24 370,788 24,190,872 27,670,761
(Continued) {Confinued)
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Business-Type Activifies:
Charges for Services

Tota! Business-Type Activities Program Revenues

Total Primary Govermmant Program Revenues

Net (Expenses)/Revenues
Governmental Activities
Businass-Type Activities

Total Primary Government Net Expensas

General Revenues and Other Changes
in Net Position:
Governmental Activities:
Property Taxes:
Levied for Operational Purposes
Levied for Capital Projects
Local Sales Taxes
Grants and Contribuions Not Restricted to
Specific Programs
Unrestricted Investment Eamings
Miscellaneous
Loss Recoveries
Transfers

Total Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities:
Transfers
investment Eamings

Tetat Business-Type Activities

Total Primary Government General Revenues
and Other Changes in Net Posltion

Changes in Net Pesition;
Governmental Activitiss
Adiustment to Net Fosition (a)
Business-Type Activitiss

Total Primary Government

DISTRICT SHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - GOVERNMENT-WIDE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{Accrual Basis of Accounting)

{Unaudited)
Fiscal Year Endin
June 30, 2006 June 30, 2007 June 30, 2008 June 30, 2009 June 30, 2010 June 30, 2011 June 20,2012 June 38, 2013 June 36, 2014 June 30, 2015
3 47,568 $ 68,770 _$ $ 3 3 3 $ $ $
47598 88,770
36,856,510 44,949,436 42 803,130 36,689,416 23,782,153 32,534.419 23,441,890 24,370,788 24,150,872 27,670,761
{334,345,195) {351,954,802) {855,974,701) (342,165,289) (353,749,098) (347,275,637) (340,552,271) (340,588,598} (343,512,038) {351,694,175)
{187} 2.876 (8,900)

(334,345,382) {351,951,926) {355,982,701) (342,165,269) (353,749,088) (347,275,637} (340,552,271) (340,589,598) {343,512,038) {351,694,175)
65,457,064 81,045,039 85,413,368 07,379,871 106,137,711 89,288,288 92,658,245 89,803,524 91,977,693 85,102,045
21,702,808 27507116 29,869,892 27,210,547 20,086,464 18,435,553 21,988,423 21,518,559 22,777,599 21,492,708
22,770,190 21,969,232 20,655,828 19,438,020 18,742,256 19,643,863 20,135,054 20,944,666 21,856,254 23,376,775

221,582,688 225,973,513 224 459137 204,808,168 224,485,318 230,271,878 195,548,584 202,402,869 219,193,213 222,805,305

6,555,524 8,754,067 5,787,425 1,743,725 492,008 295,489 158,475 77.582 96,333 584,835
2,941,087 3,015,538 4,758,160 3,319,666 65,216,542 4,185,317 2,937,726 3,213,169 3,702,323 3,604,535
22,011,233 20,181,553 4,484,012 1,085,818
4,755
363,320,604 386,446,056 375,410,576 354,855,918 376,140,298 372,120,286 333,527,507 337,960,369 358,603,415 367,066,203
(4,755)
173 375
173 375 {4,755)
363,320,777 388,446.4 375,405,821 354,985,216 376,140,289 372,120,286 333,527,507 337,960,368 359,603415 367.066,203
28,875,408 36,491,254 19,435,875 12,320,647 22,391,201 24,844,649 {7,024,764) (2,629,228) 16,081,377 15,372,028
{131,422,474)
(14) 3,281 (12,755}
§ 28975395 3 36,484 505 § 19423120 § 12820647 _§ 22,381,201 $ 24,844,848 $ (7,024764) 5 (2,628,229) § 16,091.377 $ (116,050,448)

(a) Adjustment dus tc Implementation of GASB 68 "Actounting &nd Financial Reporting for Pensions.”

Source: District Records
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COQUNTY, FLORIDA

General Fund
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total General Fund
All Other Governmental Funds

Nonspendable
Restricted

Total All Cther Governmental Funds

General Fund

Reserved for;
Encumbrances
State Categorical Programs
Inventories
Legal Restrictions
Other Purposes

Unreserved

Total General Fund

All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved for:
Debt Service
Encumbrances
[nventories
Unreserved, Reported in:
Special Revenue Funds
Debt Service Funds
Capital Projects Funds

Total All Other Governmental Funds

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAIL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)
{Unaudited)
Post-GASBE 54
Fiscal Ysar Ending

June 30, 2011 June 30, 2012 June 30, 2013 June 30, 2014 June 30, 2015
$ 1,215,720 $ 1,208,455 $ 1,208,455 $ 1,215,625 $  1,208455
9,184,279 13,311,648 9,106,284 17,486,027 13,050,637
15,762,759 20,804,591 21,234,802 20,243,410 22,247,645
40,731,996 20,156,678 19,036,830 14,514,070 14,769,425
$ 66,804,754 $ 55,481,373 $ 50,566,371 $ 53,459,132 $ 51,266,062
$ 1,334,910 $ 1,286,998 5 1,600,470 5 1,716,215 $ 1,977,837
92,954,183 85,657,381 106,024,402 102,022,323 81,633,061
$§ 94,280,093 $ 96,044,389 $ 107,624,872 $ 103,737,638 $ 083,510,898

Pre-GASB 54

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30, 2006

June 30, 2007

June 30, 2008

June 30, 2009

June 30, 2010

$ 12,727,760 $ 1,191,867 § 2,352,701 $ 1,336,715 $ 1,600,721
3,391,398 5,202,838 4,293,074 7,549,726 12,581,661
1,319,469 1,366,364 1,422,407 1,316,108 1,270,326

4,267,082 3,005,887 1,706,293

1,381,969 1,608,877
20,703,572 20,481,566 24,826,303 24,432,388 32,916,644
$ 30524168 § 39841512 $§ 37162467 $ 37,640,824 $ 50,084,645
$ § $ 231,418 $ 244,188 $ 220,117
12,308,154 13,303,247 28,393,311 13,645,239 28,830,870
1,148,835 1,070,863 1,078,435 1,337,149 1,178,765
4,604,630 4,426,188 3,880,807 4,779,396 5,733,237
2,915,269 4,742,564 4,480,160 4,715,914 4,743,612
67,713,542 86,377,339 84,673,574 78,322,174 66,064,908
$  88,690430 $ 109,920,201 $ 122,646,705 $ 103,044,060 $ 106,771,400

Source: District Records
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el

Revenues:

Faderal Diract:
Federal Impaat, Cument Gperations
Reserve Officers Training Corps (ROTC)
Other Federat Diract Sournes

Total Federal Direct

Federal Through State and Local:
Food Service
Crther Federal Through State and Lacal Sources

Totsl Faderal Through State and Local

State:
Flarida Education Finance Program (FEFF)
Workforce Development
Adulfs with Disabilites
Categorical Educational Programs
Discretionary Lettery Funds
€0 and DS Distribution
CO and DS Withheld for SBE/COBI Bonds
Public Edusafion Capftal Outlay
Class Size Reductien
Food Service
Other State Saurces

Total State

Local:
Praperty Taxes
Charges for Foed Service
Sales Taxes
Intgrest income
Other Local Sources

Total Locai
Total Revanues

Expsnditures:

Current:
Instruction
Siudent Personnel Services
Tnstruptional Media Services
Instruction and Curriculurr
Development Services
metructional Staff Training Services
Instruction Related Technology {a)
Board of Education

DISTRIGT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMEBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES QF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Modified Asorual Basis of Aepounting)

{Unaudited)
June 30, 2606 Jume 30, 2007 June 30, 2003 Junte 30, 2009 Junre 30, 210 June 30, 2011 June 34, 2012 June 30, 2013 June 30, 2014 June 30, 2015
] 923,300 5 152581 k] .183.926 3 1018878 3§ 785872 0§ 920,950 $ 724,457  § 7016800 § 550,887 3 815,568
453,665 417,065 408,098 413,473 z 433,570 424,206 435,808 437,968 438,955
311,764 962,300 772,319 £84.277 1,277,879 1.848,880 2,033,007 2,494,510 1,848,852 1.991.890
1.688.728 2.531.946 2.365.343 2,126,369 2.479,588 3,203,440 3,181,670 3,632.018 2.838,614 3,046.411
11,318,001 1,671,718 11,410,831 11,678,088 13.479,938 14,045,674 14,682,589 15,386,860 15,567,668 16,188,831
38,520,498 35,048,555 31.078.829 35,881,374 61,469,091 64.993.242 34,657,795 34.718.040 34,830,587 34,186,962
49,838 589 46,720,273 42,488 360 47,458,412 74,949,077 79.038.916 48,340,384 50,105,800 50.418,265 50,386,593
138,867,236 137,022,162 119,465,949 112,681,938 109,426496 110,995,559 105,658,076 113,112,565 130,085,750 133,079,212
5,228,544 5,432,193 5,272,821 5,047,803 4,632,491 4,532,780 4785518 4778222 4,895,677 4,880,129
293,265 282,871 270,706 241,255 230,654 219,164 187,087 160,690 162,244 167,298
42,949,748 52,103,260 72,989,150 58,145,077 44,810,770 42,556,763 42,860,100 43,640,636 43,375,211 45,171,285
1,864,953 1,986.871 1,880,022 942,782 106,881 143,196 125,812 387,403 142,093
171,673 191,946 383,269 258,043 228,989 179,241 155,363 184,231 181,172 272,230
1,409,332 1.384.081 1,270,660 1,277,057 1383.223 1,408,787 1,446,634 T.427.308 1,441,102 1,288,789
4,200,190 5,493,269 6,231,986 3,264,046 821,950 2,262,924 787,693
660,491 6,895,080 4,067,135
I1m7 371,943 367,566 360,688 336,673 347,024 N7 775 301,994 302,684 284,424
2971613 3 181.271 2,858,430 2,237,883 1,957,074 4,002,516 4428 113 3,018 987 3183878 2680220
200,038,065 214,054,757 215.057.694 184,461,177 163,735,201 166.648.254 160,046,578 166,625,923 183 954 521 188,753.373
87,159,872 108,552,155 115,283,258 124,590,418 126,204,175 TI7, 723,841 114,647 668 111,322,083 114,755,292 116,594,753
5,833,050 6,104,082 5,901,163 5,753,396 5,282,976 5,185,811 4,734,991 4,033,654 3.827.300 3,480,641
22,770,180 21,868,232 20,655,828 19,438,020 18,742,256 19,643 663 20,135,054 20,944,666 21,866,254 23,376,775
5855365 7,854,187 5,232,574 1,683,864 453,046 281,179 141,013 55,362 96,333 596,541
4104465 4201818 5976238 4.822 904 58201739 5423005 4289005 4440038 5,718,317 5.079.049
125722951 _ 146881474 153040087 150388602 _ 15884702 _ 148267500 143947621 140795301 146,253,496 149,127,750
377,258,334 411,985,450 412,955,459 380,435,580 398,048,059 397,158,208 356518463 _ 381,159,842 383454796 391,314,136
181,014,101 194,003,280 204,278,206 198,766,964 198,538,780 198,014,371 189,523,811 188,948,850 192,462,254 205,019,212
16,499,340 17,744,031 17,053,141 16,925,018 16,780,482 16,560,587 15,268,235 14,898,845 15,988,593 16,849,656
5,556,320 5,866,894 5,461,659 5,271,893 4,700,758 4,594,243 4,142,088 4,039,942 4,210,339 4,557.548
10,322,096 11,518,824 11,883,817 10,950,585 77,780,453 10,918,167 9,885,299 9,438,703 9,927,607 10,540,363
7152755 7,407,768 7,728,025 7,271,003 83,732,663 8,626,753 7.522,735 8,025,677 9,134,087 8,576,510
2531278 2,777,316 2,814,699 2,725,577 3,468,362 3,742,020 3,551.024 3.855.314 4,035,137 3,593,032
898,235 1,082,728 1,208,764 1,157,359 1,543,620 1,413,818 1,325,749 1.236,702 1,184,084 1,264,087

{Continued)



eel

General Administration

School Administration

Facility Sarvices

Fiscal Services

Food Service

Centrai Senvices

Student Transpartation Services
Oneration of Plant

Maintenance of Plant
Administrative Technology Services (a)
Community Services

Fixed Capital Qutlay:
Fagilities Acquisftion and Construction
Other Capital Outlay
Debt Servica:
Principal
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

Other Financing Seurces {Uses}
Bonds lssued
Refunding Bonds lssued
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets
Loss Recoveries
Cerlificates of Participation ssued
Refunding Cerfificates of Participation Issued
Premiums on Long-Term Debt lasued
Payment o Rafunding Escrow Agent
Transfers In
Transfers Out

Total Other Finanaing Scurces {Usas)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, Beginning

Fund Balances, Ending

Debt Service as a Percentaga of
Naoncapital Expendiiures

DISTRICT SCHOOQL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA CQUNTY, FLORIDA

CHANGES IN FUND BALANGES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

{Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

(Unaudited)
June 20, 2005 June 30, Z007 Juna 30, 2008 June 349, 2008 June 30, 2010 June 30, 2011 June 30, 2012 June 30, 2013 June 30, 2014 June 30, 2015
B 1749728 S 1360405 § 15043089 % Le21Me 3 2983753 § 2545919 & 1405283 § 1,558,318 § 2,400,159 § 2,238,154
14,768,768 15,800,380 15,390,211 14,599,860 14,106,346 13,998,296 13,553,109 13,659,134 14,743,200 15,569,808
29,608,301 32,431,045 23,719.493 16,403,257 13,674,311 12,200,265 14,446,528 9,776,555 13,324,504 17,898,083
2,136,650 2,255801 2,350,543 2,253,484 2,136,908 2,226,105 2,125,860 2,331,986 2.158.270 2,415,832
17,712,161 16,667,353 18,262,744 17,837,965 18,256,402 17,787,701 16,800,047 20,180,916 20,628,628 20,171,124
3,368,861 4,012,918 4,970,337 3,852,480 3,736,102 3,791,850 4,508,051 4,763,206 4,959,376 5,106,613
14,588,532 15,868,321 16,406,516 16,637,566 15,783,172 16,556,430 16,865,818 16,134,634 16,362,000 16,274,782
23,246,435 27,282,271 28,261,523 27,700,704 28.8562.877 28,290,543 28,074,548 26,741,413 27,123,194 27,292,882
17,443,160 12293035 11,547,704 10,806,804 10,268,080 10,813,898 0,196,603 10885410 10,502,744 10,953,267
2,880,297 3,143,570 3,147,233 3,134,090 3.055.616 3,228,741 3,429,491 3,188,998 3,568,873 3,260,347
664,208 709,533 896,030 885,155 1,239,929 1,081,523 1,251,320 1,446,291 1,379,526 1,123,431
11,629,260 24,593,503 21,585,160 38,805,555 16,875,764 33,036,849 11,405,823 7,643,361 23,947,575 27,810,019
4,746,264 3,768,805 3,174,268 2,451,582 3.080,689 2,049,474 1,723,958 2,191,130 1,381,185 1,622,740
4477,131 4,455,384 4,434,860 4,541,762 4,380,125 4,221,187 4,213,695 4,498,680 4,697,828 4,768,768
2,102,584 S5.475.0895 3.208.832 2,738,960 2704 475 2,507,998 2,205 429 2105728 1,852.012 1,619.850
376,255,871 410,822 868 408,007 454 410,645,767 385,073,452 400,126,738 366,615,322 357,649,506 386,172,854 408,832,585
1.032.363 1,365,562 3,948,005 20,210,207} 12,974,607 (2,968,529 (10,098 859) 3,510,046 {2,708.053) (17.515,449)
1,285,000 225,000
3,260,000 2,625,000 229,000 627,000
2,189 3,195,330 1,669,972 824,408 1,113,573 1,877,010
4,750,744 1,085,918 1.233 7474473 45,345 650,765 500,000 3285325
20,000,000
1,124,561 19,840,000
301,935 46,756 19,346 255,174 36,560 2,548,722
(23,515,752} (3,986,280) (186,007 (23.126,288)
12,851,686 14,218,508 15,448,151 15,817,649 11,996,925 17,364,796 16,156,101 16,449,253 12,691,682 13,632,905
(12.851,686) (14218,508) ____ (15443.306) (15.817.549) {11.096.925) {11,792,293) (16.549.100) (15.748.991) (12,691.323) (13.585.935)
46,183 §.099.454 1085919 3.196.563 7.286,322 1.340.774 2275435 1.693.485 5.098.739
23,089,779 21,547,115 10.047,459 119,124,288} 18,171,170 4,327,783 (8,758,085) 5,785,481 {1,014,573) (12,419, 710)
105,124,820 128,214,599 148,761,714 159,808,173 140,684,885 156,856,054 161,183,847 152,425,762 158,211,243 157,196,670
§ 128214509 _§ 149.761.794 158800173 F 140684885 & 56856085 & 161783847 $ 152425762 5 158211243 5 157196670, &  144.776.960
2.11% 2.08% 1.89% 197% 1.84% 1,83% 183% 1.90% 1.84% 1.68%

(a} In fiscal year ending Juns 30, 20086, twoe new function/program expendituras classifications ware established to report technology expenditures previously reported in central services.

Source: Distriet Records



DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

{Unaudlited)
Fiscal Property Tax Sales Total
Year General Capital Tax

Ending Purposes Projects
June 30, 2015 $ 95,102,045 $21,492,708 $ 23,376,775 $ 139,971,528
June 30, 2014 91,977,693 22,777,599 21,856,254 136,611,546
June 30, 2013 89,803,524 21,518,559 20,944,666 132,266,749
June 30, 2012 92,658,245 21,989,423 20,135,054 134,782,722
June 30, 2011 99,288,288 18,435,553 19,643,663 137,367,504
June 30, 2010 106,137,711 20,066,464 18,742,256 144,946,431
June 30, 2009 97,379,871 27,210,548 19,438,020 144,028,439
June 30, 2008 85,413,366 29,869,892 20,655,828 135,939,086
June 30, 2007 81,045,039 27,507,116 21,969,232 130,521,387
June 30, 2006 65,457,064 21,702,808 22,770,190 109,930,062

Source: District Records
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD COF ESCANMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(amounts expressed in thousands)

{Unaudited)
Fiscal Assessed Value Less: Total Ratio of Total
Year Real Personal Cenfrally Total Exemptlions Taxable Taxable Value Direct
Property Property Assessed Assessed Value to Assessed Rate
Property Value Value
201415 $ 24,030,738 § 2,593,312 § 26,499 $ 26,650,649 $ 9.578,244  $17,072,305 64.08% 7.322
201314 21,388,874 2,266,095 25485 23,669,454 9,446,754 14,222,700 60.09% 7.557
201213 20,679,182 2,210,561 24,518 22,914,351 9,342,485 13,571,866 59.23% 7.758
201112 20,879,864 2,204,413 22,872 23,107,149 8,111,344 14,995,805 64.90% 7.821
2010-11 21,289,236 2,209,638 23,087 23,521,056 8,193,669 15,328,200 65.17% 7.860
2009-10 23,233,171 2,303,867 21,196 25,568,174 10,310,080 15,248,094 59.66% 7.860
2008-09 25,691,952 2,659,525 23,023 28,374,600 12,637,387 15,837,113 55.81% 7.720
2007-08 26,716,632 2,361,421 21,134 29,099,187 13,148,156 15,851,031 54.82% 7.720
2006-07 24,459,300 2,374,054 18,447 26,861,801 12,025,873 14,826,928 55.21% 7.804
2005-06 18,228,317 2,175,889 17,649 20,420,055 8,806,171 11,613,884 56.87% 8.033
Notes: Assessed values approximate estimated actual values.

Tax rates per $1,000 of assessed value.

Source: Escambia County Property Appraiser and Flerida Department of Revenue
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

Direct Rates:

District School Board:
Local Required Effort
Discretionary Local
Supplemental Discretionary
Capital Improvement

Total District Schoo! Board

Overtapping Rates:
Escambia County

Escambia County Municipal
Service Taxing Unit

City of Pensacola

City of Pensacola Downtown
Improvement Board

Northwest Florida Water
Management

Town of Century

PROPERTY TAX RATES

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{per $1,000 Assessed Valuation)

{Unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09
5.273 5.134 4960 5.286
0.510 0.510 0.510 0.498
0.250 0.250 0.250 0.250
2.000 2.000 2.000 1.686
8.033 7.894 7.720 7.720
8.756 8.756 8.017 6.976
0.747 0.747 0.685 0.685
5.057 4.950 4,598 4,540
2.000 2.000 2.000 2.000
0.050 0.050 0.045 0.045
0.861 0.764 0.781 0.823

Source: Escambia County Tax Collector
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Fiscal Year

200910 2010-11 201112 201213 2013-14 201415
5.612 5.631 5.573 5.510 5.309 5.237
0.748 0.748 0.748 0.748 0.748 0.748
0.250 0.250 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
1.250 1.231 1.500 1.500 1.500 1.337
7.860 7.860 7.821 7.758 7.5567 7.322
6.976 6.975 6.975 6.975 6.976 6.617
0.685 0.685 0.685 0.685 0.685 0.685
4.540 4.540 4,289 4.289 4.290 4.290
2.000 2.000 2.000 2.000 2,000 2.000
0.045 0.045 0.040 0.040 0.040 0,039

0.905 0.905 0.905 0.905 0.901 0.871
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBLA COUNTY, FLORIDA

Taxpayer

Gulf Power Company

International Paper Company
Solutia, Inc. / Ascend Perf. Mat.
West Florida Medical Center
Simon Debartolo Group / Simon Praperty
Walmart Stores

Bellsouth Telecommunication
MNavy Federal Credit Union
CoxCom, Inc. (formerly Cox Cable)
Pensacola POB/Baptist Hospital
WCI Communities

Sacred Heart Health Systems

Totals

Total Estimated Assessed Value - County

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

CURRENT AND NINE YEARS AGO

{amounts expressed in thousands)

{Unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2014-15 2005-06
Rank Assessed Percentage Rank Assessed Percentage
Value of Total Value of Total
Assessex Assessed

Vailue Value
1 $ 580,628 3.66% 1 $ 426,218 3.67%
2 330,543 2.09% 2 252,412 2.17%
3 125,834 0.79% 3 140,410 1.21%
4 93,345 0.59% 6 84 866 0.73%
5 57,903 0.37% 10 42 480 0.37%
6 58,315 0.37% 9 44,623 0.38%
7 57,174 0.36% 4 112,225 0.97%

8 80,630 0.51%
9 36,856 0.23% 7 52,195 0.45%

10 67,485 0.43%
8 48,081 0.40%
5 105,196 0.91%
$ 1,488,713 9.40% 3 1,306,706 11.26%

$ 156,845,710 % 11,613,884

Source: Escambia County Clerk of Court, Escambia County Tax Collector
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Total Fiscal Year Collections Delinquent Total Collections to Date
Year Tax Levy Percent Collections Percent
Amount of Levy Amount of Levy

201415 $ 116,033,176 $ 112,111,423 96.62% $ 4,483,330 $ 116,594,753 100.48%
2013-14 $ 114,760,128 $ 110,015,982 95.87% $ 4,739,310 $ 114,755,292 100.00%
201213 116,337,455 110,886,858 95.31% 435,225 111,322,083 95.69%
2011-12 119,882,566 114,257,815 96.31% 389,853 114,647,668 95.63%
2010-11 119,850,006 114,139,658 95.24% 3,584,183 117,723,841 98.23%
200910 124,479,688 114,199,954 91.74% 3,645,089 117,845,043 94.67%
2008-09 126,868,775 118,049,237 93.05% 873,145 118,922,382 93.74%
2007-08 123,128,068 113,579,256 92.24% 1,704,002 115,283,258 83.63%
2006-07 117,027,107 107,994,392 92.28% 557,763 108,552,155 92.76%
2005-06 93,284,933 86,860,563 93.11% 299,309 87,159,872 93.43%

Note: Property {axes become due and payable on November 1 of each year. A four percent

Source: Escambia County Tax Collector
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{4%) discount is allowed if taxes are paid in November, with the discounts declining by

one percent (1%) each month thereafier. Accordingly, taxes collected will never be 100%
of the tax levy. Taxes become delinquent on April 1 of each year and tax certificates

for the full amount of any unpaid taxes and assessments must be sold not later than June 1
of each year. Accordingly, the majority of taxes are collected in the fiscal year levied.



DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

{Unaudited)
Fiscal Governmental Activites (A) Percentage Per
Year State Board Certificates Capital Total of Personal Capita (B}
of Education of Leases Primary Income (B)
Bonds Participation Government
2014-15 $ 2,738,580 $ 316359083 § $ 34,374,563 0.293% 112
2013-14 3,954,275 35,083,539 39,017,814 0.332% 128
2012-13 5,206,288 38,611,793 43,818,079 0.379% 148
201112 6,410,159 42,016,050 48,426,209 0.432% 162
2010-11 7,479,885 45,087,833 77.967 52,645,685 0.488% 176
200910 8,298,895 48,028,536 379,304 56,708,735 0.551% 100
2008-09 9,291,284 50,840,714 1,038,229 61,170,227 0.612% 206
2007-08 10,233,673 53,536,829 2,024,988 85,795,490 0.640% 222
2006-07 9,764,305 56,131,879 3,076,029 68,972,213 0.689% 232
2005-06 9,240,082 58,719,369 4,070,281 72,030,632 0.752% 240
Source:

{A) District Records
{B) See the table on Demographic and Economic Statistics for personal income and population data. These ratios are
calculated using personal income and population for the calendar year.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
June 30, 2015

(Unaudited)
Governmental Unit State Board Certificates Direct Debt
of Education of Total Percentage
{SBA) Bonded Participation Debt Applicable fo
Debt Cutstanding Outstanding This Gevernmental
Cutstanding Unit
District School Board of Escambia County $ 2,738580 § 31635983 § 34,374,563 100%

Note:

Overlapping debt is that debt of loca! governments and Escambia county which apply to propetly owners within the county. Not all
overiapping debt applies o all county property owners. Municipality and county debt outstanding was not determined at June 30, 2015, as
their fiscal years end on September 30. Consequently there is no data to report for the District's current fiscal year.

Source: District Records
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION
June 30, 2015

{Unaudited)
Total Net Debt
Total Net Applicable to Limit
Fiscal Debt Applicable Legal Debt as a Percent of
Year Assessed Value Debt Limit fo Limit Margin Debt Limit
2014-15 $ 15,845710,220 n/z $ - $ - 0.00%
2013-14 15,185,937,304 n/a - - 0.00%
201213 14,995,805,026 n/a - - 0.00%
201112 15,328,183,064 n/a - - 0.00%
2010-11 15,248,004,138 nfa - - 0.00%
2009-10 15,932,352,281 nfa - - 0.00%
2008-09 16,435,045,831 nfa - - 0.00%
2007-08 15,951,031,059 n/a - - 0.00%
2006-07 14,825,927 ,718 n/a - - 0.00%
2005-06 11,613,884,200 nfa - - 0.00%

Source: District Records
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
ANTICIPATED CAPITAL OUTLAY MILLAGE LEVY
REQUIRED TO COVER CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION PAYMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Unaudited)
Fiscal Taxable Annual Lease Miliage Levy
Year Assessed Payment to Provide
Value (A) 1.00x Coverage (B)
2014-15 15,845,710 5,100,849 34 Mills
2013-14 15,185,937 5,134,381 .35 Mills
201213 14,995,805 5,136,131 .36 Mills
201112 15,328,183 4,941,173 34 Mills
2010-11 15,248,094 4,945 453 .34 Mills
2009-10 15,932,352 4,944 814 .33 Mills
2008-09 16,435,046 4,948,369 32 Mills
2007-08 15,951,031 5,108,002 34 Mills
2006-07 14,825,928 5,205,952 37 Mills
2005-06 11,613,884 4,543,929 A1 Mills
(A) Final assessed value is in thousands.
(B) Millage rate calculated using 96% of the taxabie assessed valuation.
Note: Capital lease arrangements financed by Certificates of Participation are not
considered general obligation debt as no specific property tax levy has been

pledged.

Source: District Records
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Unaudited)
Fiscal Population {A) Personal Per Capita Median
Year Income Personal Age (A)
Income (A)
2014-15 305,872 $ 11,742,120,208 $ 38,380 37.70
201314 305,817 11,740,008,813 38,389 37.60
201213 301,120 11,654,576,640 38,372 38.30
2011-12 299,511 11,211,595,263 37,433 37.40
2010-11 299,114 10,782,162,358 36,047 37.00
2009-10 297,964 10,299,721,588 34,567 38.40
2008-09 297,015 9,999,604,005 33,667 35.00
2007-08 296,854 10,285,694,246 34,649 36.80
2006-07 297,393 10,010,545,773 33,661 36.90
2005-06 300,395 9,678,394,970 31,886 37.40
Sources:
(A)

Population, personal income, and per capita personal income were obtained from the
United States Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis and the
University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research. Personal income
was estimated for 2005 through 2009 based on historical growth. Estimated population
for the 2014-15 fiscal year was obtained the United States Department of Census.

(B) Unemployment Rates were obtained from Florida Agency for Workforce Innovation,
Office of Workforce Information Services, Labor Market Statistics.

(C) Student enrollment was obtained from District records. Starting in the 2013-14 fiscal
year, student enrollment figures were capped at 1.0 unweighted FTE.
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Unemployment Student Government-wide Cost per

Rate {B) Enrollment (C) Governmental Student
Activities
Expenses
5.7% 40,244.00 $ 387,411,172 $ 0,627
6.0% 40,170.72 367,703,010 9,154
6.7% 40,340.18 364,960,386 9,047
8.7% 40,119.02 363,994,261 9,073
10.2% 39,657.75 379,810,056 9,577
10.5% 40,049.39 377,531,252 0,427
9.9% 40,258.01 378,854,685 9,410
5.5% 41,077.67 308,777,831 9,708
3.8% 42,025.33 396,835,468 0,443

3.4% 42,690.86 371,154,107 8,714
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BCARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

CURRENT AND NINE YEARS AGO

(Unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2014-15 " 2005-06
Employees Rank Percentage Employees Rank Percentage
of of

Employer Employment Employment
Local Government 13,857 1 6.48% 15,790 1 7.55%
Fedaral Government 7,162 2 3.36% 7,403 2 3.54%
State of Florida 5,253 3 2.46% 5,870 3 2.86%
Sacred Heart Health System 5,000 4 2.34% 3,500 4 1.87%
Baptist Health Care 3,163 5 1.48% 3,470 5 1.86%
Lakeview Genter 2,000 8 0.94% 1,500 8 0.72%
Solutia, Inc. / Ascend Perf, Mat. 1,400 7 (.66% 1,800 7 0.86%
Gulf Power Company 1,365 8 0.64% 1,400 9 0.67%
West Florida Healthcare 1,300 9 0.61% 1,300 10 0.62%
University of West Florida 1,231 10 0.58% 2,400 6 1.15%
Total 41,731 19.63% 44 533 21.30%
Civilian Labor Force 213,700 209,059

OF Sources:

Pensacola Chamber of Commerce
Escambia County Clerk of Court

Florida Department of Economic Opportunity, Bursau of Labor Statistics
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

SCHOOL BUILDING INFORMATION & FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT ENROLLMENT DATA

Elementary Schools/K-8

Allen Elementary
Bellview Elementary
Beulah Elementary

Bibbs Elementary

Blue Angels Elementary
Bratt Elementary
Brentwood Elemantary
Caro Elementary
Carver/Ceniury K-8

Cook Elementary
Cordova Park Elementary
Edgewater Elementary
Ensley Elsmentary

Ferry Pass Elementary
Global Learning Academy
Hallmark Eiementary
Holm Elementary

Lincoln Park Elementary
Lipscomb Elementary
Longleaf Elementary
McArthur Elementary
Molino Park Elementary
Montclair Elementary
Myrtle Grove Elementary
Navy Point Elementary
Qakcrest Elementary
Pine Meadow Elementary
Pleasant Grove Elementary
Scenic Heights Elementary
Semmes Elementary
Sherwood Elementary
Suler Elementary
Warrington Elementary
Weils Elementary

West Pensacola Elementary
Yniestra Elementary

Total Elementary Schools
Middle Schools

Bailey Middle School
Bellview Middle School
Brentwood Middle School

Brown Barge Middle School @

Brownsville Middle School
Ferry Pass Middle School
Ransom Middle School
Ward Middle School
Warrington Middle School
Wedgewood Middle School
Woodham Middle School
Workman Middie School

Total Middle Schools

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Unaudited)
Placed in Square Portables Full-Time Equivalent Enrollment Data
Service ! Footage 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08
1956 82,902 1 618.52 617.08 633.18
1950 21,723 4 685.02 743.83 762.67
1980 89,786 18 734.86 700.59 724.57
1962 57,871 300.58 382.90 34417
1999 112,793 7 868.08 827.43 815.10
1980 69,313 5 306.63 386.22 394,02
1937 61,735 10 587.61 530.61 450.24
1989 110,126 8 887.40 879.56 864.49
1958 61,793 1 335.40 264.63 203.75
1997 119,728 555.05 591.80 588.18
1962 85,651 8 642.20 625,75 673.04
1962 51,663 383.38 360.03 350,82
1969 62,282 10 436.56 363.17 374.00
1857 77,426 11 653.90 673.44 646.94
2011 130,802
1628 36,993 3 263.86 239.50 241.43
1989 110,183 2 614.43 556.81 550,19
1961 56,001 2 331.53 334.74 279.94
1991 107,268 12 849.01 871.98 950.12
1975 88,455 3 680.08 769.00 802.02
1975 85,242 11 719.04 712.59 719.12
2002 129,694 485.88 459.84 463.95
1960 68,383 2 42522 296.56 321,92
1936 77,263 8 633.39 640.92 679.32
1954 9,369 406.44 303.96 384.27
1956 65,708 11 471.85 430.76 447 .43
1960 76,748 10 752.94 796.95 780.37
1948 65,857 7 602.22 620.28 6568.23
1960 95,129 12 787.13 743.78 694.10
1955 65,484 330.71 310.06 286.23
1958 77,292 1 529.47 530.79 52410
1921 49,458 3 315.75 354.70 381.17
1947 66,228 11 471.28 442 .65 302.79
1990 111,524 555.32 516.72 548.52
1855 69,757 10 476.21 481.45 461.44
1938 35,600 1 332.13 404.08 281.97
192 19,218.78 18,855.17 18,674.70
1993 190,868 12 1,566.28 1,528.66 1,504.05
1961 140,220 8 1,106.20 1,134.80 1,192.10
1955 88,445 869.20 818.79
1956 88,445 7 501.00 509.00 631.00
1955 106,664 605.70 524.30
1961 127,961 5 899.70 899.43 880.80
1987 158,627 12 1,447.88 1,403.11 1.365.31
1945 82,541 2 383.50 443.00 458.50
1083 127,637 6 721.50 617.20 892.00
1964 86,650 541.00 555.60
1964 215,508 4 1,012.60
1962 128,638 10 827.90 788.13 850.02
66 9,469.86 9,222.02 8,786.38
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Full-Time Equivalent Enroliment Data

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 201112 201213 2013-14 201415
590.63 582.19 652,44 628.36 632,13 563.93 577.49
722.02 730.25 672,10 608.00 748.50 686.10 720.25
767.86 817.78 844.84 887.80 896.00 920.11 967.64
336.40 328.55 242.86
860.56 926,00 871.90 884,76 988,10 849.17 913.43
393.28 429,61 422,30 436.02 438.91 414.96 401.14
413.87 500.41 535.68 542.87 565.39 616.97 585.98
208.50 947.05 912.02 943.06 908.97 952.20 954.91
213.65
608.90 623.68 658.50 628.50 635.72 622.13 579.89
658,14 676.26 659.22 713.52 877.22 707.88 680.48
350.87
348.21 354.68 406,52 442,93 427.16 457.85 474.93
619.81 687,15 706.56 708.42 622.66 668.46 724.37

780.06 753.14 757.43 757.96

225,34 212.56 210.84
534.63 517.04 491.35 471.58 430.67 440.04 470.40
247.52 214.04 225.80 261.56 276.44 140.02 147.40
1,018.97 1,005.05 945.39 903.03 911.39 926.99 931.84
746.02 670.47 717.83 730,88 690.67 784.38 772,13
714.42 726.02 704.10 686.64 §93.80 740.55 762,06
431.27 390.37 387.18 397.26 . 387.28 381.35 415.13
473.91 458,65 332.80 373.04 363.04 341.33 308.66
651.69 684.76 661.41 662.82 677.72 703.69 606.89
331.85 397.30 435.80 481.62 483.58 508.65 449,89
426.31 413.72 448.61 470.03 518.35 602.87 663.55
797.83 836.71 844.88 856.67 909.03 942.99 005.42
645,02 648.00 666.57 675.09 680.62 631.70 729.36
779.99 837.44 782.45 780.00 841.67 872.57 762.30
266.07 297.80 263.26 335.69 366.24 405.43 397.86
518.14 489.16 532.50 500.20 526.66 589.50 605.46
367.55 386.52 400.23 367.58 43472 423.62 437.37
369.93 502.06 516.25 508,12 483.24 485.95 425.29
533.02 517.78 464.15 487,68 402.60 573.90 545.03
455.00 530.31 490,98 497.94 47212 404.83 425,20

23579 234.89 256.63
18,563.07 18,571.16 18,372.84 18,7560.73 18,922.52 12,147.53 19,088.71
1,488.20 1,453.50 1,478.60 1,406.93 1,400.90 1,481.31 1,389.71
1,009.50 1,080.30 1,107 .60 1,071.40 1,110.69 980.69 1,019.58
652.71 634.00 617.50 610.70 620.99 594.23 576.87
894.56 873.37 946.00 880.82 980.71 1,011.74 987.37
1,325.81 1,310.05 1,312.30 1,356.40 1,360.09 1,420.64 1,382.08
461.49 519.31 480.00 465.58 461.33 458.58 453.79
854,80 850.71 73111 727.70 705.79 649,87 672,76
928.50 924,90 912.63 853.80 805.80 899.61 687.07
866.11 867.10 936.43 921.42 1,008.49 §79.62 941.48
8,671.68 8,493.24 8,523.17 8,303.75 8,454.79 8,285.29 8,120.72

{continued)
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
SCHOOL BUILDING INFORMATION & FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT ENROLLMENT DATA
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS -

High Schools

Escambia High School

West Florida High Schoo! of Advanced Technclogy
Northview High School

Pensacola High School

Pine Forest High School

Tate Senlor High School

Washington High School

Woodham High Schoo!

Total High Schools

Speclal Centers

Judy Andrews Fre-K Center

Clubbs Alternative Middle School

Judy Andraws Second Chance Canter '
E-Seaf Genter

Sld Melson Community Learning
McMillian Laarning Center

Georga Stone Technical Center @
Escambia Westgate Center

OASIS High School Preparatory Academy

Teotal Special Centers

Other Programs

Camelot

District Administered Programs
Escambla County Jail

Escambla Juvenile Justice Center
Hospital & Homebound

Drug and Alcohol Residential Treatment Center (DAART)
Lakeview Center

Escambia Boys Base

Escambla Bay Marine

Outward Bound

PACE Center for Girls

McKay Scholarships

Opportunity Scholarships

Total Other Programs

Charter Schools

A, A, Dixon Charter School of Excellence
Beutah Academy of Sclence, Inc.
Byrnevlle Elementary School, Inc,
Capsltone Academy Pensacola

Escambia Charter School, Inc.

Dr. Ruby J. Gainer School for Reaching Your Dream
Jacqueline Harris Preparatory Academy
Life Skills Center

Five Flags Academy

Newpolnt Academy Middle Schoot
Newpoint Pensacola High School
Pensacola Beach Elementary School, Inc.

Total Charter Schools

Virtual Instruction Programs

Total District

(Unaudited)

Placed In Square Portables Full-Time Equivalgnt Enroliment Data
Service ™ Footage @ 2005-06 2006-07 200708 2008-09
1958 277,591 8 1,683.69 1,743.04 1,920.58 1,885.15
1967 338,380 12 1,244.51 1,245.00 1,284.48 1,300.88
1993 142,694 §45.97 558.33 551.61 546.10
1949 283,755 5 1,508.07 1,404.95 1,483.93 1,532.93
1974 250,033 15 1,498.28 1,520.34 1,858.50 1,833.24
1950 283,264 3 . 1,945,580 2,071.28 1,967.59 1,909.05
1978 270,222 i} 1,589.02 1,650.19 1,875.50 1,691.68
1962 116,128 1,323.76 1,220.01
49 11,330.80 11,431.14 11,042.47 10,700.03
1985 20,458 42,50 47.50 44.00
1938 35,459 156.00 122.00 148,50 148.50
1954 45,405 166.50
1902 38,527 5 99.50 97.55 85.50 B3.97
1056 66,836 120.15 107.36 12210 143.75
1981 63,538 1 58.35 59.52 81.74 G5.49
1987 218,913 5
1972 96,305 223.50 223.64 221,16 218.64
1065 72.00 72.00 72.00 72.00
11 905.00 724.56 756.59 776.35
n‘a nia na
na nfa nfa 165,07 151.82 1563.18 147.00
n'a wa nfa 0.72 0.93 1.23 1.35
wa nfa nfa 77.50 103.49 96.33 70.00
nia nfa nfa 16.1% 18.22 16.24 14.13
n'a nia n/a 13.60 17.00 17.50 16.00
n'a na nfa 43.50 40.50 41.50 40,00
n'a nfa nfa 29.60 38.11 37.02 26.02
na nfa nfa 75.50 75.88 68,30 72.00
na wa n/a 30.50 33,72
ria n‘a nfa 47.50 61.30 63.30 51.00
nfa nfa nfa 191.50 130.50 144.00 163.00
nia n‘a nfa 12.50
703.48 B71.67 638,60 600.50
nfa n‘a nfa
nia nfa nfa 216,30 226,60 239.20 261,70
nfa n‘a nfa 172.00 158.30 162.70 166.80
nfa n‘a na 544 10.00 13.50 18.82
nfa na nfa 120.00 108.50 121.50 130,50
rfa na na 147.00 118.51 109.88 113.50
nfa n'a nfa 192.50 179.50 194,30 203.30
nfa n'a na 204.01 213.29
nfa na nfa
nfa nfa nfa
n‘a n'a nfa
nfa nfa nfa 130,70 115.45 124.86 143.76
953,94 1,120.77 1,170.23 1,038.38
n‘a nfa na
42,590.88 41,077 .67 40,250.01

42,025.33

" Original date that the schoo! was placed in service. This date does not reflect additions, rencvations, replacements or remotleling,

® Squars footage is current, but does not include portables.

¥ The George Stone Center houses adult programs which do not genarate Full Tims Enrcliment {FTE).
" Brown-Barge moved to the former Brentwood Middle facility in 2007-08.
¥ Formerly known as Dixon Educational Genter untl the 2006-07 fiscal year.

Seurce: District Records
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Full-Time Eqguivalent Enrolimeant Data

20092-10 2010-11 201112 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

1,873.29 1,811,094 1,788,068 1,646.34 1,678.82 1,707.46
1,206.67 1,279.41 1,248 .68 1,246.61 1,254.38 1,267.08

552.65 541.38 540.27 535,95 485.89 481,26
1,641.12 1,607.20 1.611.18 1,671,62 1,433.15 1.419,10
1,876.25 1,744.28 1,702.56 1,728.23 1,646.97 1.674.06
1,955.85 1,928.49 1,884,008 1,960.99 1,928.67 2,073.34
1,634.31 1,581.01 1,609.85 1,623.54 1,626.17 171178

10,830.14 10,503.71 10,383.67 10,322,08 10,094.08 10,324.07

85.50
53.50 52.00 40.51 38,78 40,72 42,99
86.31
164,24
70.36 84.30 68.15 49.14 38.95 25.51
226.07 232.00 246.00 238,50 242,49 228.83
674.98 368,30 354.66 326.40 322.16 207.33
182.50 154.00 160.00 177.75 181.06
123.83 108.46 102.20 90,44 92.98 100.45
4.85 2.90 9.00 17.00 16.13 17.30
50,00 44.50 58.22 49.53 48.00 52,05
10.07 9.99 12.28 8.33 9.85 14.76
15.00 16.00 18.60 16.00 18.41 1245
36.50 29.00 28,50 28.50 26.63 24.90
26,50 24.50 27.68 1817 28.38 30,34
55,60 54.00 74,58 58,12 31.69
53.00 50,50 58,80 63.43 82,67 72.62
192.00 235.00 235.00 248,50 316.71 328.85
566.15 787,35 787.71 761.02 826,23 83478
220,30 156.50 160.00
261.80 261.30 282,90 282,80 288.04 286.55
178.60 161.40 157.10 158.80 174,10 181.63
24.84 25.93 21.651 25,50 26.00 23.42
126,00 107.60 126,50 114.00 120,03 115.28
152.00 214.50 188.00 174.50 197.83 179.94
. 89.44
180.10 166.80 158.33 172,87
81.50 91.03 113,23 109.43
140.68 14145 135.46 138.26 135.34 138.00
913.72 1,132.38 1,338.56 1,311.49 1.212.70 1,306.54
192,94 241.88 282,76 172.54
40,049.39 39.657.75 40,118.02 40,340.18 40,170.72 40,155.69
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
NUMBER OF PERSONNEL
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Unaudited)
Fiscal (A) (B) (C) Total Ratio of Ratio of
Year Instructional Administrative Support Students Instructional
Services (FTE) to Personnel to
Instructional Administrators
Personnel
2014-15 3,138 173 1,865 5,176 12.80 18.14
2013-14 3,161 164 1,870 5,195 12.71 19.27
2012-13 3,074 141 1,849 5,064 13.12 21.80
201112 3,191 140 1,843 5,174 12.57 22.79
2010-11 3,269 141 1,912 5,322 12.13 23.18
2009-10 3,270 142 1,964 5,376 11.94 23.03
2008-09 3,371 145 2,022 5,638 11.59 23.25
2007-08 3,442 150 2,084 5,676 11.83 22.95
2006-07 3,421 152 2,192 5,765 12.28 22.51
2005-06 3,371 152 2,145 5,668 12.63 22.18

(A) Classroom Teachers, Guidance/Psychologists, Exceptional Education Teachers, Media Specialists,
Other Professional Instructional Staff

(B) Principals, Assistant Principals, Superintendent, Assistant Superintendent, Executive Directors,
Directors, Managers, Coordinators

(C) Paraprofessional, Bus Drivers, Monitors, Maintenance, Clerical, Etc.

Source: Disfrict Records
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

TEACHERS' SALARIES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{Unaudited)
Fiscal Year Minimum Range Maximum Range Average
10-Month Salary {a) 10-Month Salary (a) Teacher
Salary

201415 $ 35872 - § 39472 $ 56250 - § 59,850 $ 44,841
2013-14 34,152 - 37,752 55635 - 59,235 44,284
2012-13 33,482 - 37,082 53,026 - 56,626 42,619
201112 32,825 - 36,425 51,986 - 55,586 41,988
2010-11 32,825 - 36,425 51,986 - 55,586 41,560
2009-10 32,500 - 36,100 51,471 - 55,071 42,346
2008-09 32,000 - 35,600 51,000 - 54,600 41,430
2007-08 32,000 - 35,600 51,000 - 54,800 41,551
2008-07 29,105 - 32,705 48,197 - 51,797 39,075
2005-06 27,878 - 31,478 46,631 - 50,231 37,402
2004-05 27,2562 - 30,852 45,639 - 48,239 36,407

(@) Minimum and maximum salary ranges ars based on the educational level of the employee. The starting amount represents a
bachelor's degree and the ending amount represents an in-field doctorate degree. Employees may eam additional pay for the following
degree levels: in-field masters ($2,500); out-of-field masters ($1,700); in-field specialist ($3,100); out-of-field specialist ($2,600); in-field
doctorate ($3,600); out-of-field doctorate ($3,300). Employees may also recelve additional compensation for working 11 or 12 months.

Source: Minimum & Maximum Salaries - District Records; Average Teacher Salaries - Florida Department of Education.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

Days Meals were Served

Average Number of Free and
Reduced Meals Served Dally

Number of Free and Reduced
Meals Servad

Average Daily Subsidy Received

Total Subsidy Received

Average Number of Meals Served Daily
Number of Meals Served

Average Dally Revenues

Total Revenues

Average Daily Costs

Total Costs

FOOD SERVICE OPERATING DATA

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30, 2006

June 30, 2007

June 30, 2008

June 30, 2009

©® B o s

Source: District Records
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11,001,688
35,871
6,420,924
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100,429

17,976,729
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Fiscal Year Ending

June 30, 2010

June 30, 2011

June 30, 2012

June 30, 2013

June 30, 2014

June 30, 2015

$
§
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY
SCHEDULE 5
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EXPENDITURES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Catnlog of
Federal
Domtestle Amount of
Asslstance Pass-Through Expenditures Amonnt Provided to
Federal Grantor /Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number Grantor Number {1} Sulbyrecipients
United States Department of Agriculture:
TIndirect:
Child Mutrition Cluster:
Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services:
School Breakfast Progeam 10.553 13002 H 3,763,837.97
National School Lunch Program 10,555 (2) 13001 12,301,785.12
Summer Food Service Program for Children 10,559 13006 112,560,07
Total Child Nutrition Cluster 16,178,183.16
Florida Departinent of Agriculture and Consumer Services:
Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program 10.582 330 21,447.93
Total United States Department of Agriculture 16,199,631.09
United Siates Department of Labor:
Indirect:
WIA Cluster:
Warkforce Escarosa, Inc.;
WIA Youth Aclivities 17.259 None 295,505,135
Taotal United States Department of Lahor; 295,505,15
United States Department of Education:
Direct:
Federal Pell Gran| Program 34.063 NIA 285,647.30
Tinpact Aid 84,041 (3) N/A 615,565.46
Total Direct 1,501,212.85
Indirect:
Special Education Closter:
Florida Department of Education;
Special Education - Granis to States 84.027 262,263 11,110,519.70
Special Education - Preschool Grants 84,173 266, 267 534,732.33
Total Special Education Cluster 11,645,252.03
Florida Department of Education
Adult Education - Basic Grants to Stales 84.002 191 129,851.09
. Title 1 Grants to Local Educational Agencios 84.010 12,222,223,228 15,122,373.80
Career and Teclnical Education - Basic Grants fo States 84,048 161 598,873.36
Education for Iomeless Children and Youth 84.196 127 T4,616.50
English Language Acquisition Grants 84365 102 55,775.01
Tmproving Teacher Quality State Grants 84,367 224,225 2,759,362.15
School [mprovement Grants 84,377 226 36,592.86
ARRA - State Fiseal Stabilization Fund - Race-to-the-Top, Recovery Act 84,395 RLIIL, RG3T11, RG411 509,031.91
Total Florlda Department of Education 19,286,476.68
Total Indirect 30,931,728.71
Total Unlted States Department of Educatlon 32,432,941.56
United States Department of Health and Human Serviees:
Indirect:
Cx ity Action C ity - Hlead Start
Head Start 93.600 Notio 558,51546
Total United States Dopartment of Health and Human Services: 538,51546
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY
SCHEDULE 5
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EXPENDITURES
For the Fiscel Year Ended June 30, 2015

Chatalog of
Federal
Donsestic Amount of
Asslstance Pass-Through Expenditures Amount Provided to
Federal Grantor /Pass-Through Granter/Program Title Number Grantor Number 1) Subreciplents
United States Department of Defensc:
Direct:
Army Junior Reserve Officers Training Corps None NIA 69,124,55
Air Force Junior Reserve Officers Training Corps None NA 44,912.92
Navy Junior Reserve Officers Training Corps None N/A 32291798
Competitive Grants: Promoting K-12 student Achievement at Military-Conneeted Schocls 12,556 NA 918,045.80
Total United States Department of Defense 1,357,001.25
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 50,843,504.51

(1) Basis of Prasentation
The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards represents amounts expended from Federal Programs during the 2014-2015 fiscal year as determined based on the modified accrual
basis of accounting. The amounts reported on the Schedule have been reconciled to and are in material agresment with amounts recorded in the District's accounting records from which
the general purpose financial statemenis have been reported.

(2) Noncash Assistance
National Sclwool Lunch Propraw - Represents the amount of donated food received during the fiscal year, Tonated food is valued at fair value as determined at the time of donation by
the Florida Department of Agriculiurs and Conguner Services, Bureau of Food Distribution,

(3) Impact Aid - Expenditures are related to grant numbers/programs as follows: 19-FL-2011-0001 ($5,322.21), 19-FL-2012-0001 ($92,218.96), and 19-FL-2015-0001 (8518,024.29).
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M S MOORE STEPHENS
LOVELACE, PA.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Chairman and Members of
The District School Board of Escambia County, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the District School Board of Escambia County, Florida (the “District”) as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated
January 12, 2016. Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of
the discretely presented component units, as described in our report on the District’s financial statements.
This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of internal control over financial
reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Chairman and Members of
The District School Board of Escambia County, Florida

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Pursuant to provisions of Chapter 10.800, Rules of the Auditor General, we reported certain matters to
management of the District in a separate management letter and Independent Accountant’s Report dated
January 12, 2016.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

\\(\Mgm&:&m Unwenee, ©

MOORE STEPHENS LOVELACE, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants

Orlando, Florida
January 12, 2016
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M S MOORE STEPHENS
LOVELACE, PA.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Chairman and Members of
The District School Board of Escambia County, Florida

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the compliance of the District School Board of Escambia County, Florida (the
“District”) with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and
Budget (“OMB”) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of the District’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015. The District’s major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements

referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2015.
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Chairman and Members of
The District School Board of Escambia County, Florida

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the District’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effective-
ness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the District’s internal conirol over compliance.

A deficiency in internal conirol over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of petforming their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal conirol over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133

We have audited the basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. We issued our
repott thereon dated January 12, 2016, which contained unmodified opinions on those financial statements.
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the basic financial statements. Our report on the bagic financial statements included disclosures
regarding our reference to the reports of other auditors. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis, as required by OMB Circular A-133, and
is not a required part of the basic financial statements, Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements.
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Chairman and Members of
The District School Board of Escambia County, Florida

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133 (Cont.)

The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken
as a whole.

Mg S aghars Lrvdoce, @h

MOORE STEPHENS LOVELACE, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants

Orlando, Florida
January 12, 2016
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Section I - Summary of Independent Auditor’s Resulis

Financial Statements

Type of Auditor’s Report Issued: Unmeodified Opinion

Internal control over financial repotting:

» Material weakness(es) ideniified? Yes X No
» Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes X None reporied
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
» Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X_ No
* Significant deficiency(ies)? Yes X __None reported
Type of report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified Opinion
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-1337 Yes X No
Identification of Major Programs:
CEDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster
84,010 Title 1, Part A Cluster
84.027, 84,173 Special Education Cluster
84.063 Student Financial Assistance Pell Grant
84.367 Improving Teacher Quality
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs; $1.525.308
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditeo? Yes X_No
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Section I - Findings Related to the Financial Statement Audit, as required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Staundards.

No matters are reported,
Section Il - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs Section reported in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133.

No matters are reported,
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMRBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

FEDERAIL AUDIT FINDINGS
One matter was reported in the prior year affecting federal financial assistance programs,

Federal Award Finding Number 2014-001

U.S. Department of Education

Student Financial Assistance Pell Grant, CFDA Number 84,063
Award Number: P063P13415

Material Noncompliance and Material Weaknesses

Fiscal Year 2014 Recommendation:
The District should review and revise all financial aid award and disbursement policies and procedures to
ensure compliance with all statutory requirements of the Federal Pell Grant Program. In addition, the
District should document to the grantor (ED) the atlowability of the questioned costs, totaling $19,236, or
restore these monies to the Program,

Fiscal year 2015 Status;

Buring the fiscal year, the District initiated a review of all financial aid award and disbursement policies
and procedures to ensure compliance with all statutory requirements of the Federal Pell Grant Program.
Follow-up examination of records was performed by the grantor, resulting in a Final Audit Determination
letter dated September 15, 2015, The District waived rights to appeal and subsequently refunded
$506,456 to the U.S. Department of Education. Based on our risk assessment, and considering the
severity of the prior audit finding, the Pell Grant program was determined to be high risk and,
accordingly, was subjected to A-133 Single Audit procedures in the current fiscal year. In conjunction
with our audit, we did not have any such findings.
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M S MOORE STEPHENS
LOVELACE, PA.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S MANAGEMENT LETTER

Chairman and Members of
The District School Board of Escambia County, Florida

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of the District School Board of Escambia County, Florida (the
“District”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and have issued our report thereon dated
January 12, 2016.

Auditor’s Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations; and Chapter 10.800, Rules of the Auditor General.

Other Reporting Requirements

We have issued our Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards, Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal
Program and on Internal Control over Compliance and Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133, Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, and our
Independent Accountant’s Report in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 10.800, Rules of the
Auditor General. Disclosures in those reports and schedule, which are dated January 12, 2016, should be
considered in conjunction with this management letter.

Prior Audit Findings

Section 10.804(1)(f)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective
actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial
report. In conjunction with our audit, the District took corrective action on all findings identified in the
preceding annual financial report and on all findings identified in the second preceding annual financial
report.

Financial Condition
Section 10.804(1)(f)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires a statement be included as to whether or not
the District has met one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and

identification of specific condition(s) met. In conjunction with our audit, we determined that the District
did not meet any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.
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Chairman and Members of
The District School Board of Escambia County, Florida

Financial Condition (Cont.)

Pursuant to Sections 10.804(1)(f)5a. and 10.805(7), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial
condition assessment procedures. It is management’s responsibility to monitor the District’s financial
condition, and our financial condition assessment was based, in part, on representations made by manage-
ment and the review of financial information provided by the same. The assessment was prepared as of
fiscal year end.

Transparency

Section 10.804(1)(f)6., Rules of the Auditor Gerneral, requires that we report the results of our
determination as to whether the District maintains on its web site the information specified in Section
1011.035, Florida Statutes. (Section 1011.035, Florida Statutes, provides that district school boards
include a plain-language version of each proposed, tentative, and official budget that describes each
budget item in terms that are easily understandable to the public.) In connection with our audit, we
determined that the District maintained on its web site the information specified in Section 1011.035,
Florida Statutes.

Other Matters

Section 10.804(1)(f)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management letter
any recommendations to improve financial management. In conjunction with our audit, we did not have
any such findings.

Section 10.804(1)(D)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address noncompliance with
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred,
that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which warrants the attention of
those charged with governance. In conjunction with our audit, we did not have any such findings.

Purpose of this Letter

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor
General, federal and other granting agencies, the District School Board members, and applicable
management and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

Moot € Jghars Lovdoce, @ N

MOORE STEPHENS LOVELACE,| P.A.
Certified Public Accountants

Orlando, Florida
January 12, 2016
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M S MOORE STEPHENS
LOVELACE, PA.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT

Chairman and Members of
The District School Board of Escambia County, Florida

We have examined the District School Board of Escambia County, Florida’s (“District”) compliance with
the requirements of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, during the fiscal year ended IJune 30, 2015.
Management is responsible for the District’s compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the District’s compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence
about the District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the District’s compliance
with specified requirements.

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

MOORE STEPHENS LOVELACE, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants

Orlando, Florida
January 12, 2016
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